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CORPORATE INFORMATION

N AER

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Consolidated Results

mEER
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=1+BHLEE
(HK$ million) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
(BB ET) —8s-= —E-—F —EB-BE —EB-AE —E-N\F
Revenue N 6,107 5,761 5,119 5,316 5,374
GP% EF= 19% 22% 23% 22% 21%
Profit before taxation BREE AR 285 421 400 398 391
Taxation BiE (28) (63) (83) (58) (65)
Profit for the year REEEF 257 358 317 340 326

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

HeEERAEE
At 30 June
RAB=+H
(HK$ million) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
(BEEET) = bt T R ZER-AF ZE-N\F
Total assets BmEE 3,801 3,676 3,215 3,062 2,871
Total liabilities was (842) (795) (738) (727) (701)
Non-controlling interests FEiZ&IfE2% - - = (11) (11)
Equity attributable to FNUNGT]
shareholders of the PE{h R
Company 2,959 2,881 2,477 2,324 2,159

Key Financial Indicators

FEMHIER

Year ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
=Sl - F —T-TF —B-nE —E2-)\%
Earnings per share (HK$) BRERN(EET)
Basic HoK 1.09 1.51 1.34 1.44 1.38
Diluted #a 1.09 1.51 1.34 1.43 1.37
Dividend per share (HK$) SRRE (E%T) 0.48 0.48 0.45 0.44 0.40
Equity-debt ratio* ERER =R 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
E Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity 2 EHEEBLEEARNFRREGAEREF
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt. BEHENLEE - FEXEEHEEERESR
Net debt represents leases liabilities less cash and short term funds. EHES -

BMIE(EE)BRAR | —T-_—FF%K 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”), | present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or
“Lam Soon”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

At the start of the financial year, the global economy was
cautiously optimistic and expected to embark on a recovery from
the worst of the Covid-19 pandemic with vaccination programs
being rolled out. However, the past year has been another
turbulent one with added volatility. Not only did the emergence
of a more transmissive Omicron variant result in more lockdowns
and logistics interruptions in Mainland China, market conditions
were further complicated by the outbreak of the Russian-Ukraine
conflict, which drove commodity and raw material prices to
historical highs and brought about renewed supply chain and
inflationary challenges.

The Group has been vigilant in monitoring and managing its
operations in the light of changing market dynamics. The Group's
continued focus on its long-term growth strategy through
strengthening its product positioning and market competitiveness
have helped lift its revenue modestly by 6% year-on-year to
HK$6,107 million. With the implementation of judicious pricing
and product premiumization strategies, we had mitigated a
good part of the negative cost of goods impact that narrowed
the gross profit margin gap compared to last year. However, our
performance was inevitably affected by the volatilities of a difficult
operating environment, and we have seen our net profit lowered
to HK$257 million, representing a 28% decline compared to last
year.

Despite the challenging business environment, our core business
fundamentals remain sound. The Board is pleased to recommend
a final dividend of HK$0.33 per share at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. In addition to the interim dividend of HK$0.15
per share paid earlier this year, total dividend for the year will
amount to HK0.48 per share. The total payout for this financial
year at HK116,810,000 is the same as last year, providing a steady
trend of dividend returns to our shareholders.

RAERXRBE(EB)AERIA(NARF N2
Exg(E58)]) REXARARENBLRA
(ERIFEE R HENBE-E =251
=tHILEMBFEEZFR-

EARABBRFERE  2REEFELE > IE
HEBEZREEETEEL - fCovid-19%15
MR KRKRER - AT - AFREHESE
KE2ERKE - EHEMEERE Omicron ¥ &R
SHRENMEEHPBEAEZ @R HRARIDR
TE mSERATERSBRRFRMABE
MoUMERREERMNEMRERESEESE
B WA AR BART R AV RE -

ENTSBETEHE  NEF-ERYER
REEHEK BBNEEREMNNESHIS
BEH AEEREEIRERBERERE
WARFEM EFH6%ZEB%6,107,000,000
T RFEBEENEENERELE LKL
WETRKBIERBAANEASE > WEHR
EEMRLENENRZE - BEAE > RAHR
RENHGHIIBRRETRERBTE 4
F Bk Z=#BH257,000,0007T  BEERD28%

BRELCHEERBES  RANZLEREE
REEER - ESEMAERSINEBETHRR
BEEESLRBERPRESRBHE0.33T » N
TRAFEERREREAHEHRESRBEE0.15
T AEERELEAETRBYE0L48TT o AE
BEEASHREE% 116,810,000t @ EHE 5
R ARREHREBENREER -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

Strategic Overview

The Group’s businesses have faced multiple headwinds in the
past year. Fast-evolving consumer behaviour, weakened consumer
confidence and spending power, the spike in raw material prices
and frequent logistical disruptions have all impacted our various
business segments and operations. We have, nonetheless, adapted
swiftly to cope with these challenges while adhering to our long-
term strategic goals. Our flour business remained firm in its
strategic expansion plans to continue building a more holistic
position as a bakery solutions provider. Our aim is to respond to
changing customer needs by providing enhanced product solutions
and user experience through value-added services. During
lockdowns, we have maintained our customer support and sales
momentum online. | am pleased to note that with the inauguration
of our new Specialty Fats factory in Jintan during the year, we
have begun to deliver synergistic value by drawing on our existing
flour product portfolio and customer base. Our wide sales and
distribution network will be able to deepen market penetration.

During the year, we continued to implement cost control
measures as well as a disciplined price increase strategy in our
flour, edible oils and homecare products businesses to mitigate
the high-cost pressure while carefully balancing negative impact
to our competitiveness. In the face of a slowing economy and
intense price competition, especially in key developed markets in
Guangdong, our edible oils business has restructured its channel
management to respond to rapid changes in market and channel
dynamics. We have observed some early signs of stabilized
pricing and stronger supply chain fundamentals, all of which
are indications of the effectiveness of our strategy in tackling
the latest market conditions. We will also continue to look for
opportunities to grow our market presence by expanding into
under-developed markets in selected cities of Guangdong, and to
further differentiate ourselves through innovative products.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

Despite strong headwinds, the Group’s homecare business in
Hong Kong has continued to uphold its market leader position
in the dishwashing detergent segment. The introduction of new
products and the growing demand for online shopping have also
contributed positively to the homecare business. We will continue
to leverage on eCommerce platforms to penetrate deeper and
wider in various markets to serve our customers.

The Group has an established Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") task force to focus on managing all ESG
related issues and facilitate the adoption of best practices in
sustainability. Over the years, the task force had launched various
initiatives to enhance our ESG programs. We have also put in place
a climate change policy and have incorporated climate-related
risks into our Enterprise Risk Management framework. During the
past year, climate risk identification and assessment have been
conducted to help us better manage this global issue.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, business
partners, bankers and employees for their trust and commitment
to the Group in these challenging times. It is only with your
patience and support that we are able to remain strong, ride
through the latest market turbulence and continue on our journey
to deliver long-term sustainable growth. With solid fundamentals,
we are confident that the Group will continue to progress and
move forward.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2022
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 E -

OVERVIEW

In short, our businesses have been adversely affected during
the financial year by the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and the
Russian-Ukraine war. The pandemic-hindered economic recovery
in Mainland China and Hong Kong has continued to slow sales
growth. The Russian-Ukraine conflict, which started in February
2022, disrupted production and trade of several commodities
(including wheat and edible oils ingredients) of which Ukraine was
a key exporter in the global markets. The sharp increase in prices
came on top of the already tight commodity markets, and strained
them even further. The Group applied a lot of effort and focus to
mitigate these unprecedented cost impacts by deepening market
penetration, and implementing product premiumization and sales
mix improvement strategies. Nevertheless, it has been another
challenging year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group achieved sales growth of 6% to HK$6,107 million
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 in spite of dampened
customer sentiments due to economic uncertainties. The increase
was contributed by volume growth, price adjustments, sales mix
improvement and the appreciation of the Renminbi. Commodity
price hikes led to a decrease in gross profit margin by 4 percentage
points to 19%, although a good part of the negative cost impact
was mitigated by price adjustments, controls on giveaways and
discounts, and sales mix improvement.

Our operating costs came in at 15% of revenue, representing
a reduction of 1 percentage point compared to last year. This
reduction was achieved despite the steep increase in fuel costs
and logistics rates due to numerous pandemic-related supply
chain constraints. Profit for the year decreased by 28% to HK$257
million. Cost reduction programs were continuously implemented
to control expenses.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Food Segment

Revenue from our food segment increased by 7% to HK$5,284
million whilst profit from operations decreased by 28% to HK$275
million as wheat costs surged.

We witnessed the ongoing but sporadic outbreaks of Covid-19
pandemic in and around different cities in Mainland China
throughout the year. In addition, power restrictions during the
past winter season have added a new challenge to our flour
production and product supply, as well as affecting demand from
our customers. In response to these challenges, the team has
kept the business under close review to ensure that we are able
to respond to our customers’ needs without compromising the
quality of the products or the sustainability of our business and
operations.

We continue to experience rising logistical costs as the cross-
border policy between Mainland China and Hong Kong, and city
lockdowns made the supply chain very unstable. We also saw
higher raw material costs resulting from various factors, not least
the Ukraine war. The team has implemented various cost saving
programs to further reduce operating costs and continue to review
what can be done in this area. On the sales side, we strengthened
our comprehensive distribution coverage, as well as our customer
value-added services which form a part of our core business
fundamentals. Where considered necessary and practicable, we
have also adjusted prices to reflect the higher costs of production
in our business.

Despite the need to curtail the impact of the above issues,
the team has not lost sight of its strategic business objectives,
including to continue transforming the flour business from a
commodity-driven ingredient supplier to a value-added business
solution and premium bakery solution provider. Our new Specialty
Fats Plant in Jintan was established as a vital component in
achieving our goal of horizontal integration. As it is now fully
commissioned, we are better positioned in offering an enhanced
product portfolio offered to our customers. We also aim to deepen
the penetration of our distribution channels by leveraging on our
existing comprehensive flour distribution infrastructure to increase
sales volume and market share.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

BUS' N ESS REV'EW (continued)

Food Segment (continued)

For two consecutive years, our edible oils business has been
adversely impacted by unprecedented increases in raw material
costs and channel disruptions. The team has executed prudent
spending control strategies to mitigate the impact. To enable more
effective and synchronized price increase execution both in terms
of timeliness and magnitude, and more importantly, to strive for a
healthy and sustainable value-chain foundation based on premium
price positioning across all channels, we have restructured the
sales organization to optimize the different sales channels. The
resulting measures have already shown good indications of pricing
and channel balance enhancements.

Due to the impact of the prolonged pandemic and fast-evolving
consumer dynamics, market competition intensified in our core
Guangdong market, especially in key developed areas such as
Shenzhen and Guangzhou. As a consequence, we expedited our
regional expansion into less-developed cities, primarily in western
and northern Guangdong. We continued to leverage on celebrity
endorsement for our key Knife brand through various targeted
and strategic media promotions, including outdoor and online
advertising, in-store merchandising and packaging design to
further uplift its appeal to consumers and achieve premium brand
differentiation against competitors.

Our market leadership in Hong Kong retail peanut oil segment was
strengthened through well-orchestrated marketing programs and
channel management efforts. The launch of the innovative and
well-received adjustable bottle cap in the 4™ quarter will further
enhance our competitive position in the growing small-pack
market.

Our Manuka honey distribution business in China ceased on 30
June 2022 upon expiry of the distribution agreement. This business
comprised a very small portion of our food segment revenue and
had minimal impact to our segmental profit.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

BUS' N ESS REV'EW (continued)

Home Care Segment

Our Home Care Division was not immune to the weakening
retail environment and continued escalation in raw material
costs amid an evolving Covid-19 pandemic situation. Against this
background, revenue growth slowed to 2% year-on-year, ending
the year at HK$823 million whilst profit from operations declined
36% year-on-year to HK$55 million.

During the year, we had to balance between protecting near-term
profitability and continued investments in longer-term initiatives.
In the more mature Hong Kong market, our premiumization
strategy with the AXE Triple Action range continued to bear fruit
and helped us solidify our position as one of the market leaders in
the dishwashing category. In Mainland China, where competition
is more intense and Covid-19 pandemic outbreaks, channel
disruptions and shifting of consumer preferences to lower-end
products post constant challenges to our business. We have
maintained a cautious stance and made tactical adjustments where
appropriate. We have begun lifting prices of core products across
major channels to mitigate against an inflationary environment
which has not shown signs of abating. Sales expansion remains a
priority, but we will continue to pace our initiatives and selectively
expand in Guangdong province and develop new channels where
the returns on investment are justified.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, in the near term, our outlook remains one where
we will have continued volatility in our business environment.
However, over the medium term, we remain cautiously optimistic
that the overall business environment will stabilize and improve as
markets adjust to new circumstances, and governments continue
to modify responses to contain rising inflation and global events.

The volatility in the commodity markets depends heavily on
the duration of the Russian-Ukraine conflict and the severity of
disruptions to commodity flows. Commodity price fluctuations
remain our key business risk. China’s economy showed signs
of recovery in May 2022 as industrial production rose although
consumption was still weak. The geopolitical tensions between
China and the US is also set to increase uncertainty.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

O UTLO O K (continued)

Cost containment, and continued sustainable sales and operations,
are our prevailing challenges and priorities under the current
uncertain economic environment. However, we will also not
neglect our long-term strategies, and prepare for the “what if”
scenarios in order to be ready to capture new opportunities, and
grow faster with the potential rebound once the turbulent times
are over or become more under control. We understand that
challenges are inevitable and are confident that our Group and
dedicated staff will not just embrace but adapt and change for the
better. We are also clear that our long-term strategic vision and
targets remain in place, while we adjust and modify short term
plans to protect our business franchise and profits as needed.

Solid progress has been made in building bench strength and
process enhancement for the Group over these years. We will carry
on the momentum and have also started selected transformation
in key digital technology and production areas to support our
growth. We will continue to protect our fundamentals and execute
our plans to sustain and grow our market share, brand equity,
business profitability, employee engagement and stakeholder
satisfaction.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin,
profit for the year, inventory and trade receivable turnover days.

Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group’s revenue increased
by 6% to HK$6,107 million. The increase was contributed by
volume growth, price adjustments, sales mix improvement and
the appreciation of the Renminbi. Commodity price hikes led to
a decrease in gross profit margin by 4 percentage points to 19%.
Profit for the year decreased by 28% to HK$257 million, a result of
decrease in gross profit margin mitigated by effective control over
operating costs.

B2 )

HEENTHAPNEERET » RAES UK K
FASEEENEERRMEmA T ZHREM
BBz AW BATTS2HEMORY
KEg o AH[RRIBSMEER - AEGHE
EEFKE UEHERPERIEEEMT
B BEEBENRERERER - RFRA
RERAARRN  THEAKENRENE

e BPFRBE  REKBESNERKA
FH - BREMEREZEZARNE IR
BIRER MM EBELNFE -

ZER  AEEEMNRE D MEARELER
BTREER  -BMKEBERESZHE  LHEH
BOBBEMANEEESRMEEEER . B
XFEMANER - HATSEBERERMNE
BRELHAITEE - EFFEMEMANT S
R mBREE XBBANED ETSHEM
FOERSE -

Bt %5 Bl

UTHEZXRAER(EZZXRREER])  #H#
REEEBRELAREEETE  BIERAFEFE
EERBRIRBEURERE  TEXRBEFE
BRA - ERR - XFEGF FEREZE
WERF EEXH -

B

REBE-_Z-—FEXA=Z1+HLEE  X&H
ZHEW A 6% E B #6,107,000,0007T °
BRETVERESIEN - EXAE HEAHS XK
EURARBHENZ - BMmERLREHE
FMETBIMEEDEE19% o REEEFRD
28% &8 #257,000,0007t - TEREBAM
RERERARBRETERNETBNEE -

MIE(EB)BRAR | — 2 - —FFRH 17



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
7% O B

18 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022




REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2022, the Group had a cash balance of HK$1,541
million (2021: HK$1,485 million). About 65% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi, 34% in Hong Kong dollars and 1% in
other currencies. In addition, the Group invested in fixed income
government bonds in Mainland China and equity securities listed in
Hong Kong with carrying amounts of HK$24 million (2021: HK$68
million) and HK$94 million (2021: HK$82 million) respectively as at
30 June 2022.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and not yet drawn
as at 30 June 2022 amounted to HK$659 million (2021: HK$610
million).

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodity price risk and currency risk
for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2022, the inventory turnover days' were 65 days (2021:
72 days). The trade receivable turnover days? remained at a stable
level of 18 days (2021: 18 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

i The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days.

2 The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the

closing balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ revenue and
multiplied by 91 days.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars, and Macau Patacas.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group's cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 24(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange losses for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Equity Price Exposure

The Group maintains an investment portfolio which comprises
equity securities listed in Hong Kong for investment yield
enhancement purpose. Equity investments are subject to asset
allocation limits.

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$108 million (2021: HK$140 million) on construction of
new plant and new production lines in China and acquisition of
other plant equipment and intangible assets.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
25(a) to the financial statements.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2022, there were 1,675 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. In addition, the Company also operates a share option
scheme for granting of options to eligible employees.

RELATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

SEALE
Lam Soon High-end Bakery National Tradeshows 2022 with 21 April, 9 June 2022
the theme of “Devoted to Excellence” — Shenzhen Station, 2022%F 48218 - 6 A9H

Changsha Station
AT D o 57 o #5F o 2131 |BERER2022F ES in & P EI1T —
wYNE - KRR
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

EELE
The Sixth Louis e Lesaffre Cup International Selections for September 2021 to
Bakery — China Selection February 2022
ERERS « LKHBEMERBBEABTEEHERE 2021598 £2022%2A4
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

The Bakery China Summit 2021, exclusively title-sponsored November 2021
by Lam Soon, was held in Shanghai 20215F11 8
HMIERRTEE (F6/ETEFEEHBEGIEERE) NLEEET

Esitie: PERISEEASXSIEET

Lam Soon Flour and ABC Cooking Studio held a technical November 2021
exchange meeting for baking 2021%F11A8
R BEE ) B RHE B ZE ABC Cooking StudioE TSR MR AL
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

More than 135 Product Demonstrations were nationally
held for merchants and potential customers throughout the

year
P EEREETEN IS EAERNEBEERTFEBEB1355
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards

REERRIT

Jiangsu Lam Soon Food
Company Limited was
awarded the Chinese
national key leading
enterprise in agricultural
industrialisation
THEIERMERATKER
EXEECEREHEARDE

/

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products
Limited was awarded the Economic Development
Contribution Award in 2021 by the CPC Luopu
Street Committee
BMNEIEE2ARERARNEFHRHEIFEES
BER_E_-—FEEBRRRERME

/

Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food Company Limited was
awarded the Ill-Grade Enterprise of Work Safety
Standardisation by the Ministry of Emergency

Management of the People’s Republic of China ma ) REARLG
EIE()IDERERAREFEARINEESEE
HERREEEREC=REE o R

SOT—Rami—i

“AXE" was awarded the Superb Family Brand and Superior

Brand Award under the Super Brands Award activity held by
PARKNSHOP (HK) Limited

[FHEE REREREMBAREZEZERERER ERET @
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERBRES

About Lam Soon
Our Sustainability Mission and Vision

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company” or “Lam Soon”)
and together with its subsidiaries referred to as the (“Group”) is
built on the strong heritage of value creation for our stakeholders
and communities within which we operate. Over the years, we
have taken a progressive approach in integrating sustainability
into our operations, towards a stronger, more resilient group. We
are committed to: growing our businesses responsibly, balancing
environmental with economic considerations, as well as creating
a positive impact for our stakeholders and contributing to our
communities.

Our Values
The Group continues to strive for excellence in its day-to-day

business operations and embrace the following core values in all
aspects:

BEAEIE
BANTREAREES RS

FIE(EB)BRAR ([ADF I [FMEIE])ER
HffE2AaB((AEE BRI EABNER
EMmEENtERAIEBEZBREEL - %
FR - BMKRBUEMN S B U HEREAA
BMNEEL  ERESEERAREE - K
fzh : LEEENEERRRMMNES - F
BREESBEEZREE UARB/FHERER
BEERRBTEEL TR -

HANEESR

FEEBBETAREREBEPEREL - AE
BERHERAUTZOMEE :

N
Honour To conduct business with honour
BE UEEB2ANETEY
Human To enhance the quality of human resources — N
resources as the essence of management excellence
ABEIR RAANNEREE - R BER B8 /
Entrepreneurship To pursue management vision and foster entrepreneurship
hEBS BREEBRNIZFFLFEEN
. | . N
Innovation To nurture and be committed to innovation
Rl KRER B DA
li To provide products and services that consistently exceed customers’
oIl expectations
B5E .
HERMBHEFHENER KRS /
Progress To continuously improve existing operations and to position
ﬁ*lg for expansion and new business opportunities
= FENERBEEURRER D ENERIETEE
Unit To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and friendship in N
n@:‘:y the pursuit of prosperity for all
= FRERRIINER - BREZE— - M RAFEREH TG
:‘S:SCI?)Insibilit To create wealth for the betterment of society
e A R SIS E R
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About Lam Soon (continued)
Our Values (continued)

These intrinsic values form a major part of the Group’s core value
system and have served as the foundation for its sustainable
growth and development.

Our Business

Lam Soon has been publicly listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 1972. The Group
is headquartered in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, trading and processing of food and home care
products in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. The Group comprises
a broad portfolio of famous brands which include “Knife”, “Red
Lantern”, “AXE", “Labour”, “Golden Statue”, “American Roses”,
“Royal Sakura” and “Double Peach”.

About This Report

Reporting Standard

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report (the "Report”) of the Company, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting
Guide as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and Guidance issued by the Stock Exchange. The Group has
complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide during the Reporting Period (as defined
below).

Reporting Period

From 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

This Report covers the Group’s overall environmental performance
in the manufacture and distribution of food and home care
products in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which accounted for
98% of the Group's total revenue during the Reporting Period.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s major operational sites
were:

(i) the Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong comprising the
headquarters office, the edible oil plant, and the logistic
fleet;

(i) the Shenzhen office in Shekou, Shenzhen of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC");

(iii) the five flour mills in Shekou (Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan,
Qionglai and Qingzhou of the PRC;
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About This Report (continued)

Reporting Scope (continued)

(iv) the edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen of the PRC;

(v) the homecare product plant in Guangzhou of the PRC; and
(vi)  the specialty fats plant in Jintan of the PRC.

The logistic fleet in Hong Kong and the specialty fats plant in
Jintan of the PRC are newly added to the reporting scope of the
Report this year. The environmental performance of the business
operation in Macau, the sales offices in Beijing and Shanghai were
not reported as they did not have significant ESG impact during
the Reporting Period.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We focus on issues with high importance to the
Group and our stakeholders. Various material sustainability issues
were identified through our interaction with internal management
and staff as well as external stakeholders. These material
sustainability issues form the basis for preparing this Report.

Quantitative: In order to set a measurable target and evaluate
the ESG performance more objectively, quantitative information
is provided, where appropriate. A data collection tool is used to
record and monitor various environmental and social indicators.

Balance: We review and disclose our achievements, areas for
improvement and future action plans in this Report to provide an
unbiased picture of our ESG performance.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the methodologies used
in this Report are consistent with prior year for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG
approach and performance. Please contact us via email at
webmaster@lamsoon.com.
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Our Approach to Sustainability R ABEEZRRENFE

Environmental, Social and Governance Management R HESRELANER

The Group sees the benefits of proactively tackling ESG issues, NREBEFEPREBEEREIBIE 2R EABEY
believing that its strategic focus on sustainability and its ability to i HEEYHUBERRCABREGREE
manage associated ESG risks can create not only tangible value for IBHERERE 2 REREMBMEE D > NMER
its business, but also long-term value for its employees, customers, DAEXKAEEE  TANLAHEET - &
the environment and the broader society. F BREREZNHERIERRAES -

The Group formalised its ESG Governance Structure in November REBR-_ZE-_ESEEFE+—HFFERXEITIBIE -
2020, in which the board of directors of the Company HERELANEELRE  HRAATNESS
(the “Board”) oversees the sustainability management and ([BEE=g ) EEEBAERENEERXRENERE
performance of the Group and undertakes overall responsibility for REH I2EHEEREERNRE HELE
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has dedicated ARBERER - REBBRINBERESTHEH(L
its efforts to ensuring compliance with relevant legal and MHRBY P 2 B EEFNEEER -
regulatory requirements as described in the latest Listing Rules.

ESG Governance Structure at Lam Soon HIENEE HEREANESELEE

o To have overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG and oversee
Board of Directors the sustainability and climate change risk management and
A performance of the Group.

HAKENRR HEREAETEERES  UEBEAKEAREF
BRRERBEEZLEAREERRKRR -

N

To assist the Board to oversee the Group's overall risk management and
governance issues including, among others:

HEENE UC T EGE B EEREEAEENEEEREEREAEE » E A

Risk Management
Committee
EEgEakER
EEZEY

° To monitor the ESG reporting progress.
EERIRE HEBREAREEE -
o To review the ESG report as well as the ESG related risks and issues.

FHRE  HERERBRERERE  HERESHERAREEE -

ESG Task Force
o To develop and oversee ESG strategies and to monitor overall ESG
ﬁ&:] BE HER P J
performance.

L Pl S HEREERS HRREARMRETES HEREAZER
Group Managing Director 1 o
REESEEE . o To implement the strategies, setting their respective actions and
Chief Fmanctal Officer goals, devising and implementing related plans and policies.
BERIBEE B HIEESENADREE - SIER BRI BREE -
Gen.eral mahagers o e To work with business units and departments on a regular basis to
Q?[ﬂesiujgi_ collect data, track operational performance and coordinating the
= ﬁﬁgm"‘?"&@ . preparation of the ESG report.
HEECS O VEHIOUS HURCHONS SR E Y RSN ERS - RS ERTR DR

&2 Pl s
b LeEa B HEREERE ©

/
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
ESG Governance Structure at Lam Soon (continued)

The Group also incorporates ESG and major climate-related risks
into its Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") Framework, where
the processes for controls and risk management have been
embedded into its daily operations and decision-making process.
Under the Group’s ERM Framework, a structured approach
was employed on an ongoing basis to identify, assess, treat,
monitor and report on the key risks affecting the sustainability
of the Group’s business. During the Reporting Period, we have
identified, assessed, and prioritised physical risk and transition
risk as our climate-related risks within our ERM Framework, and
corresponding risk management programs. Actions have been
developed and implemented with the objective to bring them
under the Group’s overall risk appetite level and enhance business
resilience to climate change.

For details of the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the Section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Four-Pillar Approach to Sustainability

The Group believes that an effective ESG management structure
is a key factor to business success and has therefore adopted
an integrated four-pillar approach to its overall sustainability
management of ESG issues on the environment, human capital,
corporate governance and social capital.
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EZIKE’\JE%% CHERERAEE -

ESG Management Approach
RIE-#HERER

PILLAR 1 PILLAR 2 PILLAR 3
XHE— XHE= XHE=

44 2\

T/ ANY 44 2\

Towards Empowering
our People

MEETFHRMHET

a Greener Future

BRI ERRAR

Conducting Business
with Honour

LU BETER

RYE IR 75 &t

PILLAR 4
XM

44 2\

Caring for
our Community

BARAL A
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they bring potential insights to the Group’s business. To ensure
its business focus remains relevant, the Group commissioned
an independent consultant to conduct stakeholder survey and
materiality assessments in 2020 to engage and gauge feedbacks
from internal and external stakeholders. Besides, we regularly
communicate with our shareholders and understand their
expectations on us through a range of communication channels.
Through identifying areas of improvement and maintaining close
communication with various stakeholders, the Group aims to
consistently enhance its ESG performance and management.

Stakeholder Group

BMAHAFERBOT & e
HHESR

AEEREFNENERRRE BAEEHMHE
HHSEANEENERBREANNE - BER
HEKSHNEEYE  AEBR=Z-TFZF
ABYEMEBENEETRASREEZHIM
LTHERREWERNDBIMNBEFNENRE - It
S BPEB—RIMNBBERE  THERR
BB ORATHEMMERMNEE - BBEA
EERENEEVHSERERIEZIER -
AEEEETHIIRSHRE HERERRE
REEKF o

FHE4A R Communication Channel EIEEE
Management and Employees Annual conferences F8
EEERET Appraisal sessions FEEE

Employee engagement and team ET2HNEBER TS

building activities

Internal e-newsletters — E-Post NP E F B — E-Post

Interviews Bilia

Intranet A B

Meetings %E%

Mediation team FAERNE

Labour union Is

Notice boards BT ERE
Customers Customer hotlines BEFEZ
BE Customer satisfaction surveys BEREERE

Website and social media platforms Fuh AR IR e
Investors/Shareholders Annual and interim reports FIRF P HIRE
BEERHE Annual General Meeting (AGM) RERBAFES(EEES)

Official website B R Huh

Press releases and announcements FrERA DM
Suppliers and Business Partners Tendering and procurement BERKEEBSE
HEBMERSEZMHE communication

Regular evaluation E,HHE‘WEE

Conference calls ESf

Meetings =i

Workshops T1EH
Industry Association/ Industry forum TEEHE

Regulators/Media Official website B A HEuh

TERS (EETHIE Press Releases and Announcements HERA DM
Community Partners/NGOs Community engagement HESH
HEEGEREME FEBFAS ESG Report BRI - S RERRE

Social Media R B

Volunteering and charitable activities

S FEBR M 2 &5 BY

MR (EE

JERAE | —F - _—FFH
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HMY T HFEEREO T & @
EEMSH

Our Approach to Sustainability (ontinued)
Materiality Analysis

R-ZZRHE  AREXERRFNESHEE
B EEATHEHBBI008F0EEE UK
SEHRMERRETHRE HERERK
BENREBENER - RETEBZREE - RN
HBET2EUFERRBZE(WTRAR)
FFHEES(MIKREEZTEE » [5]K
RFFER)NGERHEARENAEEREY
EITHER ©

In 2020, the Group conducted a comprehensive stakeholder
engagement which involved over 100 stakeholders via surveys
to collect their feedback and recommendation on our ESG
performance in various topics. Based on the industry trend and
benchmarks, we identified a total of 21 sustainability issues
(as shown in table below) for stakeholders to rank its relative
importance to the Group on a scale of 1 to 5 (with “1” being not
important at all and 5" being very important).

Material Topics for Lam Soon

MIENEERE

PILLAR 1 PILLAR 2 PILLAR 3
XHE— XE= XE=

44 2\

Towards
a Greener Future

BRI EREAR

e Carbon emissions and
energy efficiency
BRI N BEIR X 2=

e Water management
RKEE

e Waste management
BEYEE

e Packaging materials
BEMH

e Pollution mitigation
AT F

e Climate change
mitigation and
adaptation
EERRERREZL

e Deforestation and
Biodiversity
MEFMREN S
i

44 2\

Empowering
our People

BETEMHET

e Equal opportunities
FERE

e Fair labour practices
NEHE TIEH

e Employee welfare and
engagement
EEGARSH

e Employee well-being,
health and safety
EERL - #RER
£

e Employee
Development
EERRE

44 2\

Conducting Business
with Honour

LR BETER

e Product quality
and safety
EmEEHTR

e Marketing and
labelling
EIHERR

e Procurement practices
BB BB

e Cyber security and
data privacy
P2 EBIETR

e Intellectual property
S ERE

e Corporate governance
TEER

e Economic performance
KERE

e Business ethics and
compliance

BXERRER
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Caring for
our Community

BRI BT

e Community investment
HERE
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Our Approach to Sustainability (ontinued)
Materiality Analysis (continued)

A materiality matrix was developed from the results of the
stakeholder engagement exercise conducted with internal and
external stakeholders through an online survey. ESG Issues for
disclosure in this Report were identified by considering the
relevance of each ESG Issue to the operations and stakeholders of
the Group.

Upon analysing the survey results as adjusted by peers’ materiality,
14 issues were identified within the “Priority” area, while
the remaining 7 were identified within the “Significant” and
“Moderate” areas of the materiality matrix. Among all issues,
“employee well-being, health and safety”, “product quality and
safety” and “corporate governance” were the top three material
sustainability issues. The results in the materiality analysis were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board.

Materiality Matrix

<
[}
© B 16]
2 4]
9 B 5]
T
5
(Y3} E
2 M ®
(O]
o R
S &
t =
o M
o
£
O Moderstes® Sigifcant B

Importance to Business ¥T 3% EE M

Carbon emissions and energy efficiency

B HE R BEIR B 2

Equal opportunities
FEHE

1 8

nagement Fair labour practices

° ATmmTEs

2 Water ma

AKERE
Waste management
By EE

4 Packaging materials
BEMNH

Pollution mitigation

W TTHR

" EaEfpss

1

3
EERL - RREZR
5

Climate change mitigation and adaptation

ERRERRIRE

Product quality and safety
EmEEHEZE

Deforestation and Biodiversity

IR R E M SR

Marketing and labelling

14

mIE(ZE)BRAA |

Employee welfare and engagement

Employee well-being, health and safety

Employee Development

12 19
EBEEE

13

— T —FFR

BB A SEERRNT & @)
B E 4 ()

REBBESATRANIB R DEETH
FOESREFINGER  RMCHEEEME
o BRERERE HEREAREELE
EEERFOVENEBL  RABRETARSE
TERRENRE HEREREE-

HRAEERETONAERBERITHERMET
ARR  MEREREEBRERMERHH
(B 1B MAKR7TEZERRBEEBRE
BEIRIHE|EE - EFERET  [EER
i REREzE ] [EREEEZE R[4
ERIR=ZAEETFHEMSRE - EEMOTH
EROCRESSEHRAT -

EEMERE

@ Pillar 1: Towards a Greener Future
FHE—  BEERRRR

[ Pillar 2: Empowering our People
T HETFRMNET

@ Pillar 3: Conducting Business

with Honour

RS EBETER

@ Pillar 4: Caring for our Community
RATM : BAIRALRE

Priority {85

Procurement practices

B gmmm

Cyber security and data privacy
RigZ 2 EHIEAR

1

Intellectual property

HBERE

Corporate governance

6
17
8 e
TEER

1

Economic performance
BERE

Business ethics and compliance

BXEERES

Community investment

HEBRE
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BLOEBR&FFKXEK ]

Key Achievements T EX i

4 A \ Y

Established Climate Change Policy to set out our commitment to mitigate and adapt the impact
of climate change.

FERMRBBER - SHARMEERERRIRB B NHAE

Conducted climate risk assessment to identify, analyse and evaluate the potential physical and
transition risks to enhance Group's climate resilience.

ETRRER L - AR - 2T RAMEEENERBERR - UMREAREENRREESD

by installing 542 solar PV modules on the rooftop of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong.
SHEAEEHERAD(HFENNIUBLERLAEETE | EEERERENERZET
542{EARFSRESARABMF ©

Replaced 70 induction lights with LED high bay lights for Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong.
ABBMIEAEER70ERERBLEDITEE -

Achieved 76% diversion rate for non-hazardous waste and maintained 100% recycling rate for
hazardous waste in all manufacturing plants.

I Participated in CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff Scheme
I BEBEVIREERTC%  REERENEEEEYERERERFR100% °

A
Environmental Management RIRERE

We aim to reduce waste and improve efficiency in energy EPHEEZEEREERENLERHLE  HAPR
and use of resources, starting from the humblest of steps EREBEFRHERFBAHNE LHEHEB/
and seek to entrench the philosophy into a Group-wide EESKEREEEYEERENEZRR L -
awareness and culture of caring for the environment.

The Group pledges to make continuous improvement in managing NEBEEIZERNESHEKR - 5Kk - EEEY
and monitoring its emissions, wastewater, solid waste and noise REESENEERER - AEESFEE)
pollution. Every year, through engaging external licensed testing M EAHESREETHEZEREAR » U
laboratories, various environmental tests are conducted to RIEREEETI( T HEREEEEEERIEIE
evaluate the capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory RERBREZEZEED -

and environmental requirements and national standards based on

the parameters obtained.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Environmental Management (continued)
The Group strictly abides by the laws, rules and regulations

enforced in relation to environmental protection and pollution
control, including but not limited to the following:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC;

. Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution;

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste;

° Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC;

° Directory of National Hazardous Wastes;

° The Administrative Measures for Hazardous Waste Transfer
Manifests;

o Regulations on Environmental Protection in Guangdong
Province;

o Regulations on Prevention and Control of Environmental

Pollution by Solid Waste in Guangdong Province;

o Measures for the Management of Hazardous Waste
Transfer in Shenzhen;

o Environmental Protection Regulations of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone; and

o Measures for the Management of Municipal Domestic
Waste (Decree No. 157 of the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC).

MIE(FE)ERAR | T

xE—[BRERRRRK]

REE(#)

ZIKEIE‘EFF%}E#’%EE RIBRE KT RZEH AE
ERRRE  BEETRRUTEIA

(PEAREXNMBRRFREL)

(hEAREMBERRITRREEE)

(REARAMBIASREEEE) |

(FEARANBEEBENTRERENR

AEY S

(REARAMBE TITTRIEE)

(B fEbmpEy &%)

(BN EBHEETEMIL)

(ERERBHRERERA)

(BEREEREISRRERARKRAD

CRYIm ERENEREERE)

CRUIEBERRRERERDD S &

CETEFENREEREN(PEARL
FIRE RIS E15798) ©
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Environmental Management (continued)

No cases of material non-compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
air and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
were recorded during the Reporting Period.

In addition to complying with laws and regulations at national/
provincial/city level, the Group also follows industry standards to
monitor its environmental performances.

For air emissions, the Group is committed to complying with:

° The Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers
(DB44/765-2019 and GB 13271-2014);

. The Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

° The Integrated Emission Standard for Air Pollutants (GB
16297-1996); and

o The Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019) in Shandong Province.

For the discharge of water pollutants, the Group is committed to
complying with:

° The Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

o The National Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996); and

o Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers (GB/T 31962-2015).

For noise pollution, the Group controls the noise generated from
production activities in compliance with:

o The Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary (GB 12348-2008).

The Group continuously monitors its air emission, wastewater
discharge and noise level to control and manage the impact on
the surrounding environment and to create a healthy environment
for its workers. Regular maintenance of machines and equipment
is enforced to prevent excessive noise generation. The Group did
not receive any complaints from the surrounding communities
regarding air pollution, odour, noise, or night light pollution
during the Reporting Period.

X

(&)

[ BRI EREARR ]

REE(E)

RBEYE - TEXLEFMEXREREEE
#FEARRENSHYAEBEREAS
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B EARIHNERYUAREERERES
EH)
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. CIBIE R RIS R Y HEHRAZZLE) (DB44/765-
2019K% GB 13271-2014) ;

« (EREAR
2001) ;

55 R BE M BRE ) (DB44/27-
. (RBTERYEREBERIZZE) (GB 16297-
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38 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HEREABHRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Air Pollutant Emissions

All air-borne emissions are strictly monitored by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. All sampling results from our
plants were within permissible levels stated by various emission
standards, including the Determination of Toxic Substances in
Workplace Air — Chloride (GB Z/T160.37-2004).

The Group has made relentless efforts on emission reduction
through various initiatives and policies. Our operational site
operates a natural gas-fuelled boiler with high efficiency and low
NOx emissions. The flour mills are equipped with dust collector
systems for collection and removal of airborne dust generated
during the flour production processes. When the air containing
flour dust passes through the filter, the flour dust is captured and
circulated back into the production processes. Then the filtered air
is released into the atmosphere via exhaust pipes mounted on the
building’s walls or roof. The filters and exhaust pipes are constantly
being monitored by the production team. In addition, a third-
party testing organization is invited each year regularly for testing.
According to the testing report, the actual concentration of
particles (up to 20mg/m?3) was found to be lower than the national
standard (120mg/m?). During the Reporting Period, edible oil plant
in Shekou started the retrofit of two boilers to further reduce the
NOx emissions limit from 150mg/m? to 30mg/m?.

To further reduce air emissions, our operational sites have
upgraded all forklift trucks to electric-powered models, resulting
in lower fuel consumption and exhaust emission. The Group has
an internal guideline on the purchase of hybrid electric vehicles
aiming at further minimising fuel consumption and GHG emission.
The new staff canteen uses electricity rather than LPG to reduce
air pollution caused by catering service. Fume exhaust generated
from canteen operations in other plants is purified by electrostatic
precipitator before releasing into the atmosphere.

Air pollutant emissions of all business operations

X
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Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20

By —B-F —— —E—f—EE
Air Pollutant Emissions
ZERITREWHER
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx") kg 1,745.75 82.07 133.21
E=R (7] F=
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") kg 2.11 0.64 0.70
mED F=
Respiratory suspended particles kg 108.38 2.28 2.39

(“RSP")
CILNPN =2 v Fr
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Air Pollutant Emissions (continued)

Air pollutant emissions of all business operations (continued)

Note:

- Emission factors were revised to make reference to Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the
Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

- Significant increase in air pollutant emissions due to the expansion
of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in Jintan PRC and
the logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They have contributed 1,673.13 kg
NOx, 1.56 kg SOx and 106.34 kg RSP during the Reporting Period.

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business operations
resulted in GHG emission of 41,398.18 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCO,e"), mainly carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide and hydro fluorocarbons. The overall intensity of the GHG
emissions for the Group was 0.05 tCO,e/tonne of production
volume. The major sources of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for
the Group came from production activities, canteen operations
and mobile vehicles. The GHG reported arose from the following
activities and scopes:

o Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from the combustion of
various fuels in stationary and mobile sources, and release
of refrigerants;

o Energy Indirect (scope 2) GHG emissions from purchased
electricity; and

o Other Indirect (scope 3) GHG emissions from business air
travel, freshwater and sewage processing, and paper waste
disposal at landfills.

To reduce scope 1 GHG emissions, refrigerants with lower
Global Warming Potential were chosen. R22 refrigerant has been
replaced by R32 refrigerant in our operational sites. For scope
2 GHG emissions, the electricity consumed by the Group during
the Reporting Period was 66,819,191.40 Kilowatt-hour (“kWh").
Overall energy intensity was 77.79 kWh/tonne of production
volume. Types of energy consumed included electricity, natural
gas, LPG, biofuel, petrol and diesel.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

The Group continues exploring new energy-saving opportunities
and energy-efficient technologies for its premises and production
lines with a view to reducing energy consumption and GHG
emissions. Priority is always given to energy-efficient equipment
with Grade 1 energy label when selecting cooling system.

To support the use of clean energy, the Group took part in the
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") Renewable Energy Feed-in
Tariff Scheme by installing 542 pieces of 220-kW solar PV module
on the rooftop of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong. The solar PV
system commenced operation in November 2019 and supplied
electricity of 676,972 kWh to CLP’s power grid as of 30 June 2022.
In Mainland China, solar panels are under installation in two flour
plants and will be put into operation by the end of 2022. The solar
power project has also been kicked off for the remaining flour
plants. These projects aim at providing sufficient electricity supply
to avoid operation disruption during peak demand in electricity
and also achieving carbon reduction across operation processes.

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&

B = SR B8 BE R R A (4T

FEERBAHBEREERRRMAOEER
ERBERRMUBDEREERREREH
W BEBEHSESK  RNERELZEWEAE
1RBEFRBAVETRERRAE

BAETERRERENER  AXEEZSMPEESH
BRAB(THEDNWMAIBEER ERAEET
B TEBMIBERENRIERE 754288220
TRHARBGEXRREHF - KBEXREERZ
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NEBE=Z+TBCERAHENESRMHEECT6972TR
BF o PAFREIARE - WS EE L3 KB58E
B WERZBE__FRAIRAFEH - 64
TEMBOABGREZEEEE FNEXKE - 258
EEERBAZESHHEE  UBRREHNEX
SIEHEREERE  ARSRBEZSERR
BIBOREE ©

The solar PV modules installed at the roof top of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong

REBEIBERENEERZEHRGELRAHF
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

The Group receives continuous support from CLP Eco Building
Fund. In 2022, 70 pieces of induction lights have been changed to
LED High Bay Light, saving 48% electricity consumption per year.
Some of the plants in Mainland China are also equipped with LED
lighting system. The refurbishment work is expected to be scaled
up across the business units in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)

R = SR B8 BE R R IR A (4T

FEEFEESTERERFESNZE - R
ZEICF RMEKT0OERERERALED
THRE  SEHHEI8%MNENHIE - PE KK
HE TREREH T LEDIRBAR A - A EH
ITREEAZEEBRPEAENEESE

Certificate” by CLP for participating in CLP’s Peak
Demand Management Programme 2020
mMIEERRATRSEHRE
SEAEEE 1202081 EMEE [ BHESE ]

N

Lam Soon Realty Limited was awarded “Appreciation

LA SO0M REALTY LTD

Furthermore, system upgrades on programmable logic controllers
(“PLCs") have been completed for our operational site. The
strengthened control over production equipment reduces engine
idling and thus improves the overall energy efficiency. Old
machinery (e.g., blowers and motors) was replaced with energy-
saving models. Designed with energy efficiency up to 94%, a
new natural gas boiler with a fully automatic condensing system
for energy-saving has been in operation at the edible oil plant in
Shekou since 2019. In addition, the preservation for boilers has
been changed from wet method using steam to dry method using
chemicals, saving more than 4,700 m? natural gas for generating
steam annually. Heat insulation building design was adopted in
our specialty fats plant, reducing energy use to maintain thermal
comfort.

BEoh - RIFINEIEB T T o R 2 B &
B2 ([PLCS ) RERFHAR o MsR¥ 4 EREHIRS
AR BT E  RMIES BN o AR
HATHREXE(HINSAKNREEE) - B
ZE-NFUR - MEEEZEERRASNT
AARBECREONERBRBAEE R
FHEE S E94% o Lo SBIERECHFERR
ANRANAFEALCERNEL  BEYUHHE
B4, 700 FREERAHWRAR - RIS
Emls MR AR AR LR BABREAU
R EE -
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency BEREBHER KRR (&)

(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of

all business operations

RE  #HERERBRES

(&)

xE—[BRERRRRK]

FrERBEEZ BERBHMREFEHE

Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
1Y —E-% /--F —T-h /-%F
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBHN
Scope 1 Direct emission’
gz BiEHER
Natural gas? tCO,e 270.66 58.06 114.37
RAR? W —E b EE
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG") tCO.e 0.25 0.17 0.87
B AR (CR{IeARR LD W —E L EE
Diesel? tCO,e 272.25 4.15 3.47
B M —E bR EE
Petrol tCO,e 102.51 116.15 125.12
i W —E b EE
Biofuel tCO,e 3.42 3.43 3.32
LR W —E bR EE
Refrigerants tCO,e 171.09 140.77 57.71
42 B W —EbixEE
Scope 2 Energy indirect emission
g2 HE IR 8 42 B BR
Purchased electricity? tCO,e 40,374.70 38,141.58 37,943.17
BE: W —E L EE
Scope 3 Other indirect emission
HilE3  HABEEHER
Paper waste disposed of at tCO,e 19.43 66.43 63.56
landfills
HIEERREENER WS RE R
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency BERBHHRRERNE (&)

(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of

FEXRBEBECRERBHUREFREFEE

all business operations (continued) (#&
Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
By Lol @t T T ——F _—ZT—H/"FTF
Freshwater processing tCO,e 81.52 71.70 68.15
KK BRI M-S REE
Sewage processing tCO,e 15.69 33.69 31.49
BE XK BR3E M-S tRES
Business air travel® tCO,e 86.66 115.51 156.33
BT ZE = ke M-S RES
Total GHG emission tCO,e 41,398.18 38,751.55 38,567.56
BEREHENAE M_StREE
GHG emission intensity tCO_e/tonne 0.05 0.04 0.05
of production
volume
BEREBHENEE WoFEtREE
EWMES
Energy Consumption
BEIRH 3%
Electricity® kWh 66,819,191.40 63,277,270.87 60,502,263.00
e Pk FRE
Natural gas® m?3 134,272.97 28,706.40 56,546.50
RARRS M TR
kWh 1,328,138.14 283,944.45 559,320.04
FTRE
LPG kg 84.00 56.00 495.00
RAL B MR T
kWh 1,170.74 780.49 6,899.00
TR
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"Towards a Greener Future”

X

HERERBES

[ BRI EREARR ]

(continued) (#&)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency EEREHER RN ()

(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of TEXBEBC BEREHMREEREES

all business operations (continued) (&)

Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
By i —E-h/ZEF
Diesel® L 103,293.42 1,584.38 1,175.00
E::R F
kWh 1,032,758.36 15,841.10 11,748.00
TR
Petrol L 38,546.16 43,666.95 46,508.00
b F
kWh 343,102.93 388,683.55 413,972.00
TR
Biofuel®” L 6,340.00 6,360.00 6,150.00
4 YRRt 7 FH
kWh 30,781.47 30,878.58 29,859.00
TRE
Total energy consumption kWh 69,555,143.04 63,997,399.04 61,524,061.04
RERHEAS FE&
Energy consumption intensity kWh/tonne 77.79 72.66 74.25
of production
volume
BERHFERE TERE SWER

Notes: Bat -

1. Emission factors (“EFs”) were made reference to Appendix 27 to 1. MREEHBIN  FERABTHRARE]D 2
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the Z F iR Al ER27 B R AHENSE S -
Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

2. Significant increase in Scope 1 GHG emissions due to the expansion 2. HRBEHEREAZEEPESENEER
of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in Jintan PRC EREEENYRER BB IREREH
and the logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They have contributed 219.91 MEEREMN - HEHEREYRERCDFEA
tCO,e natural gas and 254.43 tCO,e diesel. 2199 —FbiEERARK254.430 =

SRS 508 -

3. Significant increase in Scope 2 GHG emission due to the expansion 3. HRBRESHERAZEREPESENEER
of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in Jintan PRC EREEEBNYRER  BE2REREH
and the logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They have contributed 661.45 WEEE M - %E/EEHE RYIRERE A
tCO,e of purchased electricity. EF of 0.39 kg CO,e/kWh was 66145 —F{tMEERE - EEZBE
adopted for purchased electricity in Hong Kong. EF of 0.6101 A E’J?iFEiZ%?K%E?EH%O.BFFﬁ:'%:Mt
kg CO,e/kWh was adopted for purchased electricity in Mainland MEE - BAEAZEBESRANERRES
China. BTEREFGIIFTR_ALLRESE -

4. CO, emissions from the Group'’s business air travels were reported 4. AEEMEFBEREEN _—SLRFEKE
in accordance with the International Civil Aviation Organisation TR BB R AMZE AR ([1CA0 D Bk kst
("ICAQ") Carbon Emission Calculator. ERERSE
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of
all business operations (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5. Significant increase in energy consumption due to the expansion of
reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in Jintan PRC and the
logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They have contributed 109,096.00 m?
natural gas, 96,101.61 L diesel and 1,084,165.00 kWh electricity,
resulting in a 3,124,121.95 kWh increase in total energy consumption.

6. EF of biofuel used in canteen operations was assumed to be 0.54
tCO,e/tonne, by referring to the Methanol Institute Specifications.

7. Energy density of 9,500 BTU/pound was adopted for biofuel
calculation, by referring to the Methanol: Properties and Uses
published by SGS.

The Group has developed GHG emission and energy use targets

HEREAHRES

X

(&)

[ BRI EREARR ]

R = SR B8 BE R R IR A (4T

FEXRBEBECRERBHUREFREFEE
(%)
HizE : (%)

5. HRBRESEEAZEETRSENERE
HEREE BN ARER  RERE
ERNo-BEHEREYAEEREER
109,096.003Z R KRR ~ 96,101.61F 4
%% 1,084,165.00 T FLBS B h » EHEFHE
FEEBRI3,124,121.95T R -

6. BBESERRWRMAGAL BRAYES
o6 P A MR 6 1 R B S R0 541
ST

7. BBSESGSHRMWCRE : HMHEAR)
R ERE SRR, 500BTUSTEEMRE o

FEECEREERE HEREREHFHKER

of manufacturing plants' to monitor the performance on GHG FRERE  UESBEEREERKRMEIEEREN
emission and energy consumption reductions: *IA
GHG Emission and Energy Use Targets
BERBERREREABR
Target Base Year Performance in
Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2021/22
=
EEFE BEFE B RS ERFERR “ZEZRR
2018/19 2025 To reduce electricity intensity by 7% 70.18 kWh/tonnes  71.58 kWh/tonnes
of production of production
volume volume
ZE-N-NE ZEEF BAEREREI% BWES BWES
70.18 F Rl 71.58F R &
2018/19 2025 To reduce electricity-led carbon intensity 0.04 tCO,e/tonnes 0.04 tCO,e/tonnes
(Scope 2) by 8% of production of production
volume volume
ZE-N-NWE ZEDEF AEELNIRE (8B2)FEs% SWEE0.04M  SWER0.04M
—EtmER —EtmRER

46

Manufacturing plants include the five flour mills in Shekou L
(Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC, the
edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC and Hong Kong,

R ELED ORI

and the homecare product plant in Guangzhou in the PRC.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Water Management

The Group consumes water for its production and domestic
activities. Water consumed by its Hong Kong operations was
supplied by Hong Kong'’s Water Supplies Department, whilst water
consumed by its Mainland China operations was sourced from
the municipal water supply system in their respective locations.
There was no issue identified in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose. The plants have water tanks in place to store water for
emergency use. During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
190,290 m? of freshwater, with a water intensity of 0.21 m?3/
tonne of production volume. All discharges from production
and domestic activities are pre-treated on-site through regularly
maintained grease traps and septic tanks. On-site wastewater
treatment facilities are installed in some of our operational sites for
advanced sewage treatments?. 40% of the wastewater in home
care production plant is treated and reused as flushing water. The
pre-treated wastewater will enter the sewage collection system
and discharge to a nearby municipal sewage pipe network system.

The treated effluent discharged by our operational sites fulfilled
the requirements of permitted discharge limits set by the Discharge
Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001). The home care product
plant monitors chemical oxygen demand (“COD") in real time.
During the Reporting Period, we have engaged third-party testing
organization twice to measure COD, the results were 12mg/L
and 13mg/L respectively, which were lower than the discharge
limit of 100 mg/L, meeting the first-class discharge standard of
Guangzhou, the PRC. The edible oil plant in Shekou performs
regular wastewater testing and the sampling results of COD, pH
value, total suspended solids, and oil and grease were all within
the relevant permissible levels during the Reporting Period.

The Group persistently reduces water loss by maintaining and
upgrading its water supply pipeline system, reducing water
consumption through upgrading water-saving devices and reusing
wastewater whenever possible. Some water-saving initiatives
include:

(i) Establishing regulations on water management to regulate
water consumption practices of employees;

(i) Using cooling water recirculation system for cooling towers;
(iii) Installing automatic faucets;

(iv) Re-using purified reverse osmosis (“RO") water for toilet
flushing and greening of production areas; and

(v) Posting promotional materials and reminders to encourage
water conservation practices.

z Since the flour mills did not generate industrial wastewater, and
the wastewater generated by the edible oil plant in Hong Kong
was minimal, there were no on-site wastewater treatment facilities
provided in these plants.

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(#&)
AkER

AEBNEERBETHIEERAK - FBE
BEWMRAKBEBKEEMHE  MPBEKEEE
B AKBIZEE ST BE KRS - EEES
BEARFTEIEBIBEE - ETEEKFELL
REKEBEAE - RBEHRE - AEEHE
3£190,290 N AKRHEK » Ak BEABHMES
021K e EERBEERBHRNAEERY
HEBEREENR AL RAEMETRETE
HRE  c RMEIBONEE S ZH TRIBEK
BB LUETTI K RERE - REEE
FARBP40% 5 KERBEEH AEDLA
Ko RIBIESRREMNEKEEBSKKRERS
EAMBHRZEN N TEISKERRL ©

BN EES BN ERIBEKFEOKEHR
) BE B BR 1B ) (DB44/26-2001) 7 R I MY 72 3 5E
HIRE -  XEEEARBERENCEREEE
(COD) e HEHER  REEEERITMER
EEAMLERFEEE(COD) - MEMA - RFMKX
ZRAF=FRAKBRBICODE  £RAFA
BANERRSH13ZR » HERFERRES
F1002 = » ZRPEEMNH — R BEHZLE -
HREMBR - BOMNEFAMHEKERETENE
& WECOD » pHE + A TEE N HENE
BRERRATFKFER ©

AEEBEBEER T MEAMRKEERGRITE
HAOKBEK  AREBEAKRBREATERLT
B AREK  fefmDFEK - B2 EKERE
&

(i) AN EEAKEENRELREREEN
AXBIE

(ii) RANBERRBRLANKRE

(i) ZHEBEHHEKEESE

(iv) BEARBEFCREKRSRREEZ
1t &

(v) REASEMHRERUASBEHKEE -

2 HRENBTEETRREK  XEEBRAM
BELENEKEBD  AUZETIHITERER
BREKERIERNE ©
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Water Management (continued)

Our manufacturing plant has formulated Regulations on
Management of Water Usage during the Reporting Period to
regulate rational use of water and promote the conservation of
water resources. In addition, the Administration Department of the
Group has expedited the replacement of old water dispensers to
reduce the consumption of bottled water, reducing bottled water
consumption in Hong Kong's office by 51%.

Water consumption of all business operations

Unit

(i —g=— /==

Water Consumption

AXKE

Absolute Water consumption m?

BERAKE MK

m3/tonne of
production
volume

MK/ BHEE

Water consumption intensity

AKEE

2021/22

190,290.00

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)
RAKEE (&)

ERNEERERBREHAFE T (AAEER
E)AREEIE K RIBERENR  BLI - A
SEATHERC IR E R E SRR R E BUR D
MEKERE  BERAENMENERER

9\510/o°

EREEEZHKE
2020/21 2019/20
—B-F /- BN /-FF
171,865.00 160,658.00
0.21 0.20 0.19

To monitor our progress in water saving, we have set a target to
reduce water intensity:

REERMAEHKITENER  KMASKRER
BRREAKRE :

Water Intensity Reduction Target

FKBRERER R

Target Base Year Performance in

Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2021/22
-z
EEFE BEFE BEFE ERFERR ZZHEZRE
2018/19 2025 To reduce water intensity of our 0.17 m3/tonnes 0.20 m3/tonnes
manufacturing plants® by 3% of production of production
volume volume
—E2-N/ “ECRF RBEEBEWEAKRERE3I% BWES BHES
—hEF 0.173 53K 0.2032 752K
2 The water consumption of the Hong Kong edible oil plant and 3 EEEAMBREENEENAKERHEE—

Hong Kong office is recorded in one master water meter as they
locate in the same building.

BEKER - REBHLRE—BFA o
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Waste Management

The Group generated an approximate total of 36,424 kg of
hazardous waste with an intensity of 0.04 kg/tonne of production
volume and 1,031,545 kg of non-hazardous waste with an
intensity of 1.15 kg/tonne of production volume in the Reporting
Period. Hazardous wastes generated include waste with organic
solvent, waste with mineral oil, waste with dye and coating,
selenium and mercury-containing wastes and other wastes (i.e.
waste containers, capacitors and oil wipes). Non-hazardous wastes
generated comprised of commercial waste, paper, plastic, scrap
metal, sludge and other wastes. Other wastes included sampling
and liquid wastes from manufacturing plants.

The Group is committed to reducing waste generated in our
manufacturing plants and offices and ensuring that both
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are well-managed.

For hazardous wastes, we have appointed licensed operators/
applied industry standard to collect and handle hazardous wastes
prior to disposal. For non-hazardous wastes, centralised waste
collection, storage and transfer facilities for on-site solid wastes
are available in accordance with national standards to maximise
recycling rates. Non-hazardous wastes are collected by registered
waste collectors for proper disposal. Commercial wastes are
transferred to designated collection points; other recyclables,
including scrap metals and waste paper, are collected and
repurposed by qualified recyclers.

To prevent potential harm to human health through contamination
of soil, air and water resources, the Group is committed to
implementing proper and immediate treatment of hazardous
wastes and wastes that require strict control by engaging qualified
companies for collection and further handling.

Additionally, the Group has adopted electronic communication to
achieve paperless operation. Where printing is necessary, double-
sided printing is recommended. The use of smart-print application
also saves paper and ink. Waste recycling bins are installed in the
offices to encourage paper recycling. Over 76.3% of the non-
hazardous wastes were recycled during the Reporting Period, with
100% recycling rates achieved for scrap metal, waste paper and
waste plastic.

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)
By ER

AEBRBREHEEEEN3L24TRE
EREY AELASEWEE004TE UK
1,031,545 T R MEEEY)  REABHWES
1157 % - FTEAENEEREYERESEHRE
Bl EEZEY - STRYANERY SRREE
RHEEY - SR RNWEZEYUREMESRE
Y (BNEEERES ERBREMM) - IEEN
BEBEZYBEEENR KR B8 ES
B SRREEMERY HtEEVEERR
ERBEEMENHEBERZY -

AEEFIRBLRFANEERERBRAIZE
ERREY TREREEREEBERVBIEZE

EHE o

=

=

EEEREVIE  ARECZERFRES
B EANTERERRENEEREER
Y RRETRE - £EZERYHIE - T8
BEXEEERAEPABEYNRE  FRI1ER
REEREYHRE  UBARERSER
R BMEBRYBIMEBEYRERWE - U
RIELEERE - BEBEYREB I BTN
£% > HitrmBumsl(BEEREERER)
HEERNEREBELERFA -

ABEITTRIEL  ZRRKEREEAL
RE  AEEEBZRSERNARNBRERE
—SRBEY  BOZERNEEEREEY
R EEREEGINEY

o AEECABRERCEEMRAES T
BE o MFATED - RMBEZETEMEITED - £
RERTNERRXTUHERRRBAK -
RERNZRT BEYEWFE - USBAREW -
HREHAER - RMA@WKT76.3% U EHES
BEEY BB - BARBEEHNDWRRES
100% °
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BOEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued) (#&)
Waste Management (continued) BEYIE R (1)

Our manufacturing plant has established the following initiatives BPANEEREEFEUATEERIEZYE

to reduce waste generation: &
o Recycles the empty chemical containers by the raw material o HEMEMEERE R LEREE;
suppliers;

. Establishes the “Waste Management Procedure” and . EYBEYEBRRF AR :‘Z%ﬂﬁlﬁlﬂﬁl

sets up various recycling stations, to facilitate better U DR EYEYETE T EUE R
classification of wastes for storage and disposal; and EREE &
. Generates economic benefits from non-hazardous wastes, . ERLEEEYHETFRITNE KA
by selling them to recognised recycling companies. T EHPEKEFE o
Waste production of all business operations HEEBEEZEYESL
Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20

By - St etat- M —E % & T BF

Hazardous Waste Produced

EERERRY

Other waste listed on kg 33,683.69 25,748.95 14,558.00
the Directory of
National Hazardous Wastes

BI(EARBRENEHZINEM FT=
BEZE

Pesticide wastes kg - - 3,682.00
(from treatment within
the factory premises)

BREBRZY(REIMBHLAN FTx

BE)
Wastes with organic solvent kg 820.00 721.88 1,299.00
EERBBINERED Fr
Wastes with mineral oil Mot kg 1,601.20 578.99 525.00
BV AH ERE Y T
Mercury-containing wastes kg 130.60 245.40 306.00

(from waste lighting products)

SRERM(REBERBHAER) Tx

Wastes with dye and coating kg 142.00 453.03 244.00
ERRRBRNEREY Fx
Acid waste kg - - 80.00
BRI REEY) T
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued) (#&)

Waste Management (continued)

Waste production of all business operations (continued)

BEYEE (&)

FrE#BEEZEYEL ()

xE—[BRERRRRK]

Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
v} 2-— /== —E-E/ - —ZB—h/"FTF
Selenium-containing waste kg 46.20 79.15 78.00
EMEZEY F=
Total hazardous wastes kg 36,423.69 27,827.40 20,772.00
produced
EEEEREEYEE Fx
Hazardous wastes intensity kg/tonne of 0.04 0.03 0.03
production
volume
EEBEYRE FTr EBHES
Non-hazardous Waste
Produced
ELXBEREY
Commercial waste kg 391,742.86 447,725.08 355,080.00
EEBEEY F=
Scrap metal kg 111,885.00 165,217.00 219,195.00
BELE F=
Sludge kg 127,530.00 94,937.00 187,960.00
VEDLE Fr
Waste plastic kg 302,721.00 283,657.00 175,055.00
EEZEE R F=
Waste paper kg 97,666.00 99,280.57 20,641.00
BE4E Fx
Total non-hazardous wastes kg 1,031,544.86 1,090,816.65 957,931.00
produced
ELXBEREYHRE F=
Non-hazardous wastes kg/tonne of 1.15 1.24 1.16
intensity production
volume
BEBREYRE TR/ EWES
Note: Kzt :

The annual quota of hazardous waste disposal is limited by the local
governments, partial mineral oil produced in 2020/21 was handled by
licensed operators in 2021/22, resulting in the increased number of wastes
with mineral oil in the Reporting Period. As a large number of machines
were undergoing maintenance this year, the mineral oil used in machine
maintenance also increased.

MIE(EB)BRAR | — 2 - —FFRH

BEERYEENFEREZ L BARS
T/ -FEANBOBEBYRR B "= FMH
FRELMEE  EREHNASHEYbaERYEE
BN e HRAFERERIEANRE - MBREM
FREEYD M IRA FRIE A0 o

— = —

—_
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BOEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued) (#&)
Waste Management (continued) BEYIE R (1)
Waste production of all business operations (continued) EX*BEEZEYEL ()

The Group has developed waste targets to monitor the REEBCHEEYEEUESRADBEZEYNR
performance on waste reduction: 19

Waste Reduction Targets

BEDRDBE
Target Base Year Performance in
Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2021/22
=
HEEFE BEFE BE=H1E ERFERR ZTHEZRR
2018/19 2025 For non-hazardous wastes, to achieve 100% 68.60% 76.31%
diversion rate of all business operations
—=2-N0/ TECRF HREEERY BRMEFRHEEN
—NF 100% 2 f =%
2018/19 2025 For hazardous wastes, maintaining 100% 100% 100%

recycling rate for hazardous wastes of
manufacturing plants

—E2-N/ “ECEHF HREEEEY RELERENEEEZR
—NEF #1100 % K ] U =&
Packaging Materials ‘BEMR

Packaging materials consumed by the Group were mainly AEEBERENEEMBEEATERMR - 8
recyclable materials including plastic, cotton bags and paper. FRER - ARRER - BEMBIIEB NI
Packaging materials were sourced from external suppliers, with EE BEXAEETHERESE  HRHEER
constant inspection on quality, particularly on their safety and EREEFEHNRE - RBEHE RMAE
hygiene performances. During the Reporting Period, a total of mIRELEE 17 4601 HEEEMR  REFER
17,461 tonnes of packaging materials have been consumed for ERBWEESO0.020 o

protection of finished products, representing a consumption

intensity of 0.02 tonne/tonne of production volume.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Packaging Materials (continued)

The Group has been proactively exploring ways to reduce the use
of packaging materials and promoting products with replaceable
packaging to reduce the consumption of plastic pumps. The
following practices were implemented by our manufacturing
plants:

o Reduce the consumption of packaging materials by bulk
delivery and light packaging;

o Evaluate packaging suppliers annually for compliance
assurance;

o Reduce the use of non-recyclable resources for packaging;

o Apply various re-using and recycling methods to non-food

packaging materials, such as re-using as turnover box, or
recycling by recognised handlers; and

o Adopt recyclable labelling materials, such as replacing
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") based labelling materials with
those made of polyethylene terephthalate (“PET").

Packaging material consumption of all business operations

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)

BEME(E)

REE-EEBRERGTERDERABEM K
EETEREBENERURDERERNR - &
MNEERE BT HE

BBAMIAREEERDEEMEN
SHFE

BEMEBREMERUBREHRM

HAE R AT B W ERRERE

HARRMBEMBRAZSEEENAR
BREERLE  fINERBEEEERER
FHRAREASETERNA S &

RATEWEBHSR  flanABEE=
B B (PET)REBUBFZE (PVQ)
EENEBE -

HrERBEEZBRIFEFE

Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
By it S etk — T % — —E-N=EF
Packaging Material Consumption
BEMBUERE
Plastic tonnes 9,313.22 8,197.41 8,133.79
Paper tonnes 6,750.91 6,413.11 6,607.78
#oR 7]
Metal tonnes 866.84 1,110.98 1,429.39
2B U
Cotton tonnes 506.14 553.89 533.58
184 i
Fibre and cotton tonnes 24.23 23.48 22.32
WERBR A
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BOEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued)

(&)

Climate Change - Mitigation and Adaptation RiEEL-BRERIEE

Climate change has been posing challenges among all industries RIRBILEFMBITE(BREMVELE
including our business operations. Therefore, we have appointed R ER o HIt > ﬁ{FSE‘,éH%%_EEEFﬂE{\_

a third-party consultant to conduct a climate risk identification TTEETRIERREER  UER - o KREE
exercise in 2022 to identify, analyse and evaluate the potential (FHESESEENEEYIERRIBERK
physical and transition risks related to climate change.

For physical risk, extreme weather events including extreme wind MYEBEKRMS @ BinXREH (EEEE
or cyclone, and shifts on climate including rising water stress )UK RIREL (BIERK) ATRE 2B R -
may damage equipment, buildings and assets, thus interrupting BFEREE  R*MPEIREE - UK - 517
the production of our factories. Transition risk including policy, EmiEREERERMINIEHAERLEERE
technology and market risks will also have a significant effect to HEREEEATE -

the group’s operation and long-term development.

Physical Risk
YD 3E [ B

Description
i

Extreme wind/Cyclone

BE,HER
Flooding
oK

Water Stress

Rk

54

Some of our manufacturing plants are located in coastal areas, natural disasters may
cause damage to the equipment, buildings and assets.

BEMNETEERBUMETLE  BRAKXETREHRE BFREEEREEZ -

Heavy precipitation, storm surge or riverine overflow may bring acute flooding risks,
resulting in the damage of the plant-based ingredients.

SR - BRFEURER T RETRBENRKERE  EHENYRIHBZE -

Although most of the properties of the Group are located near the coastal areas
with plenty water resource, access to water fit for purpose may not be guaranteed
due to the increasing demand for agriculture and urban use, human consumption
and ecosystems, which poses a challenge for water stress.
BEAEERBIMERILBHE  KEFREE > BHRBERBETAK - AR
HERERBRAGNZIRTE G > B ERFIESENRIR - & AKEHHFRE
B o
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Climate Change - Mitigation and Adaptation (continued)

Transition Risk
B E Rk

RE  #HERERBRES

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(%)
RRB-EHEREREE)

Description
i

Policy and legal

Since the Chinese and HKSAR Government have set carbon neutrality target, more
aggressive regulations, policies and initiatives will be implemented to limit the
energy consumption and GHG emission to achieve the target.

BERRERE HAFPEREBHEBRNEHERTMNER  KERFERNER  BIRKREE
LRBIEERHER RERBHHUEBRERE -

Technology Phase out of old equipment and lighting system upgrade for new technology would
increase the investment cost and potentially decrease the revenue due to temporary
shutdown in production to upgrade equipment.

530} FAAERBERABFEMARRBRARGKIZNIRERAR > WA AARRBEMSI BT
FHEEMR DA °

Market Change in consumer preferences and behaviour also leads to market risk as
customers might be sensitive to the procurement and production processes of food
manufacturing.

™5 HEERERTANSLTEERETSEAR  FEAEEETEHRERRENKE

REEBRBAHR -

To lessen the impact of potential climate-related risks on our
business, we have established our Climate Change Policy this
year. The policy outlines our commitment to mitigate the negative
impacts of climate change on our operations and increase our
resilience to climate change via mitigation, adaptation, monitoring
and reporting. The ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
has been adopted across most of the Group’s operation sites. The
system with its effective and timely emergency mechanism is in
place in case of severe environmental incidents. It also keeps track
of the Group's energy efficiency and emission reduction targets.

To enhance our emergency response capability on extreme climate
event, we have formulated a Flood Prevention Contingency Plan.
The Plan clarified the role and responsibility of each personnel
when flooding is expected. It helps minimise the casualties of our
people and economic loss of the Company due to natural disaster.

ARLBEREEBERRERMERNTZE
BHERAFESERBEECER o ZHERM
MEMBIORNBER/ESE CHRMEENET
Fe WEBEMR HE ERRFRERSR
P RIRZL VIR ERE D - REBEM A E
i ZHER FHISO 14001 B B IR R o 288
REVERMARBEBREREEHNEERIRER
HESKS  TEAZEAEENERIR R
WEEE ZEm o

RRESEHBIRAREHNESESD  HMAE
FERRESTER - ZRRAWATTHESK
HEAASNHE  AUKARERDBRK
EERNABBTRAQRZEEREX -
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(continued)
Climate Change - Mitigation and Adaptation (continued)

Since 2013, the Group has appointed qualified third-party
institutions to verify its greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, as part
of the commitment to the government’s Emission Trading Scheme.
In particular, the flour mill in Shekou is audited annually to ensure
that their GHG emission quantification and reporting meet the
requirements set out in the Specification with Guidance for
Quantification and Reporting of the Organisation’s GHG Emissions
(SZDB/Z 69-2018).

Electricity consumption, which accounted for over 96% of the
Group's total GHG emission, remains the largest source of GHG
emissions for the Group during the Reporting Period. To demonstrate
its determination to lower the overall energy consumption, the
Group has phased out old equipment, upgraded lighting system and
participated in the CLP clean energy initiative to optimise energy
efficiency, which aims to reduce electricity consumption and align
with the practices in regions where it operates.

Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

xE—  [BRERRKRK]

(&
RRB-EHEREREE)

BE-Z—=F8 AEECZEEGERKSE=
KEZERAERE(RERE D HERUERER
NHHERRSZ:TE - L HE > BOEHRREE
EZERUBRREBEEREERNELCRERE
HE(ABBEREERECMRERETRIE
) (SZDB/Z 69-2018) °

ENERLAEERERBAENENIC% A
b DRASEBERSHEAGANBEERE
BRUR - R TREEARERIRD - AEH
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Key Achievements =EE K 5L

4 A \

\

ZRZEMRRG LU D B AR IERR o

BETSFBROPLEEMURRES LR -

development.

REEBREHSMEZIFE EFEBFERBYH -

W% RELHEFTENRSEREEZEI -

RITBXBEBESHEETRETFEBANETSER -

Deployed various explosion protection systems to minimise explosion hazard in the flour mills.
Adopted flexible work arrangements and preventive measures during COVID-19 pandemic.
RCOVID- 19X EH B RECEM M TE L2 BE R AR 11 -

Purchased formaldehyde-free office furniture to ensure employee safety.

Provided various training schemes, an E-learning platform and subsidies for employee

Around 90% of the employees were trained in various areas according to their needs.

Achieved zero work-related fatalities in all operational sites.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People” YR [HEFRAEANET ]

(continued) (#)
People Management ABERE

The Group had a total of 1,675 employees as of 30 June 2022, all of RZB-—HXA=+H AX&EE®HF1,675
whom were full-time employees. The total workforce categorised by ZEE  HAZBES - ZMH - FRANR

gender, age group and geographical region is shown below: WEEDNS B HEAEHIRAT
Total Workforce (%) by Gender Total Workforce (%) by Age Group
BRUERE T NEE HER(%) RERARNSDNEE HEH(%)
56 and above 18-25
;iflﬂ;'e S6EE R M L 18-255%
L 3.88% 3.52%
42.87% - d
46-55 26-35
46-555% 26-355%
- 22.99% 26.33% >
Male 36-45

it 36-458%
\57-13% 43.28%

Total Workforce (%) by Geographical Region
RBEE S KB DB (%)

Hong Kong Macau
&8 P
‘10.39% 0.72%’

Mainland China
Fh B K B

— 88.89%
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
People Management (continued)

We aim to create a diverse, welcoming culture and a safe working
environment in which our people are engaged, nurtured and
empowered to realise their full potential.

The Group regards human resources (“HR") as its most valuable
asset. With a mission to create values for its employees, the
Group offers attractive career prospects, a wide variety of learning
opportunities and a safe working environment.

The Group is, in all material respects, in compliance with all
applicable laws of Hong Kong and the PRC regarding labour rights
and employment, included but not limited to:

° Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Minimum Wage Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

o Labour Law of the PRC;

. Labour Contract Law of the PRC; and

o Social Insurance Law of the PRC.

The Code of Conduct provides our employees with clear
requirements on their conduct at work. It defines the ethical
principles and behaviours expected to be observed by our
employees and explains how employees are expected to apply the
Group's values and comply with the laws and regulations that
affect its operations.

No material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare had
been identified during the Reporting Period.

ol - Jai
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AEBERBERTEETHAEBERTEA
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. BREGITFH(REBERAG)

. (REARANMBSEE)
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. (REARAMEBEMEREE)
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Fair Labour Practices and Equal Opportunities

The HR Department continues to implement comprehensive
checking system during the recruitment process to comply with all
the applicable laws regarding employment and labour standards,
such as the Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC.

The Group will take appropriate disciplinary action against
anyone who is in breach of any applicable laws, regulations, and
ordinance. We have complied with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to the prevention of use of child and forced labour during
the Reporting Period.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual orientation, age,
marital status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The Group has a standardised appraisal system to evaluate
employees’ performances, assess their capabilities and determine
whether their abilities are in line with the Group’s business
development. It also provides a basis for promotion, salary
increment and a communication platform for employees and
management to set mutually agreed and measurable performance
standards, as well as career development opportunities.

Employee Well-being, Health and Safety

The safety and well-being of employees is a core concern
of the Group. As such, the Group takes a strict approach to
implement measures to foster compliance with applicable laws
and regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
("OHS"), including but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the

ol - Jai
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[FREEFRMNET ]

DNFNETEHR TSRS

ANEBEFRHRERBETEHEERZEARES
E - UEBTERERKS TREENMAERE
2 fImEBES P I(ERERERIDE(PFEAR
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HREMERBERER  EZRARKHANHAE
REESRBEENCRED - REBH - K
MeB8FHLEERE TS RBELBHEEEER
B o

REBERE - BIRER - BEAURBER
BRAIEAEERHTEHRE - EEXTEH
RER - BERER  RE - Be  HtmE - F
B~ EBEAR - REMRR - R IRE RS
HEB R P E 2R ER TR L AV H %
BEEZMEZ LRI RHNEFERE -

FEERBEECFERGUFERERE
ARHENREERSSERENEAEEN
EBRBR - -ZETRERHERN  MFNEERE
BYE EERENEEEAUHEELSEMART
FFENRRREREXRRKS -

EERL  RERAZZ

ETNZ2AEURAEEBINZOEE -
E Lt - ANEEREERE S S B iE i AR B
JEERERREZE2((HZRDNAEER
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BRI AE)  (BBBEZ 2 RERERH)

Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Hong Kong (BBEMES0IE) URKEBESEHERD)
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the (E,ﬁ,ﬂﬂéﬁzsz; o REBITEERZRA
Laws of Hong Kong), and Hong Kong Employees’ Compensation ZNHE LR EERNBEREEEZYS
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group RERE o
also has OHS systems and policies in place to manage occupational
health and safety issues across the entire business operations.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety (continued)

Apart from mandatory health check-up before employment,
annual or biennial check-ups are also offered to employees based
on their employment categories and nature. Frontline workers
in the PRC undergo end of term check-ups. Employees exposed
to high occupational health risks are offered occupational
health checks in accordance with the statutory requirements.
Appropriate personal protective equipment (“PPE") is provided to
employees based on their duties performed. Offices and canteens
are assessed by qualified institutions to ensure that they meet
applicable national standards regarding indoor environmental
pollution control. We also provide diversity training on health and
safety for our employees. Employees were invited to the Nanshan
Safety Education Experience Center to raise their safety awareness
through immersive experience.

Noise reduction devices have been installed in the equipment such
as exhaust fans, air compressors and grinders in accordance with
the requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report
conducted by the Group’s appointed agencies. Acoustic meters
have been installed in all working areas to further improve the
monitoring processes.

The risk of developing respiratory diseases is high for employees
working inside the flour mills, especially if they are not properly
protected with adequate PPE. To reduce workers’ exposure to
flour dust, effective dust collection devices are installed at all flour
mills to ensure that the airborne dust concentration does not
exceed regulatory exposure standards. Annual assessments are
conducted on the occupational environmental factors. To minimise
explosion hazard, the flour mills have deployed various explosion
protection systems (e.g., explosion-proof lighting system, flameless
vent installations on dust collectors). Our plants have obtained
relevant explosion-proof certifications, ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 22000, HACCP and FSSC 22000 certification. Meanwhile
we have maintained compliance with the following regulatory
requirements, which include:

o Safety Regulations for Dust Explosion Prevention and
Protection (GB15577-2018);

AEZ  [FEETRMANET ]
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety (continued)

o Safety Regulations for the Protection of Dust Explosion for
Grain Processing (GB17440-2008);

o Guide for Pressure Venting of Dust Explosions (GBT15605-
2008); and

o Safety Specifications for Dedusting System Used in Dust
Explosion Hazardous Area (AQ4273-2016).

When purchasing office furniture, the Group selects
formaldehyde-free products and gives preference to wood
products from FSC-certified forests to ensure that its employees
work in a safe environment.

The health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic
remains the Group’s primary concern. To contain the spread of
COVID-19 and to protect the health and safety of our employees,
the Group has implemented special arrangements and stepped up
precautionary measures, aiming to reduce the risk of infection.

Special arrangements and preventive measures adopted by the
Group includes:

o Adopt flexible work arrangements (e.g., work-from-home
arrangement, rotating shifts);

o Postpone non-essential travel to countries where there are
confirmed cases of COVID-19;

o Request self-quarantine for staff members who have
travelled overseas recently;

o Require periodic negative rapid antigen test result for
employees to enter the Lam Soon Building;

o Conduct internal questionnaire to understand employees’
health conditions after travelling abroad and collect
feedback;

AEZ  [FEETRMANET ]
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety (continued)

o Arrange body temperature check before entering Lam Soon
offices and plants; and

o Provide hand sanitisers and surgical masks in the
workplace.

Owing to the effective OHS management, we have maintained
zero employee fatality in the past three years.

Employee work-related fatalities over the past three years

ol - Jai
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Unit 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20
B A =% % —F-h/-%F
Work-related fatalities Number 0 0 0
RIFERMETEY 4
Employee Welfare and Engagement EEEFESH

The Group provides competitive remuneration with various
benefits to attract and retain talent. Employment package is
regularly reviewed with consideration of the market trend,
benchmarking the industry’s salary and benefit information
through salary survey reports conducted by professional
consultants. Annual salary increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism have been incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy. Share options are also granted to the Group's
eligible employees to provide incentive and in recognition of their
contributions.

Employees in the PRC are entitled to year-end bonus, social
security insurance and housing fund. Year-end bonus, life and
health insurance are provided to employees in Hong Kong upon
completion of probationary period. Additionally, staff sale, meals
and transportation are made available to employees according
to the actual situation. Fair terms on working hours, holidays,
termination of contract, fringe benefits and leave entitlement are
stipulated in the employment contracts signed between employees
and the Group. Overtime work shall be applied through submission
of application forms and approved by departmental supervisors.
Any disputes will be settled according to the Group’s appeal
procedures in an equitable and prompt manner.

AEBEHRABRF DMK 2 EEF LR
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Welfare and Engagement (continued)

Employees are always kept informed of the Group's key projects,
future directions and latest market strategies, activities and social
events in the industry through notice boards, intranet, meetings,
annual conferences and the internal e-newsletter, namely E-Post.

The Group also arranges various onboarding training activities to
help new employees adapt to the company culture. During the
Reporting Period, the Group organised group meetings and team
building activities to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and
foster staff relationship. Some of the activities organised during
the Reporting Period include:

o Day trip and team building events organised by Labour
Union in Shenzhen;

o Badminton event organised by Labour Union in Shekou;

o Basketball competition in the East China.

XEZ  [THREFRMANET ]
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Development

With human resources as one of its core assets, the Group believes
that strengthening the capabilities of employees can benefit
both the Group and employees themselves. Training needs are
identified through appraisal sessions with employees. Thus, the
training provided can effectively address the following objectives:

(i) Facilitate the achievement of the Group’s and/or its
departmental targets;

(ii) Increase productivity in every aspect of working processes;
(iii) Enhance employees’ satisfaction; and
(iv)  Assist employees’ career development.

The training courses vary from mandatory training and skill
enhancement to the more advanced supervisory skills and
managerial development, targeting employees of various levels.
During the Reporting Period, employees have been provided with
both internal and external training on numerous areas including
salesman training — baking technique and theory, ISO training,
occupational safety and health training, customs regulations
training and IT security awareness training. Apart from the
traditional training, the Group developed an interaction platform,
E-learning, for the Company to communicate with employees
through laptops, tablets, and smartphones. Employees can access
technical skills, Company news, knowledge and experience shared
by the management and honour guests through different kind
of electronic devices anytime and anywhere. The Group can
also analyse the employees’ preferences and design effective
and efficient courses through this E-learning platform in the
future. Food Safety Competition was held on the E-learning
platform during the Reporting Period, aiming to emphasise on
food safety requirements such as health and hygiene, purchase
of raw material, control on manufacturing process, and facility
maintenance.
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Food Safety Competition
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Development (continued)

Staff members are also encouraged to attend e-learning classes,
seminars, team building activities and knowledge sharing events
for enhancing their knowledge and skills. The Group will provide
subsidy or full reimbursement on the course fees to eligible staff
under the training policy.
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Lam Soon E-learning platform
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(continued) (#&)
Social Performance HERR
— Turnover Rate %&£ : 9.13% _~
By Gender (%) 1z 5l &5 By Geographical Region (%) &t & &5
Male 51 9.30 Hong Kong &% 18.39

%& Female Z1£ 8.91 QL9 Macau S®P9 25.00

Mainland China REIAPE 7.92
By Age Group (%) ZF #2485l 8l %

18-25 11.86

26-35 16.55
36-45 7.31
46-55 4.16
>56 6.15

— Health and Safety R Z 2

Lost days due to work |njury895.50days

AIGERTHERE x ih

— Development and Training & B21% 3l —

i’ﬂﬂﬂ Development and Training (%) Average Training Hours (hours)
@% BREEY (%) PRI BEB (ES)
Employees trained & T3Z3| 88.66 -
By gender &I &%
Male B 91.33 17.62
Female egic 85.10 15.40

By employee category Z{E &4 5l

Senior Level Management 100.00 21.43
SREEAS

Middle Level Management 98.31 11.61
FREEAE

Frontline and Other Employees 86.44 17.71
AIERHEMET
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with  XX&= : [LUEEETEK
Honour”

Key Achievements = E {5

4 / \ \

Invited ICAC to provide anti-corruption training to senior management and employees in both
Hong Kong and the PRC.
BERBABABBRTENSHEBAERESRMURESEI -

Audited packaging materials suppliers against the safety and hygiene performances according to
the Supplier Assessment and Control Procedures.

RE(HEEBZZEHERF) BEMHNHERETZERAERRIEANEX

certification, ISO 22000 Food Safety Management System, Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point (HACCP) certification, and FSSC 22000 Food Safety System Certification.
AEBHEKIFISESISO 0001 mBEEERBAZRE « 1SO 22000EmEZ2EERATE - £F
AT B A R IE I BE(HACCP)BE R LARFSSC 22000 MBE R R IZERF ©

Strictly complied with laws and regulations regarding marketing and labelling of products.

BRETAREMEHERERNEERER

Developed a variety of online and social media channels to promote a healthy lifestyle for our
customers.

| The Group's business operations were accredited with ISO 9001 Quality Management System
I BRZEKLIRERERRE  AEFHEBERELELR

Business Ethics BEEE

The Group upholds a zero-tolerance approach to corrupt practices AEBHEENESTABREERTIEE - B
by employees. To ensure ethical business practices, the Group BRAEMEEEEE  AEERKETEREHE
strictly observes applicable laws, regulations and regulatory BEBBNEE - ZHRREEXH  8FET

documents related to commercial bribery, including but not limited RAA :

to:

. Criminal Law of the PRC; . (REARAMBFE) |

. Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC; . (REAREFBER FTEERFE)
. Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong; o B L) 9 KB LE BRRRAR A1)

. Theft Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong; and . BELOIPHNCEBREND) &

Organized and Serious Crimes Ordinance of the Laws of . BEREHFPNCEABRBERTK
Hong Kong. Y o
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Business Ethics (continued)

The Group has established a publicly available whistleblowing
channel for all stakeholders. The Group Internal Audit department
will consolidate all cases received, assess the severity of the case
and report to the Chairman, Group Managing Director and the
Chairman of the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
when there is an event of foreseeable significant impact to the
Group’s operations and/or reputation. The investigation will
be conducted in a fair and efficient manner, the result will be
reported to the whistle-blower and all information will be kept
confidential.

During the Reporting Period, we invited the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to provide five anti-
corruption training sessions to senior management and employees
in both Hong Kong and the PRC to make sure that the highest
level of business ethics has been met. The topics covered the
explanation of relevant laws and regulations on anti-corruption
and business ethics, the definition of conflict of interest,
preventive measures, and the report channels. There were no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

We aim to uphold good business ethics and integrity and to
develop long term relationships with our business partners based
upon fairness, mutual trust and benefit. We abide by applicable
laws and regulations of Hong Kong, the PRC and relevant
international standards as listed below and no material non-
compliance was identified during the Reporting Period.

XE= [ MEEETER]

(#)
RIIER ()

AEBAMESNERY T —EAXHANERR
o AEENANELDEERIINEME
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EEZEER ABEELVERNEATE
AEERE  SEESLLERESEEARA
BEEZESSIFERETERMS - AEHKUR
FMAMENANET  SRERETER
A BFFEERIIERE ©

RBEDRE  HMBFERAQAEZERTBERTH
NEREBEAEBREERHARXRETHEI
LI RET RSB EERKT - BIEEER
FHELZERERERESRBXERNER
B FBRERNER - ARERMNERRE -
RBEMRE - ARNBARHEETHEERESTA
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HERER
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with &= [LUEEETER ]
Honour” (continued) (&)

Supply Chain Management (continued) HEREIE (&)

Applicable laws and regulations on supply chain management and business ethics [
HEREERBXERZBEREERER

Scope #i[E Laws and regulations £ %%

o Food Safety Law of the PRC
(FEARHKNBERRZ2E)

. National Food Safety Standard for the Use of Food Additives
(RRZ2EREERBMNBIEREE)

3 Administrative Measures for Food Recalls
N (RRBERIEEIZE)
g o Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance of
1\ the Laws of Hong Kong
Product quality and safety BBELIR D REE R BURGD
EREEHZE . Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations
(BYRE(EBEESE)R6)
o Food Recall Guidelines in Hong Kong
EERN(EmEIKIES
o National Food Safety Standard — Detergent
(BmE2EREE - HRE)D
o Technical Specification for Safety of Soaps and Detergents

Rk mZ 2R IMRE)

gz-l(;);? . Advertisement Law of the PRC

== + = A
Marketing and labelling (PEARXNERSE)

EHERER
o Personal Data Protection Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong
ol] EBEIF B (EAE R (FLRR) ) 157651
Cyber security and data privacy e Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC
Mz 2HBBELRE (PEARAMBEARGEERELR)
Procurement Practices BREEEH

The Group has Procurement Management, Supplier Management AREBECHEHEETE  HEFEE RIMEHK
and Evaluation Policies in place which specify the Group's X oOBHEETAEENHERL - KEB DM
procurement principles. Two new logistics guidelines on e-bidding MEEEERREREINBEERBENE FRE
and request for quotation for transportation services and external BERBEZHYRIES - ZEBRFEEMTHE
warehouse services have been adopted by the Group. The policies BE SR IERRESIEMENHEIED
provide guidelines and procedures to manage supply chain during Ri2F o

tendering, contract period and post-completion of work.
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Procurement Practices (continued)

XE= [ MEEETER]

(&)

REBEH ()

_ Three underlying principles on procurement management as outlined in the procurement policy _~

behaviour prohibited.

e RS - MR EERRA o

g
&

N RBERAN=ZERBERERRA

®:| Adopt a just-in-time inventory model to buy only what the business operation needs with speculative

RARKEFRN  EREXBLEMRT  ZIEREITH -

Source from local suppliers to reduce transportation cost.

Source for high quality and competitive products to meet the business strategy of the Group.

REERABRFHNHEERE  URSAREMZE

During tendering, suppliers are selected and rated based on a
set of criteria, in terms of product price and quality, timeliness of
delivery, payment terms, food safety and after-sales service. Within
the contract period, background, permits, licences and certificates
of suppliers are checked to ensure their compliance with food
safety policies and standards. Products sourced from suppliers
are subject to multiple tests to ensure they are of national food
safety standards. The flour mills and the edible oil plant evaluate
their raw material suppliers every six months for compliance
assurance and collect suppliers’ activity logs on a regular basis for
quality assurance. Suppliers of packaging materials are audited
against their safety and hygiene performances according to the
Supplier Assessment and Control Procedures annually. Suppliers
must carry out rectifications if non-conformities are identified.
The Group also enters into contract with outsourced services
providers, requiring them to meet occupational health and
safety standards while performing their works. Suppliers who
violate laws and regulations, fail to meet tender requirements,
or commit misconducts during the contract period could be
subject to compensation payment and/or contract termination.
Upon completing the work, suppliers’ performance will be
evaluated based on the marking scheme as set out in the Supplier
Management Policy.

ERGBENKE  HEFNWRERFIRIIE
R—FEZA ARSI RERERERE - XN
REEAAK  IRKEHR ERREREERRH -
EENHR  AEESREHEBRNESR - F
A ERRAE  UERRSETRERESR
BRREE BEHEENERALBZ A
Ao URRTEEIEMEERE - AHEK
RAMEESEAFEREEEUERS
A BEHREHEFRNEERARSURRE
E - RMSFREBE(HEBZRETRF)HE
EMBNHEBETZERALERBETENE
¥ MBREFSHEER  HEBLRETH
IE- AEETREMBRBEEBT LN - R
EEHRETINEEBERBERT2EE -
REHNHR - HEBNESEERER - T8
ERBRERFETETH  UEHERERIM
BEER/RRLEEN - TRIER  BRE
(HREBEEBR) R RESHERNE
BEITAE -
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

XE= [ MEEETER]

(&)

Procurement Practices (continued) IREEER (&)

Number of suppliers by geographical region

HERHE (RLEET)

Geographical region Unit

ih 32 B B

Hong Kong No. of supplier 8
B HEEHE

Mainland China No. of supplier 332
B KRR HERHE

Others (including Canada, US, Australia, Europe and Asia) No. of supplier 28
Hi (BEMEKR ~ ZE BN - BUMRIEMN) HERHE

Along the supply chain, the Group engages employees in
maintaining, monitoring and improving the Group’s overall
procurement management. The Group encourages employees
to take proactive, comprehensive and stringent measures in
the process of procurement, to avoid unnecessary loss and
ensure utilisation efficiency of its resources in accomplishing the
production, supply and sales targets.

Product Quality and Safety

The Group fulfils relevant product quality, product safety and
food labelling requirements and meets various internationally
recognised standards. All the Group’s business operations possess
the ISO 9001 Quality Management System certification. The flour
mills, edible oil plants and specialty fat plant are certified to 1SO
22000 Food Safety Management System. The four flour mills in
Shekou, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou as well as the edible oil
plants are accredited with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point (HACCP) certification. The flour mills in Yixing and Jintan, the
edible oil plant in Shekou and the specialty fats plant are certified
to FSSC 22000 Food Safety System Certification. During the
Reporting Period, there were no significant products and service-
related complaints received.

To ensure high product quality and safety for customers, the
Group strictly follows its policy, manual and guideline, and
procedure on customer satisfaction management, complaint
handling and product recall. The Group deploys standard
procedures on sanitation of food plants, oil plants and associated
equipment to maintain a high hygiene standard throughout the
production process. For home care product plant, the Group
is committed to being compliant with Detergents for hand
dishwashing (GB/T 9985-2000) and National Food Safety Standard
— Detergent (GB 14930.1-2015). Tests are conducted by the
Quality Assurance Department against pre-defined specifications
in product safety or quality standards. Qualified testing
organisations are engaged to validate the test results and issue
independent test reports. Any materials or products that fail to
meet the required standards will be labelled, isolated and assessed
by related departments.

EHRERED  AEEREESLES  EERKE
AEEERBRBEE - ARERBREEERE
BREPRIER - 2 &R SRR %Ik
DEBANEREAEER ZEBNERE
E HEREEER-

EmEERZE

AEBFEHBEEREE EmZE2REmE
BER UFEEEERLARNEE - KEH
FTEX£EAPCESISON REEEERA
ZHERE o MR - B AR R SE R
EISO 22000EREZ 2 EHRAZERE - 1t
0~ €& FRESMHEEDBEUARER
HRE G RE S T EEEES B (HACCP) &
ARE FENSENEDR  ROMERMH
U RSB HIEM S EFSSC 22000E L2
RIZERE - RIBEHR > RPLBEEEER
MRS BB E RIRFR ©

ABRROBETREESEERZENER  I~N&E
BRETEESREESE RFEERERZD
FHEHPBER - FMRIESIURER - XEBYHR
MEERE HERAEERBRAZEGER
Fo URREELERERESHEZE - R
EEEAREMES  AEERHES(FHRER
PSR Y (GB/T 9985-2000) R (B REZZBR
ZAE — FREI D (GB 14930.1-2015) » RERFH
BRBEERNERRENEEZELETAR - &
MEESERAIFAEBRZIAERY IS
HIERE - EARZEIECEENIBHERS
SWER - [BEE K& BB IBFIRTE -
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour"” (ontinved)

Product Quality and Safety (continued)

To strengthen customers’ confidence in our brand, the Group
responds to complaints/enquiries promptly with authorized
personnel assigned for handling. If there is any product quality
issue raised by our customers, we will conduct investigation to
identify the root cause of the incident, rectify the problem timely
and take appropriate preventive actions. If the complaints involve
product safety and withdrawal of the affected products from the
market is deemed necessary, we will immediately activate our
product recall procedures. The recalled products will be isolated
to ensure proper handling or disposal. All the information related
to the recall will be documented for senior management review
and approval. During the Reporting Period, no products sold were
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

XE= [ MEEETER]

(&
EmEERZ2(#E)

AMEFFHEMARENEL  AEEZRRE
REASARMCIEERRE EHEHE - W
REMANEFFRHEAMNEREE[E RS
ETAEURESHNORARE - REMIERM
BIFRBEE WA ER - IRRFSREm
Z2 TERRBLBEZZENERBED
5 RS LERMBEMANERBLERERF - ®
AENERSERER  UBEREBREENRE
B -HACHEBNABEERBERHRER - U
HEEEEASEENE - RBEHRN - I
BoEEmER2REFEAMARY -

Complaint handling and product recall procedures

RFRERERBEERF

BREAEREEMEHRNRFRE

Authorised personnel to handle any enquiry or complaint cases

N
Execute investigation and provide prompt response
ETRELRERKOE
Perform product recall if the complaints involve product safety and
withdrawal is deemed necessary
MRBRHFHIRERTR  URRELERD > AETEREE

/
Ensure proper handling or disposal of the recalled product
BREBERESEECEEEM

/

senior management review and approval

All the information relating to the product recall will be documented for

HRERGEMEBANMEEEBECRER  WASEERASEENLE

aaeeaeea
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Marketing and Labelling

The Group has established guidelines on marketing and labelling
to ensure that product specification and promotional activities
comply with applicable laws and regulations. Labels of edible oils
and flour products contain nutritional profile and the product
composition. For home care products, the product labels provide
information on the main ingredients, dosage instructions,
directions for use and safety precautions. Labels are required to
be approved by our Legal Department and Quality Assurance
Department with records filed. All marketing and labelling
materials are reviewed by relevant departments for compliance
with relevant regulatory requirements. New product packages
shall apply for patent registration whenever necessary. Specifically,
our home care product plant is accredited with the China
Environmental Labelling Products Certification for fulfilling the
control requirements on hazardous substances in raw materials or
products, pollutants in the factory as well as environmental policy
in the production processes.

The Group strives to improve public well-being by promoting
a healthy lifestyle. As part of its ongoing effort to increase
awareness among business-to-business customers and strengthen
technical support to industry partners, the Group has set up six
baking centres in Shenzhen, Yixing, Jinan, Chengdu, Jintan, and
Quanzhou. Other online promotional channels, including the
“Good Mother” (https://www.haomama.com) website, Knife Qil
Facebook, Xiaohongshu, Tik Tok, WeChat Video Channel, where
we upload videos on various topics, including introduction of
nutritional values of our products by registered dietitians and
sharing of cooking recipes prepared with nutritious ingredients.
We also livestream on different platforms to share cooking recipes.
Apart from this, the Group organises workshops to introduce new
products and solutions, aiming to promote a healthy and balanced
lifestyle to the public.

Neither false nor misleading contents will be contained in any
product specification or promotional channels. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases of material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding advertising,
marketing and labelling matters.

Intellectual Property (“IP")

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights and respects third
party IP rights according to applicable laws and regulations. It
registers new IPs (including trademarks, designs and patents) in
different parts of the world, renews existing IP rights, manages the
use of IPs, and keeps track of IP infringement by other parties. The
Group reserves the right to take legal actions against any alleged
infringement.

XE= [ MEEETER]
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Pillar 3: “ Conducting Business with
Honour"” (ontinved)

Intellectual Property (“IP") (continued)

The Group also requires its service providers, suppliers or business
partners to undertake and warrant that all their deliverables or
products are their original creation and/or do not infringe any third
party’s IP rights. Infringers are liable to appropriate consequences
in the event of a breach.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any material
IP infringement claims brought against any member of the Group.

Cyber Security and Data Privacy

The Group’s Legal Department seeks to improve the Group's
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in data privacy.
We strictly follow internal policy, manual, guidelines and
procedures on protecting customers’ data as stated in the Code
of Conduct. Before collecting personal data from customers, they
are informed of the purposes of data collection and how it will be
used. Procedures on handling, storing, transferring and erasing
customers’ personal data collected are reviewed periodically.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases

of material non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
cyber security and data privacy matters.

Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

XHE= [ MEEETER]

Ve

(48

HBER(NBRER]D #)

FEBTRELRBERERD - HEBIELS
ERFHEERRE  BEMBEUXNERIE
mAHERAR, A BELEME=FHARE
o GRATARESEMANEELRR -

RBEHE  AEEL BT HFELEEEMTRK
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RARRZHEABLR

REBREEBOREASKEEETREL
B2EREEREERTENKF - RFAEEE
(TR R REST FERHATBCR -
FM-ESIUREF BEFREEAESN
Al AEEESEANEFREENNE WK
ERZ - BMEEBRNTTRENEFBAE
HMHEE - #7F BBRMRER -

REBEHE - AEELEZESETAREERE
FRLZ2RBBALARBNEEZRERNVER -

XD [ EEELE]

Key Achievements EE K 5t

4 \

\

EEISERER  BRAREERIE-

BE)FSHESEHHREE

Garnered the “Caring Company Award” for the 15" consecutive year.

Donated RMB100,000 worth of products to support flood relief in Zhengzhou, Henan province.
BRREEARY100,0007T #Y 2 f A S50 B & ERIN T B K o

Participated in the Jintan poverty alleviation programme for the 2"¢ consecutive year.

Collected over 20,000mt of high-quality local wheat through a wheat incubation programme.

EB/EEER B EBB20,000 A MEE Eih /N o
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

(continued)
Community Investment

We aim to contribute for the betterment of society, to
create collective advancement and harmonious community
relationships.

While formal policies on community engagement are yet to be
established, the Group continued to maintain its strong tradition
of supporting various charitable causes during the Reporting
Period. The Group established a volunteer service team to convey
love and care, giving back to the society and fulfilling our social
responsibility.

In partnership with Shandong Luyan Agriculture Seeds Co., Ltd,
the Group has launched the wheat incubation project since 2013
to stabilise food production and security. Under the project, we
conducted a three year-long experimental cross breeding of Local
Chinese Wheat to test the wheat milling quality stability, followed
by contract farming. New varieties were put into the incubation
and quality verification pipeline year on year, thus over 20,000mt
high quality local wheat collected through contract farming.

Volunteering and Charitable Activities

When flooding struck Zhengzhou, Henan province in July 2021,
the Group provided relief and donated RMB100,000 value of
products to Henan University of Technology to support teachers,
students and the university to overcome difficulties caused by the
flood.

XN [EEeEE e

HERE

EMEGEXRSHE  AIERFEELRFELH
EFE -

BEAKREESATIERBEESHNERXNK
o ERFARBESHBEEBRS I EEESE
EXNEAER - AEECK L EREREE
BOVEERHEEE  DEdEREITHEER -

B-Z—=FE FREHLREMNEXRE
BRAREGHERE/NEZHEER  URBERM
AENMZZ - #ZABF - RAYFEEXLN
BETHAB=FNEREXEE  LAENE
HHEENREYN  BERRRAER¥X - 8F
BRAFmESERETEERRE  BBS
WERXRFTWEIEE 20,0000 M EE E /)
% o

SRREEED

REZZBEZ—F LR EEMNHEEKKLH
B AKERTREIEAZRERLDER
BREEBEARKI100,000THNEMR * AXEHK
B0~ BER KBRRKKAEROEE

FOA &N Tk KR O R TR BRI Em

Donating products to Henan University of Technology during the Zhengzhou Flood in Hunan Province

Ll |
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

(continued)
Volunteering and Charitable Activities (continued)

The Group has been collaborating with Hong Chi Association by
donating company products to their central kitchen to alleviate
its operating costs. In addition, with the support of the Group,
the Social Enterprise Division of Hong Chi Association has become
the service provider of the Group’s canteen in Hong Kong, giving
people with intellectual disabilities the opportunity to receive job
training, as well as to find career direction, build self-esteem and
enhance competitiveness. Nominated by Hong Chi Association, the
Group has been awarded the “Caring Company Award” for fifteen
consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
since 2007, which is a testament to our long-term commitment to
community investment.

XN [EEeEE e

SRREETR(E)
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DEEMUFEELEERAE - LI EAKH
XET EESHECECRATEEETER
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- EEEENRET AEEA-ETLHF
BEETAFESEBMERBEHSHEENIE
REBIEIR DRTRMABLERENREE
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ih °©

Staff meal provided by Hong Chi Association
ESSRAETIRMHERRYE

The Group is awarded the “Caring Company
Award” for the fifteenth consecutive year by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
AEEEETAFES B ERBHSEEN
[ERREE IR
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

(continued)
Volunteering and Charitable Activities (continued)

On 10 December 2021, the Group participated in “Love Teeth
Day”, an annual fund-raising event organised by the Community
Chest of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Dental Association and Oral
Health Education Unit of the Department of Health to promote
oral health education. Proceeds raised will be donated to the
Community Chest to provide professional dental care to the
needy such as the elderly and people with intellectual disabilities.
Employee participating in the event also received a “Love Teeth
Day Care Pack”.

XN [EEeEE e

SRREEFR(E)

RZBZ-5+ZA+H  AXEEZSNBEEE
NEE  BEETEEZSRFLEORRERS
MEMWIRABET A IFEENED » #E
AERERE - IEEXERETARSUE
REREBALSAFTEALRHERTEE
B 2HEINESTERIZETAEE]-

Love Teeth Day
AHEFH

/

For the second consecutive year, the Group participated in the
poverty alleviation programme organised by the local government
to provide assistance to Zhigian District Luxi Village in Jintan. The
Group donated RMB50,000 and set up an overall support plan for
the following three years to guide continuous partnership.

AEBEEMFSHET EHBFEABNKET
2 ASETENEREENRMER AEH
BRAR®KS0,000tRHERR=FNERE
REtBILEERESE -

Meeting with local Government and other corporations
to formulate and launching assistance programmes to the

underprivileged in Jintan

EE MR EMEESEUAGERIE N SEH R E S
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content

Index

BRABIARE  #HERE

Al EESIRnAE R

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EFE -

—BEERARERER

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

MBEHREMASM e

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
AJRE
Aspect AT1: Emissions

BEAT - SRR

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

FRABRNREREHM - MARLHBHES - BEERES
BEYNEESEN

(@) BE &

(b) BFHBITABERFENHBEEERBLINER -

Environmental Management;
Air Pollutant Emissions
RIEEIE

ERTEMBEM

KPI'AT.1
BREN
EEAN

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

M EERAAE YRR -

Air Pollutant Emissions
RIS EYHER

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse  Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BAREN gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,  Efficiency
BIZEAT1.2 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). BERBHEMNEERME
HiE(HE1)RA ﬁF"ﬁ%(%EIZ)Fﬁ’_ﬁgﬁFﬁii(lf/{ﬂfﬂE“l'E)
RNER)ZE(WMUSEEEN - BERIETE)
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Management
BAREN appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per EYIERE
$E1EA1.3 facility).
FELEEEEYEE UM E)R(MER)BE(WUSE
BB - BERETE) °
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Waste Management
BARER appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per JEYIERE
512A1.4 facility).
FEEREEEYEAE N E)R(MER)BE(WUSE
B8 - BERETEH)
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to  Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BARER achieve them. Efficiency
EBA15 BT L MEEE BB R AETE L B EMERNTE o BER B REERNG
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste Management
BEHEE N handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ¥ &1
E1EA1.6 taken to achieve them.
HEEBEERETEZYNG L RWMFTFTZHRER
BRAEINELEEMERNSE -
78 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERBRES

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content
|ndeX (continued)

BRABIARE  #HERE

AR EESIRBE RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EFH - —REERARERER

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEEHRHEASIR g

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREA

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BEMERER(BEER - ARERERME) HBEE -

Environmental Management
BRHEE

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BEHEE N electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.  Efficiency
BEA2.1 per unit of production volume, per facility). BERBHBR RN R
REMEINWEER EEER(WE - Kh) 852 (U
FETREFE) RBE(NUSESSEN - BERBTE) °
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Water Management
BREN production volume, per facility). AkER
1E1EA2.2 RIEKEREE(WNUSESEN - BERETH) -
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps  Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BREN taken to achieve them. Efficiency;

E1RA2.3

wl R ET MV BER R A B R R AERE L B R ATERE
LB o

BERBIERRERYE

Climate Change — Mitigation and
Adaptation
Rz — BB RERE

KPI A2.4
BEEN
IE1EA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

R BUE AKR E A BERIREIRE - AR RTS8 Ak s
BERAED LB EMRERNTR -

Water Management

All water used by the Group were
obtained with respective permits. There
were no issues related to sourcing water
that was fit for purpose.

RXER

REEEANABEKSBES T HENFF
A o WRAMERGESAENKER
HORERE o

KPI'A2.5
BREN
EEA25

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

HEmrABEMBNEAS(UME) R (NEBR)SLEESE

58 °

Packaging Materials
BEME

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RERRAEIR

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

R ITAHBRRERRAREREREATLENBER

Environmental Management
BISEE

MIE(EB)BRAR | — 2 - —FFRH

79



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERBRES

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content
|ndeX (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EFH - —REERARERER

BRABIARE  #HERE
A EESIRB RS @)

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEREHRHEASIM g

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
BREN environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
FEIEA3. manage them.

HAEBFHHRERARERNEAFERCENEES
B ENITE -

Environmental Management;
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
Efficiency

REEE

BEREHRK

BEIR X &

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EBEAL : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

Climate Change — Mitigation and

— R E related issues which have impacted, and those which may Adaptation
impact, the issuer. SIRE(L - B RERE
BRREHEAR TR EHBTAEEZENERRIZIEEH
BHMNEBEE °
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which ~ Climate Change — Mitigation and
BAHEEN have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and  Adaptation

EEAL the actions taken to manage them.

HHERRIREHRTAEEFENEARARFEREE
REHITE o

Rz — BB RBERE

B. SOCIAL

B. &

Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
[EHEB1 : {E1E

General Disclosure Information on:

People Management;

—RiE (a) the policies; and Fair Labour Practices and Equal
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  Opportunities;
a significant impact on the issuer Employee Welfare and Engagement
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and AEEE ;
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, 2RFH% TIEHIR FEKS |
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare. {EERFIRSE ;
FRFMKLAE  BEEREA IERH - BRE - FEHKE -
Zft - RERUREMFERBRN
(@) BE &
(b) BFEHBITABEAFENHEBEEERRONESR -
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, (for example,  People management
RAREN full- or part-time), age group and geographical region. ABER
EEB11 ZER - EREERN(NERRFRR)  FRANREESE DK
EERH -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Social Performance
BARER geographical region. HEXRE

1815812 BRI - FRENIRBESSNESRALLE -
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Index (continued) BHREESINBE RS @
Relevant Chapter(s) or
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Other References/Explanation
TEEHE  EEH —REERERENES HEAEHRE b5 ® e
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2 : RREZS
General Disclosure Information on: People Management;
— R E (a) the policies; and Employee Well-being,
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  Health and Safety
a significant impact on the issuer ABEEHE ;
relating to providing a safe working environment and {E&3@it -
protecting employees from occupational hazards. REEZE
FERHEZ2THRRERREEESRRBEMREN
(@) BEX &
(b) BFHBITABEREENHBEEERBGINES -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of ~ Employee Well-being,
BAREN the past three years including the reporting year. Health and Safety
EREB2.1 BEZF(BRERFE)SFEITHMAERLEER - EERIL BRRERS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Social Performance
BREM EIGEEAIERS - HERR
151882.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Employee Well-being,
BEEN adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Health and Safety
EEB2.3 B FIRANBERREREZ2ER  URMEBITRERS EEBL-
bz 3 REREZE
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EMEB3 : &R RIEII
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for ~ People Management;
—RIBE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. ~ Employee Development
FERAGEERTIHFBENNBRRENEER - HiliZil ASEE.
SEE © EE#E
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and  Social Performance
BEN employee category (e.g. senior management, middle #H&XRR
151EB3.1 management).
RUEFIRESEN(NEREEE PREERE)EHHZI
EEBLL °
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Social Performance
RAEE N gender and employee category. HERR
1E51EB3.2 RUBIRESERNE S SEREETHEZINTFHRE -
MIE(EE)ERAR | S —FFK 81
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BRABIFRE  #HE8R

A EESIRB RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EFH - —REERARERER

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

MEEHRHEMASIM e

oo

=)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

B4 | % TR

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEBLETHEHILTH

(@) X &k

(b) BFHBITABERFENHBEEERRONESR -

People Management;

Fair Labour Practices and Equal
Opportunities

ABEE;
DNEHETEARTFERS

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  Fair Labour Practices and Equal
BEREN avoid child and forced labour. Opportunities

$E1ZB4.1 BB BN N EEAESE T REHET - DNENETEAR TSRS
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  Fair Labour Practices and Equal
BREN discovered. Opportunities

1E1EB4.2

B ERRER BRI ERAEERTRENSER -

APHETEARPERE

Operating Practices

&EES

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS : HAEEERE

General Disclosure

— R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

Supply Chain Management
Procurement Practices

ERHEENRIRE RS EMECE - HEEEE R
REBEH
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Procurement Practices
BREN RiEE D HWHEEHE - BREBED
$E1EB5.1
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,  Procurement Practices
RABREN number of suppliers where the practices are being R8I

}E1EB5.2

implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
R AUEENIES  EMTHERELNEERR
B URMEESITRERSE -

KPI B5.3
BREN
$51%B5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BHEERHERSERENRERESRABNES - )
RAEBEBITREERFE ©

Procurement Practices

EREBIE D)

KPI B5.4
BREN
$E1EB5.4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

W EREMERNEES ARRERRBRBENES » UK
HERTREREZE -

Procurement Practices

EREBIE D

82
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Relevant Chapter(s) or
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Other References/Explanation
TEEHE  EEH —REERERENES HEAEHRE b5 ® e
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 : EmEME
General Disclosure Information on: Product Quality and Safety
—RiEE (a) the policies; and EREEHZ2
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  Marketing and Labelling
a significant impact on the issuer BRI
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and  Cyber Security and Data Privacy
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and  ##&Z 2 EHEIE LB
methods of redress.
FEMRBEERMNBENRE R Z 2
BE - BBRRIBEEURBRGEN
(@) X &k
(b) BFHBTABTEAFENHBEEERRONESR -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Product Quality and Safety
BREN for safety and health reasons. EmBEEHZE
1812B6.1 EERCEXERAHPEAZ2HERREAMEARKNE 2
Lt o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received  Product Quality and Safety
BREN and how they are dealt with. EREEnza
1612862 ERBENERRRBHIRFHE UREH TS E -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Intellectual Property
BARER intellectual property rights. HEER
1512B6.3 it B R R R PR AR E T B IEA -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Quality and Safety
BREN procedures. EmBEEHEZE
151¥B6.4 HIEERTEREREMBIWRERF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Cyber Security and Data Privacy
BREN how they are implemented and monitored. PR 2 BT E
151¥B6.5 BB EERMRERABBEK - URBERNITRERTGE
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBHEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Business Ethics
—REE (a) the policies; and E e
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BEEBLLHEEE - B8R - MEFROEBEN ¢
(a) BRI R
(b) BFHBTABEAZENHEEERBLINER
BIR(EB)ERAR | —F-—FEH 83
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EFH - —REERARERER

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

MEEHRHEMASIM e

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Business Ethics
BREN brought against the issuer or its employees during the FEE
$81EB7.1 Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERBAHBTASHEEREYEELNESHARY
BB RFAER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Business Ethics
BREN procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. mEEE
{51EB7.2 M R EBREF  UREBEITRERSE -
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors  Business Ethics
AN and staff. BEEE
161287.3 HMESER BT RENREFEN -
Community
#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHBS : HEBIRE

General Disclosure

— R EE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

FEUHESHER TREEMETHESTENRREEKIH
SLZEHERNZNECE

Community Investment

HERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental ~ Community Investment
BAREN concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Volunteering and Charitable Activities
$518B8.1 ErEHEE(NHE  BRESE -HFIFKR RE Xt HERE

BE) - FRREEEY
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. ~ Community Investment
BEREN EEIBEMBAER (NS EREHE) - Volunteering and Charitable Activities
}51ZB8.2 HERE

FREREETE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESENRGEEERAER

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 69, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Guoline Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA"), the ultimate holding company of the Company.
He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited ("GGL"),
a subsidiary of GCA and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He is also
a Non-executive director of GuocolLand Limited (“GuocoLand”,
GGL's subsidiary listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST")). He is the Non-executive chairman
of GL Limited (“GL", GGL's subsidiary) which was privatized and
delisted from the Official List of SGX-ST on 14 June 2021. He
serves as a Non-executive director of Hong Leong Bank Berhad
("HLBB", a listed subsidiary of Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad
("HLFG"), GGL's associated company listed on Bursa Malaysia)
and Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd. which is an associated company of
HLBB and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.

BLHE

BEATAR  B-ZERAFTAREEART
EFRAB-ANECFREELFAFFRITE
BoRRETARLNAESSREZETIER
ExEvyMEEENE -

L ERHA DT ERAER AT Guoline Capital
Assets Limited ([ GCAD) 2ESBRRE - HAER
EEEBRAR(ENE D) ZHTERE  ZA84A
GCAZHMIB AR WREBBBERZMEMRA
BB ERLET o BABRITIMFER SR
(TFRrl) EmzE%sEwEER AR (BERE
WE | EVEZHEBAR) ZEHITES - AR
—E-FXATHBAELEBERITRTZ
ErthuAIGL Limited([GL] - BV ZMIB AT
ZHHFITERE - HECHRBERATERZHALEHZ
LRRBTAERLT(TERET EANERA
DR ETMZEEHE AT EERSHEBRGR
AA(TEEESH]) ZMBAR) UK 2EERIT
ZHBENTWN EBESHER S AT L 2 RERIT
BROBERATBZINTES -

BEREMGHE N BABHSTE MRS 255
SETEER - WERTEIRRLELER 817
B RE - BBEREHE - WAL QBT
ESEOELIEREMS -
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Wong Cho Fai

Aged 55, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in July 2020.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Social Science and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He also completed the General
Management Program in Harvard Business School.

Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of experiences in fast moving
consumer goods in USA, Asia and particularly China. Mr. Wong
has worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Campbell Soup, S.C. Johnson, Coca Cola and Colgate
Palmolive. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as the
President of Campbell Soup Greater China and the Managing
Director of S.C. Johnson Greater China.

Chew Seong Aun

Aged 58, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in January 2021.

Mr. Chew is the Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of GGL.

Mr. Chew is a director of GGL's key listed subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Company including as the non-
executive director of The Rank Group Plc (listed on the London
Stock Exchange) and Guocoland. He is also an executive director
of GL. Mr. Chew was the chairman of the board of directors of
Hong Leong Asset Management Berhad, a subsidiary of HLFG, up
to 18 October 2021. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chew had
been the chief financial officer of HLFG since 2006 and before that
he had held various senior banking positions in the Middle East
and Asia for over 10 years.

Mr. Chew obtained a Bachelor of Science (Eng) degree in Civil
Engineering (Honours) in 1986 from Imperial College, University
of London and is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a member of Asian
Institute of Chartered Bankers in Malaysia. He has over 30 years of
experience in finance and banking.

HHHE

BEL+hm B-Z-EFLABRALQFZ
EEESRKERYITES -

BERERAERPNABHENBEELBART
BERELT RN - TR ERBEERERESE
HRE -

BEREHEXE 2N BHIRTEREEBB=1
FRAHERER - EEEERZB(YE)S00
BERGENR T BFESES - ZEHE -
AAALENSRERGE - EMARLQFER - JE
AEREESESATERERNXEHE RTE
BESAKE -

Bz

REA+N\B B=E--F-ABEZEEALX
NEFHITES -

BRERBE 2 TESREEPHHE -

AEEBBENEE FHHB A A RANA FEE
NFZESE  BEMIBESHRZFT W ZRank
Group PIcR B R E 2 HRTES - BB
GLzHTESE - EZ-ZE=-_—F+A+N\H "
ArEhLESMIMBLARLREESEAR
RNEZEBESEE - MAKXLQTF » AkEBEZ
ZENFRIETLESRoMHAE Wit
AEEFRRIENEESESRBITRISE+
£ o

BEER—NANAEFERBIAREFTHER -
ARIB(EB)EELEy YARRKER
B Hi 45 5F 2 5HEF 2 & (Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales) E R & & o
78 2 5 2R 70 55 I M 45 5 4R 1T X 15 | (Asian
Institute of Chartered Bankers) V& & o 2Rt
MIBTEFEFE=TFLEH -
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EEEREREEEAER

Whang Sun Tze ph.p.

Aged 78, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 73, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
and a member of Board Nomination Committee and Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has
over 40 years of experience in banking, finance and investments.
He worked for a number of well-known financial institutions as
managing director.

Mr. Lo also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director, the audit committee chairman and members of the
compensation and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings
Limited; independent non-executive director, audit committee
chairman, member of the remuneration and nomination
committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the
nomination committee of Convenience Retail Asia Limited.

In January 2022, Mr. Lo was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and member of Sustainability Committee of
Top Glove Corporation Bhd., a company listed on Bursa Malaysia
and Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. He retired
as independent non-executive director of The Taiwan Fund, Inc.,
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, in April 2018.

MR (&

=HLE g+

BELtN\m B—ANEFEHEAREFH
ITES -

EEIRHAIEIREETEN - RABSHL
Rk B o

BEL+=5 BCEEN\E+ZABHEIAL
ABLKPTES - FALAARNESEELRE
MEELEETENEESRAREENEEY
HMEEEKE -

BAENSNERZAREFTSHMLS 28
HAEMRERSTAAE2E8ERK - BAE
ERIT - BBERREXBHIEEERN 52K
B KENZEAESRBBEHIESREER

i o

BEETEIEESHA LT AR CHEMESHS
B¥EPlaymates Holdings Limited (2 2 £E@AR D
A ZBIFBITESRERZESEEURS
MEEERIEBZEEMKE ; Tristate Holdings
Limited 2B FHITESREZZESERE
FHEESERREZEENE  RITZTEER
RAIZBUFPITEESRERZESEIRRIRES
ZEEHEB -

B’\‘ E__F-—fF BELEEZEABRA
REMRFMER S L™ ZTop Glove
Corporation Bhd. (]E?&?ﬁﬁl‘ﬂ"ﬁ)fzﬁi#
BITESRTBERREZEGHNE - BR=
—N\FHEHARE— FﬁE’\\féﬂ,%’Ju#x%FﬁJ:mE’J“
HThe Taiwan Fund, Inc. 2B JEHITESS o
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Huang Lester Garson sss, Jp

Aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Huang is the Chairman of
the Board Remuneration Committee and a member of the Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the board remuneration committee and a member of the board
audit and risk management committee of GGL.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently the Managing Partner and Co-Chairman of P. C. Woo &
Co., a solicitor firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified
solicitor of Hong Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years
of post-qualification experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1982
and a Master of Education degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of HKSAR") appointed Mr. Huang as
a Justice of the Peace. In July 2018, The Government of HKSAR
awarded him a Silver Bauhinia Star for his public services.

Mr. Huang’s public roles include serving as the Chairman of the
Council of City University of Hong Kong and the Social Welfare
Advisory Committee of the Labour and Welfare Bureau. He is also
a director of Lei Foundation Limited (formerly known as “Faithful
Servant Charitable Foundation Limited”), a Steward of The Hong
Kong Jockey Club, a director of The Jockey Club CPS Limited, HKJC
Horse Race Betting Limited and HKJC Lotteries Limited. He is also a
director of Pacific Basin Economic Council Limited.

Mr. Huang was admitted to the Roll of Honour of the Law Society
of Hong Kong (“Law Society”) in May 2021. Previously, he was
the President of the Law Society from 2007 to 2009. He was also
a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong (“SFC"”) and chaired the Investor and Financial
Education Council (a subsidiary of the SFC). Mr. Huang was also a
member of the Hospital Authority and the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority’s Exchange Fund Advisory Committee as well as a non-
executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority. He also served
as a member of the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and
Conditions of Service and other public positions.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the
remuneration committee chairman, an audit committee member
and a nomination committee member of Kidsland International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Huang was also an independent non-executive director of Top
Glove Corporation Bhd., a company listed on Bursa Malaysia and
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited until he resigned on
13 September 2022.

e — e — —J
Enil genes . AT+

BEARTZE RE2-—=HF+-AEZEAR
RAZBAFNTES - ERERALAESEE
FHESSCIERESEEANREREEERS
BZHE -

BRERBEECBUFNTES ESEHMZE
EEXF  UNESEFELRAREEZESEZ
K& o

EREAHEZMRERIALA > RAE—BES
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R-ZZEZF . FBRBITHRERF(EEBEE
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ESCHBREB) 2XF EXETBAEEE
REERNEECREERMNELSZHNEES
ZRE  EMEBERZRZFUTES - WIBE
ERPEAEHERBRBRHEBRRZESREUR
HARm; -

BEERYNLEABERERA T (—BRBER
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ffr £ M Top Glove Corporation Bhd. (B FE
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Ho Yuk Wai, Joan

Aged 57, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in November 2019. She is
a member of both the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. She is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a member of the CFA Institute. Ms. Ho graduated from
Queen’s University, Canada with a bachelor’s degree (with
honours) in Commerce.

Ms. Ho has over 30 years of experience in auditing and advisory
services. She was an audit partner of KPMG China financial
services group between 2000 and 2015 and was also in charge of
the firm’s internal audit, risk and compliance services for financial
institutions and the accounting advisory services. Ms. Ho has
extensive experience in capital market transactions and conducting
operational reviews of banks in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China.

Ms. Ho also serves as a member for a number of regulatory review
tribunals and disciplinary panels.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted
a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”),
which is based on the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 (the "HKEX Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

A new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code") as set
out in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into
effect on 1 January 2022, their requirements are applicable to
the financial year commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the
Company has adopted the HKEX Code as set out in the previous
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code came
into effect.

The CGP Code is reviewed from time to time and updated as
appropriate to align with the revised provisions of the HKEX Code.
Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the applicable
HKEX Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2022, except
where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated by the
HKEX Code. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant provisions of the
HKEX Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 110.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

A\ vy " \\
TERERRES

RAFER - HBTORES
RE - BRESRAFENLFESTETERERR

RAFEARBIFBEERD  ARRAZES
ERECHNFI0EESEREER -

EXZEE3  RRAERHEER

BERR-RRR

board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in RAREZHFBEHNTXR
the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEEE BRAE
HERE HERE,
Name of Director BN SHITEBRE SITEBARY
Chairman: xFE:
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai S| EE 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEESAKLHE .
Mr. WONG Cho Fai =EESL S 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: EHITESE .
Mr. CHEW Seong Aun BRREE 4/4 171
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze HEHTELT 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAEHITES :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBSLE 4/4 1/1
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson ERASLE 4/4 1/1
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEE L+ 4/4 11
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Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
that adequate risk management and internal control systems and
management information systems are in place, including being
in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value
for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 85 to 89 of this annual report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEX Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, WONG Cho Fai, CHEW Seong
Aun, WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, HUANG Lester Garson
and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan received regular briefings and updates
on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and
corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations, environmental, social and governance
matters applicable to the Group were provided to the directors.
They also attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on
relevant topics. All directors are requested to provide the Company
with their respective training record pursuant to the CGP Code.
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Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD") are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. WONG Cho Fai is the
GMD of the Company.

The Chairman sets the vision and strategic direction of the
Group and leads the Board and ensures its smooth and effective
functioning. The GMD is responsible for implementing the policies
and decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management, as well
as to determine, with delegated responsibility from the Board as
described under Code B.1.2(c)(i) of the HKEX Code (which has
been renumbered as code provision E.1.2(c)(i) since 1 January
2022), the specific remuneration packages of executive director
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, which may include any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC is accessible
on the Company’s website and Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. HUANG Lester Garson
(Chairman of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and LO Kai Yiu, Anthony.
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson and Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony are INEDs
of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the
Company.
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During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual RAEER > HETRATMHEESSE o ER
attendance of each member are as follows: REHEZBEREIOT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director BEENF BIERRY
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson (Chairman) BERMASLE(EE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai SpLFEE 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBSLE 2/2
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Work done for the financial year 2021/2022

- reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non-
executive directors for the financial year 2020/2021,

- reviewed and approved the discretionary bonuses for
executive directors and senior management for the financial
year 2020/2021;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management;

- reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme;

- recommended the offer and grant of share options to an
executive director, directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
and other eligible executives;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BRC and reviewed
and updated the remuneration policy for directors and
senior management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive director and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2022 are provided in note 9 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role of the BNC is to make recommendations to the
Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of INEDs, the suitability of directors who
will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training and
development programme, to formulate, review and implement
a policy for the nomination of directors (including nomination
procedures) and to formulate a policy concerning board diversity,
monitor the implementation of such policy and to review the same,
as appropriate. Detailed terms of reference of the BNC is accessible
on the Company’s website and Stock Exchange’s website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, one BNC meeting was held. The individual
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attendance of each member is as follows: RELEEZEREIAT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director EEHS BITEERE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) S/ E(EE) 1”1
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUREE 11
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEErz+ 171
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)

Work done during the year

98

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competencies of directors, and the balance
between executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) annually and for
proposed changes of board composition;

reviewed and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

reviewed and assessed the suitability of the directors who
stood for re-election at annual general meeting pursuant to
the process and criteria as set out in the nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”);

reviewed the continuous training and development
programmes undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

reviewed the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”), the Nomination Policy and the terms of reference
of the BNC; and

deliberated the statement relating to BNC for inclusion in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy pursuant to
which the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company maintains that selection of candidates for Board
appointments will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The BNC reviews annually the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which serves as a
guiding mechanism and framework for the BNC on the process
for new appointments and re-appointments of directors, Group
Managing Director and board committee members and their
annual assessment.

The BNC reviews annually the Nomination Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application and will update, amend and modify
as appropriate to ensure it continues to be relevant to needs of
the Company and is consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements.

The Nomination Policy is accessible on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee ("BARMC").

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process, assesses the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems, oversees the
Company’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG") matters
including, among others, monitoring the ESG reporting progress
and reviewing the ESG report as well as the ESG-related risks
and issues. The BARMC meets with the Company’s external and
internal auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal audit
programmes, the results of their examinations as well as their
evaluations of the risk management and internal control systems.
It also reviews directors’ interests in contracts and connected
transactions. The BARMC reviews the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon and submits
its views to the Board. Detailed terms of reference of the BARMC
is accessible on the Company’s website and Stock Exchange’'s
website.

During the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (Chairman of the BARMC), HUANG Lester Garson and
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. HUANG
Lester Garson and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the
Company.

During the year, five BARMC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member are as follows:
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Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
BITERRY

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman)
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan
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5/5
5/5
5/5
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BARMC
during the year:

- reviewed the nature and scope of external audit, the
independence of external auditor and effectiveness of the
audit process and approved the external audit fee and the
engagement terms;

- reviewed the interim financial report, the interim results
announcement, the annual accounts and the final results
announcement;

- reviewed the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control, as well as management’s response thereto;

- reviewed and discussed with the management the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications, experience and training programmes;

- reviewed the Group’s accounting policies and practices;

- reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan;

- reviewed major findings of internal audit assignments and
the progress of implementation of remedial measures on

control issues identified;

- recommended the adoption of the Group’s Whistleblowing
Policy;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance of the Company;

- recommended the adoption of a Climate Change Risk
Management Policy, monitored the ESG reporting progress
and reviewed the ESG report of the Company as well as the
ESG related risks and issues;

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;
- reviewed the terms of reference of the BARMC; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BARMC for
inclusion in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 127 to 133 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 7 to the
financial statements on page 178.

Risk Management and Internal
Control

The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and access risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

- assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group’s risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by the other reports from GIAD on the Group's
internal control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CGP Code.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including restricting employee
access to inside information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring
that those who need to know understand the obligation of
keeping the information confidential. All inside information is
disclosed to the public pursuant to the requirements under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and kept
strictly confidential before disclosure.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(a) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM")

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Directors shall on
the requisition of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholder(s) having a right to vote
at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i)

(ii)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are
as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution
to be put forward at a general meeting

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

= at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy which sets out the
guiding principles with aims to create long term value for its
shareholders through maintaining a balance between dividend
distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and reserve to meet
its working capital requirements, and capturing future growth
opportunities.

Pursuant to this, the Board may propose/declare the payment
of dividend(s) after taking into account the current financial
performance of the Company, the future financial requirements of
the Company and any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board may also decide on the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare/recommend any special distributions.
Dividend(s) may be in the form of cash, shares, distribution in-
specie or any other form as the Board may determine.

The Board may review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time in the interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which will
be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held
pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders
shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the
EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place
for shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company’s website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2022.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company’s website (http://www.lamsoon.com). Information on
the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 236 to 239.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 236 to 239.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2022 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 134 to 235.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Thursday, 10 November 2022 a final dividend of HK$0.33 per
share totaling approximately HK$80,307,000. This, together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share paid on Tuesday, 22
March 2022, will amount to a total dividend of HK$0.48 per share
for the year (2021: interim dividend of HK$0.15 and final dividend
of HK$0.33 per share). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final
dividend will be payable on Thursday, 1 December 2022 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Friday, 18 November 2022.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of Members
(both days inclusive)

7 November 2022 (Monday) to
10 November 2022 (Thursday)
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 4 November 2022

(Friday)
Record date 10 November 2022 (Thursday)

Annual General Meeting 10 November 2022 (Thursday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

17 November 2022 (Thursday) to

18 November 2022 (Friday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 16 November 2022

(Wednesday)

Record date 18 November 2022 (Friday)

Proposed final dividend
payment date

1 December 2022 (Thursday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Office — Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge
transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS
2013") of the Company as disclosed in this Directors’ Report,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 30 June 2022.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

WONG Cho Fai, Group Managing Director**
CHEW Seong Aun*

WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*

HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP*

HO Yuk Wai, Joan*

* Non-executive director
*x Executive director
. Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association and the new Code B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Company, Mr. WONG Cho Fai, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze
and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2022 or during the period from 1 July 2022 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(https://www.lamsoon.com).

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the ‘“Master Services Agreement’’)
dated 3 July 2020 was entered into by Lam Soon (Hong Kong)
Limited (the ""Company’’, together with its subsidiaries, the
""Group'’) with GuolLine Group Management Company Pte. Ltd.
("GGMC") for the provision by the latter of management services
including, among other things, overview and/or oversight of
businesses and operations, investment management and financial
management disciplines, treasury and risk management, key
managerial recruitment and retention as well as other operating
practices and procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services (the “Services”).

(GGMC and Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM")
or other Hong Leong Group company(ies) as may be agreed by
the parties from time to time are referred to as “Service Provider”;
the Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as “Service
Recipients”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)
The fee payable under the Master Service Agreement comprise:

1. a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) as agreed from time
to time between such Service Recipient and the Service
Provider and is currently agreed to be approximately
HK$100,000 per month; and

2. an annual fee (the “Annual Fee"”) equal to 3% of the annual
profit before tax of such Service Recipient as shown in its
audited profit and loss account for the relevant financial
year, subject to appropriate adjustment (for example, to
avoid double counting of profit, if any).

The yearly total fees, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the
Annual Fee and the total amounts of any fees paid or payable by
the Group to any Hong Leong Group companies for services of a
similar nature as the Services, are subject to annual cap of HK$28
million (the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years
ending 30 June 2023.

As at the date of the announcement of the Company made on
3 July 2020 (the “July 2020 Announcement”) relating to the
Master Services Agreement, GGMC (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCA")) was indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of HLCM, the ultimate holding company and
a substantial shareholder of the Company at the time, and thus
GGMC was an associate of a connected person (as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of the
Company under the Listing Rules. On 16 April 2021, GCA replaced
HLCM to become the ultimate holding company and a substantial
shareholder of the Company following the completion of an
internal restructuring exercise (“Internal Restructuring”) with no
change of ultimate beneficial owners, and thus GGMC remains
as an associate of a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules during the year. The transactions under the Master
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
relevant disclosure requirements have been complied with.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transaction under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transaction under the Master Services Agreement for
the year was entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the aggregate services fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$9,763,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$28 million as disclosed in the
July 2020 Announcement.

Master Distribution Agreement

On 27 March 2020, a master distribution agreement (the “Master
Distribution Agreement”) was entered into by Lam Soon (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) with Manuka Health New Zealand Limited (“MHNZ",
together with its subsidiaries, the “MH Group”) pursuant to which
MH Group companies as the principals may during the term of
the Master Distribution Agreement agree to specific appointments
of the Group companies to be the distributor(s) of the full range
of products of the MH Group (the “Products”) in the People’s
Republic of China and such other jurisdictions as the parties may
agree to be included from time to time.

The Master Distribution Agreement is for a term from 27 March
2020 to 30 June 2022 and it will not be renewed upon expiry.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Distribution Agreement (continued)

As at the date of the announcement of the Company made on 27
March 2020 (the “March 2020 Announcement”) related to the
Master Distribution Agreement, MHNZ was an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited (“GGL") which was
an indirect subsidiary of HLCM, the ultimate holding company
and a substantial shareholder of the Company at the time,
and thus MHNZ was an associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Upon completion of the Internal
Restructuring, GCA replaced HLCM to become the ultimate
holding company and a substantial shareholder of the Company
and GGL, and thus MHNZ remains as an associate of a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules during the year.
The transactions under the Master Distribution Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the relevant disclosure
requirements have been complied with.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transaction under the Master Distribution Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

) the transaction under the Master Distribution Agreement
for the year was entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the total amount of purchases of Products paid and payable
by the Group under the Master Distribution Agreement
for the year amounted to approximately HK$8,824,000
which did not exceed the Annual Cap of HK$140 million as
disclosed in the March 2020 Announcement.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Auditor’s Review

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the Master Services Agreement
and the Master Distribution Agreement mentioned above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Connected Transactions
Grant of Share Options — ESOS 2013

On 24 August 2021, the Company granted options in respect of
a total of 8,700,000 shares of the Company (the “Options”) to
the Group Managing Director, directors of certain the Company’s
subsidiaries and other eligible executives of the Company (the
“Grantees”) pursuant to the ESOS 2013, subject to acceptance by
the grantees.

The ESOS 2013 provides that the exercise of the Options would
be/may be satisfied by transfer of existing shares to the grantees.
The Group Managing Director of the Company and directors
of the Company’s subsidiaries (the “Connected Grantees”) are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The grants of Options to the Connected Grantees constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)
Grant of Share Options — ESOS 2013 (continued)

Based on the exercise price, the aggregate consideration payable
by Group Managing Director to acquire the shares of the
Company upon exercise of the Options will be HK$37,775,000.
As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of Options to
Group Managing Director exceed 0.1% but are less 5%, such
grant of Option is subject to the announcement requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the grant of Option to each of the
Connected Grantees who are directors at subsidiary level only
are below 1%. Such grants of Options are fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of granting the Options to the Grantees pursuant to
ESOS 2013 are to i) aligning their long-term interests with those
of the Company’s shareholders; ii) encourage and motivate them
to assume greater responsibility for performance of the businesses
they manage; and iii) retain high calibre executives that are
valuable to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Interests in Contracts and Connected Transactions” above, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2022, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

£
=

EERKRND - HERORE
2 fEm

RZZBZZEARA=1H  FEEERAQFH
HEMAEBEE (ERXRBSRPERG([FEH
RBEHRG DEXVR) BEARBESZRHE
RPIEIS2FRBEMR BT B P AE 2R
DREBARAPZLXRRN - HERORES
ZEERBRBELTRAZ LT AREBETE
ZRGNBRETRH(THRETFA ) AMEERLQF

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by REXZERIOT :
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
(A) The Company (A) A&2ATF
Long positions in shares/underlying shares BR&GIHEBIRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
total number of
Number ordinary shares
of shares/ of the Company
underlying in issue
Nature of shares held ERATESRIT
Name of director interest BERS, Total ZEREH
BEEnA ERME HEROHE #st BHOBE DL
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
LISy = (5PN
WONG Cho Fai Personal 2,500,000 Note 1 2,500,000 1.03%
HEE BA BEt1
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,523,743
ki) (5PN
Corporate 19,326 Note 2 27,543,069 11.32%
A E] Btat2
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
ERB @A
HUANG Lester Garson Family 150,000 150,000 0.06%
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Underlying Shares and Debentures

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHEE

EERRY - HERGORE
HFZEm @)

(continued)
(A) The Company (continued) (A) AT (#E)

Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) B IEER G ZIFE (&)

Notes: Ktat :

1. The interests disclosed represent the personal interests 1. BHRELEFIREZBAERIRE
of Mr. WONG Cho Fai in 2,500,000 underlying shares RATEFMHATEROIZEE 2R
in respect of the share options granted to him by the A T]2,500,000 R HERHD - RRE
Company exercisable within an exercise period of up to 30 ERBREF=TEARITE-
months following the vesting of the options.

2. The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests 2. FipEvEERRELEBLESR

118

of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment
Company, Limited (“SGR") and T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG
Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and
T.C. & Co. respectively.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (B) #EEEEE
Long positions in shares/underlying shares BR&GIHEBIRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
Number shares of
of shares/ associated
underlying corporation
shares in issue
Name of associated Name of Nature of held B EEE BT
corporation director interest EER®%/ Total TERAS
HEZEAE BEEn EEtE HE R 7 & FoH BRERE
Guoline Capital Assets KWEK Leng Hai Personal 841,000 841,000 2.62%
Limited $2E fBA
Guoco Group Limited  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
BEEEBRATE BLE A
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BtREtERRLAT BB BA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BLE Rik
Hong Leong Financial  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,526,000 2,526,000 0.22%
Group Berhad $2E A
("HLFG")
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BLE Rik
CHEW Seong Aun Personal 93,842 Note 93,842 0.00%
ARz A W&z
Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad BLE A
The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
$2E A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued)

Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued)

Note:

The total interests of 93,842 shares/underlying shares comprised
31,281 ordinary shares of HLFG and a share grant of 62,561
underlying shares of HLFG which shall be vested in 2 tranches on
24 November 2022 and 24 November 2023.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options
ESOS 2013

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and took
effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of details of
the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 ("Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

(ii) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

(iii)  to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

(iv)  to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

EERRG - HERORE
HFZRER

(B) 1HEEEE(#E)
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HAERIEB o

BRAXFREEN  BEECARIITESRA
DA REAEAEBEE (RIEE 5 R BERGIE
XVE 2 E&)BEEARBESF R EFRAIZE352
FEEEMRZBTEMIABZROIEER
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IR 10 R B
2013 PR B REST &I
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RAREAREE
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(i) BABRANHE 2 52 B ¥ 5= [ 9 A 2h AF th & RK
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(iv) FEREHFMSBERS - UEE- - B®H
REBSEZNTHAS °
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Share Options (continued)
ESOS 2013 (continued)

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(ii) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share Mot

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note:

The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from 3 March
2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Share Options (continued)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

During the year, 8,700,000 share options were granted pursuant
to ESOS 2013 to the Group Managing Director, directors of the
Company's subsidiaries and other eligible executives of the Group.
Details of the share options as at 30 June 2022 are as follows:

R BB @)
2013 PR BREST &I (F)

RAREER » BE2013RHABESEBERD
AEEESLALE  AQFAHBLARAMNESK
Hih5ERTHAERE S 8,700,000 B2
PreRBEE RZE-Z_FEXA=1+8 " RH
RBEZFEBNOT

Number of share options

ReOZBESE
Exercised/ Exercise
Lapsed/ As at price per
Granted cancelled 30 June share
during  during the year 2022 BRITEE
Date of grant Grantees the year RAEER RZB-ZF HK$ Notes
R AH ERA REEERRE 76/ &8/ BH ~AZ1H B i
24 August 2021 WONG Cho Fai 2,500,000 = 2,500,000 15.11 1&2
(Group Managing Director)
“EC-FE\AZtWE  EEE(REESLLE)
24 August 2021 Directors of the Company's 4,400,000 (800,000) 3,600,000 15.11 1&2
subsidiaries
ZEC-ENAZTEA ARANBARANES
24 August 2021 Other eligible executives 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 15.11 1&2
“EC-FNAZTWE HUEERTHAR
Total 8,700,000 (800,000) 7,900,000

Notes: Kzt -

1. Vesting of the options is subject to the achievement of the 1. FERBEDREA-ZS_ZEFLtA—HZE
prescribed financial and performance targets and contribution CTENMFEARA=THMBREENREHE
criteria to be met by the grantees for the financial periods from 1 AERABERCHERXNFERMNRBEEER
July 2020 to 30 June 2024. BRIAERE -

2. At the end of the relevant performance period, the Board 2. REBRBRIPBBEERE EZSFMEEsE
Remuneration Committee of the Company shall determine, at BEERZBEAMTERNTEETBRIKEE
its discretion, the extent of achievement of the financial and EREM BERERBENEBRERE
performance targets and contribution criteria in respect of that REECENROHEE - BERABEBHE
period, and decide on the vesting of the options and the number ERBEENGEE YRR EERBEEE
of shares comprised in the vested options. Thereafter, the grantees SF=TEBARTHECEBNREE -
shall be notified of the vesting of the options and shall be able to
exercise the vested options within an exercise period of up to 30
months following the vesting of the options.
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Share Options (continued)
ESOS 2013 (continued)

Saved as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, the number of outstanding options was 7,900,000 at
30 June 2022.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of CGA, the ultimate
holding company of the Company during the year, maintain share
option schemes or plans or arrangements which subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, under which
eligible directors of the Company may be granted share options for
acquisition of shares of respective companies concerned.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

R BB @)
2013 PR BREST &I (F)

BRANFTIEEEIN RAFEER » £20138
DRBEFETEIREIMIBEERIATE -
T KMBECE - Bk RZE-_F <A
=+8  EHRITEZRBEESEE A7,900,000 °

BREXFES  GCA(BREARAR ZHERERD
A)zETHEMHBLAANGEE A NFERNEM
BECKRZWROZDBESFENTEILH
Bt AAFSERESTERIABEBELT
B2 2 R RABHE o

Br EXCFRLE SN RAFER  ADQF - £
BAT -~ MEQBENERMNE A REEMER
BEXBEMNLHEZTNT  UBEALTES
AREWBAQAREMEMEE 2RO RNES
BRI -

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R, 123



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHEE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2022, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZERER

RZZBZZFEAA=Z1TH BREFHZRPER
PIE3BFBEMR 2B L BMFAE - T3
BERREXFAARBDESAFBERQ T ZR
DRBEBRD P ZXRRO RAAERD 2 #H)
FAERRARDBEERA P ZXBRD KA
BARRAD 2 -

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest

BEZRHOHE RHZZBIEIHL

Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCA") 156,114,659 64.15%
QUEK Leng Chan ZB< & 156,114,659 64.15%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 156,114,659 64.15%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 156,114,659 64.15%
KWEK Leng Kee 156,114,659 64.15%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by Guoline International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,781,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. Oceanease Limited was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of GGL. GGL was 71.88% owned by Guoline
Overseas Limited (“GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the SFO, Mr. QUEK Leng Chan
held 49.11% interest in GCA. HLIH held 34.49% interest in GCA. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

BEE -

ZHEFHBFE() Guoline International Limited ([ GIL])
BBERARRQNT140,008,659RZ BT 2 5 (NKA
Az &K B2 FRichly Choice Development (PTC)
LimitedE B RA QT 6,781,000 REBER 2 EH &
(iii) Oceanease LimitedEBEAIE L HETET EIFH
RN F]9,325,000 R HHEE M D 2 = o

GILAGCAZZEM BT o Oceanease Limited &
B ERAEEERATZEZEWNBLAR #EHH
EZEEWBAT  B%271.88% M EGuoLine
Overseas Limited([ GOL]) # & ° GOLBGCAZZE
MEBAR - REFHFERBMEMRGAEI QKRBT
BELIBEELEEBGCGCAZA9.11%HEZE o HLIHEEBGCA
34.49% 2 # i o KWEK Leng Kee 5t 4 35 & Davos
41.92% 2 % » ™ Davos I3 F B HLIH 33.59% 2 %
*g °

RO HBEAEESERFEARRAFRE
BRI

BRANFHEEEN  REFLERBERME
336MFRBEMR < ELMATCEE - WEAMA
T(ARRAESHRINFERLTARDABEER
Kz KRR RAABERD 2 S o
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Update on Director’s Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information on the Company’s director is set out below:

Mr. Huang Lester Garson (“Mr. Huang”), SBS, JP, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has been appointed as
a director of Pacific Basin Economic Council Limited on 24 May
2022, and a director of HKJC Horse Racing Betting Limited and
HKJC Lotteries Limited on 8 September 2022.

Mr. Huang has resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Top Glove Corporation Bhd., a company listed on Bursa
Malaysia and Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, on
13 September 2022.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options which may be
granted to the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 April
2013, purchased 1,292,000 shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of HK$18,636,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares and neither did the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group's revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

EEEREN

RIFEHRAFE1351B(R - ARREBEHR
BRAT

ERARE(EELE))  REHEE  XFH
T (RRRZBAFHPTES) R-ZZF--F
ERACZHHNHEZREARFIHEREEES
ERDBZESE  RR-ZT-"FNLANEE
ZEREASEESHEYARAAREESS
REBRARZES -

BEREER-ZEZZFAAT=ZHRE—F
RERBERZARITINERS A ETHTop
Glove Corporation Bhd (ERFERBRAF) Z
BIYEHTES -

BE - HEIEEALQFZ
L

RAFER  ARABZE2ENRBAR (EE—
BEEZZTIA ZEADAKREBEAATZ
BOMEY » ELUBTRERAQATIR=ZZE—=
FNAZ+=ABRMAZTRAERMDREE
SRR c RO RBRETE) BB
BBE 1,292,000 AT RHD  BREBBE
18,636,000 ©

Br EXFIIERSN  RAFER  AQFHER

B EEM EmRESE - A DB H M S
RAYEBEIHERMAART 2 LHRS -

TEEFRHEER

FEBETHEANBAUTFNBARGEERE
EARFEHERDIRI0% °

AEEBERANELUHEBNBEREGESR
SEAFEBEREIN30% °

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R, 125



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHEE

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year and up to 24 August 2022, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2022

BRAZABEFERE

ERARARARAERcENRBESA
B OEAFEARBEEZEZZFNAZTMXE
B AR -—BE#EFETRAMTAZLORE
RE -

B RED

ETEHETMEHIRERTEERERE -
BMEBRZRRBETS  BRERERE &
BREREETRHETMEBEAAR AR NLEA

AEBEED
TE
BLE

58 —E__F/A\A=-+MA
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 134 to 235, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BYRBEERE
HEIE(ER)BRAFAKE
(REBEMAELAIBIRLE])

=
=2

2 A (AT R [ M) EFJAFIERE134
HEF25WEIE(ER)BRAR (LT EHE
[ERRDRAMBARUATHAE EXE DG
FEMBEHE  WYBRREBER-ZZ-2FX
A=+t HENGEEUBRRNREBEZA LFEN
meBEk  FeBskHAZEWRSEX K&
RE2BRIGERERER  URGEHBR
®MEE - BETERSTEREE -

EMRR  ZEFEUBRRCRESTBSE
NERME(EBUBRESEADEEMH IR
MTEEBN-_Z-_F A=+ BENGFEHK
RRARBEZBEFENGESHBERRRESR
ERE  WEBREB(ARRA) ZR5E -

RRENER

EMERBEBSTMASEMN(EBETE
B ETET - RAEZXZFEYTAENEEE
EARE [ RBMRETFEMBRREEN
BEE ISP EE-—SEML - RIBEBETEA
SRMH(EXSTHMERTRD) (AT ERE <
Bl RMBINEEE - WCETTRIFHE
B EEREIE - RFERE - RAMESHNERT
BREEAEREEHLARMPVFTZRREHRE
B o
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Key audit matters

FAREFTSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BRETEEERERMNVEXHE > AAEAK
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the B ARV ETRAEEMNSIE - &=
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEARME T EREESBRREEEZRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EITEEY BREFSHESEEEEHERNS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our =

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 164 to 166

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and home care products are
recognised as revenue when the control of the products
are transferred to the Group’s customers according to
the terms of the sales and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and its customers.

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products
is transferred to the Group’s customers.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in
recognising revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive
for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

o comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

o identifying significant sales returns from the sales
ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

FARETEE @

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 164 to 166

(continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

LN

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

o selecting a sample of journal entries affecting
revenue recognised during the year, adopting
specific risk-based criteria, and comparing the details
of these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.

FL BRI RFE 164EEE 166 RIS BIF

BEETER

BAME T AR R EE

Y RFRRREREERNHENER 2 R RRE
REREAE ST NEE RSB ERERE S
AN

EEMZEHTREREZERETFRERBWA -
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5 RMS B AR ARG
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HERR U A B HH SR Y AT REME ©
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Key audit matters (continued)

FARETEE @

W AR ()
BB E B IREMAIRE 164 E 166 RS 71 (#8)
BEEEE(H) RANBESTNAEEZSEE(E)

R AR FETNENRFBELT : (&)

Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EENSRSMBRRARE
MEE
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinuead)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

132

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 August 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

2022 2021

—EB-—fF B —F

Note HK$'000 HK$°000

Kt B FT JBEF T

Revenue WA 5 6,106,635 5,761,248

Cost of sales SHERA (4,963,246) (4,476,856)

Gross profit EF 1,143,389 1,284,392

Other income HAn A 6 40,193 45,966

Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEEBER (694,554) (711,441)

Administrative expenses THEHR (203,301) (197,881)

Profit from operations KRR 285,727 421,036

Finance costs BhE KA 7 (296) (283)

Profit before taxation RRBEATR R 7 285,431 420,753

Taxation 18 8(a) (28,171) (63,055)

Profit for the year REEREF 257,260 357,698
Earnings per share SREF

Basic and diluted BEARREE 11 HK$E%1.097T HK$BEH1.517%T

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 10.

FIRE 1428 EE235B 2 B EH F BRI KR
K2 —ED o BAFAQBREREENEREEF
IR E 2 BEYIAMEE10 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERmkHEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFTT
Profit for the year REERR 257,260 357,698
Other comprehensive income for the AREEFEHM2EWE (HBREHE
year (net of nil tax and REH S ERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEEFsEERRKR2ER
profit or loss:
Equity investments at FVOCI — net RAVEES AR 2 ERE N RE
movement in fair value reserve RE- LNV EEREZESFERE
(non-recycling) (FATEEE) 39 (5,079)
Item that may be reclassified HeEnEF»EZERKR2ER ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of HEE BN B A B R
financial statements of subsidiaries FEEZERER
outside Hong Kong (50,580) 175,805
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEZEEE
for the year G 170,726
Total comprehensive income AEEZHKRGZEE
for the year 206,719 528,424
The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial SIRE1428EH 235 B 2 K BEMT BRI KR
statements. FK2—EH o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At30June 2022 R-—ZE-—®#XA=+H

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT JBEF T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and property, HETRYE -
plant and equipment BEREE 12 846,003 824,301
Intangible assets and goodwill B EENDE 13 5,671 5,199
Other financial assets HitemEE 14 118,778 82,760
Deferred tax assets IEIERIIBEE & 20 884 672
Other non-current assets HibEREEE 3,841 4,250
975,177 917,182
Current assets REEE
Inventories =ZE 15(a) 868,995 849,824
Trade and other receivables B REMEWERT 16 415,335 355,390
Other financial assets HihemEE 14 - 67,669
Cash and short term funds REeEREHES 17 1,541,454 1,485,477
2,825,784 2,758,360
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAESIRR 18(a) 745,825 726,111
Contract liabilities scEAEE 18(b) 69,492 35,536
Tax payables NN 8(c) 9,291 12,772
Lease liabilities HERE 19 3,177 3,365
827,785 777,784
Net current assets BREBEE 1,997,999 1,980,576
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,973,176 2,897,758
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 20 12,813 15,246
Lease liabilities HEERE 19 1,239 1,847
14,052 17,093
NET ASSETS BEE 2,959,124 2,880,665
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At30June 2022 R-—ZE-—®#XA=+H

2022 2021
—EB-—fF B —F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
bat BT JBEF T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EEREE
Share capital %N 21(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves #15 2,286,347 2,207,888
TOTAL EQUITY Pl 2,959,124 2,880,665

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 KHESEFN _Z-__FNA-THAERE

August 2022. RETIE o

WONG Cho Fai HEHE CHEW Seong Aun AR

DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial FIRE142B EFE235B 2 BFEMF BRI R
statements. FK2—ED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRRER
Share Fair value
Share Surplus ESoP option  Exchange reserve Revenue
capital reserves reserve reserve reserve  (non-recycling) reserve Total
fiHAE hft
RiRER TR ATEERS

Br  BREE  FRER B ERE  (FUER)  ads ait
Note  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00

i i T BT BT BT M B B

At 1 July 2021 HoF-FtA-H 672,711 173,182 (68,546) = 11,658 (5,070) 2,030,064 2,880,665

Profit or the year KERRR - - - - - - BN 257,260
Equity investments at FVOC - net BOTEE A2 ARG

movement i fair value reserve MRERE-1TEESE

(non-tecycling) £HFE(TTER) = = S - - 3 - 3

Transfer of gain on disposal of equity B FERATERFARE

investments at FVOCIto revenue reserve WENRERE 2 W& - - - - - (595) 595 -
Bxchange diferences on translation of ~ EEBNAHEAT
finandial statements o subsidiares BHERIEL
outside Hong Kong EXER = = - - (50,580) - - (50,580)
Total comprehensive income for the year  REE2AWHAS = = = - (50,580) (55%6) 7855 206719
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ REREEZHRRA
LY 7 - - - 2531 - - - 2537
Purchase of ordinary shares of the ARAIRE HEERNT
Company for share option scheme JEER 20 - - (18,636) - - - - (18,636)
Transfer from revenue resene tosurplus  EEBEAT RAGE
reserye - 9,734 - - - - (9,734) -
Forfeture of unclaimed dividends RURERRRE 100 - - - - - - 1,050 1050
Finaldividend paid n respect of prior year REEEEARERE 1000 - - - - - - (18%) (77,895
Interm cividend paid in respect of FAREEEARARE
current year 10) - - - - - - (35,316) (35,316)
- 9,734 (18,636) 2531 - - (121,895) (128,260)
At 30 June 2022 RoB-ZERB=TH 672,111 183,516 (87,182) 2531 21,018 (5,626) 2,166,024 2,959,124
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRTRREL
Fair value
Share Surplus £sop Exchange reserve Revenue
capital TESEIVES reserve reserve  (non-recycling) Teserve Total
figAR
BB DV EERE

Bx  Bedk  GRER ENRE (TUBR)  WEGR &it
Note HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS'000
Wi E¥Fr ERTn ERFn ERTn ERFn BT ERTR

At 1 July 2020 W-E-2E+B-A 672,771 161,567 (53,094) (98,147) - 1,193,794 2,476,897
Profit o the year RERRA - - - - - 357,698 357,698
Equity investments at FVOCI - ROVEEALAENE

net movement in fair value reserve NRERE - TEERR

(non-recycling) 2TE(TUER) - - - - (5,079) - (5,079

Transfer of loss on disposal of equity ~ ERLERATEEFAZE
investments at FVOCI to revenue reserve  EMRERE 7B - - - - 9 9) -

Exchange differences on translation of ~ REFENMBAT
financial statements of subsidiaries HRERIELL

outside Hong Kong EREE - - - 175,805 - - 175,805
Total comprehensive income for the year  REE2ENHEE - - - 175,805 (5,070) 357,689 58424

Purchase of ordinary shares of the RRAZEEHIBENLT
Company for share option scheme JEER 1) - - (15,452) - - - (15,452)

Transfer from revenue reserve tosurplus B EERTRIHE

reserve - 12,465 - - - (12,465) -
Utilisation of discretionary surplus reserve  EREEREERE - (250) - - - - (250)
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year HAFECRHFEHRE 10b) - - - - - (73.461) (73,461)

Interim dividend paid in respect of FREECATERE

current year 1003) - - - - - (35,493) (35,493)
- 12,215 (15452) - - (121.419) (124 656)
At 30 June 2021 R-E--£5B=1R 672,771 173,182 (68,546) 71,658 (5,070) 2,030,064 2,880,665
The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial FIRE 1428 EE2358 2 R IEW T B AR5
statements. R2—M -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BtaE BEFT BEF T
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation FRE AT R A 285,431 420,753
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation and amortisation E R 7 65,977 62,914
Write-down of inventories FERE 15(b) 361 3,816
Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised B HEWERAR 2 EE
for trade receivables BE(ER) B2 7 (54) 2
Finance costs A& R AR 7 296 283
Interest income on financial assets REERATESREE
measured at amortised cost ZABWA 6 (24,675) (26,764)
Dividend income from equity securities RERFZREWA 6 (5,262) (3,535)
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on club S RS FEE
membership (Uas) 6 93 (43)
Net (gains)/losses on disposal of HEWE  BEREE
property, plant and equipment ZE (W) R 6 (127) 2,608
Share-based payment expenses RIEXNEA 7 2,537 -
Net unrealised exchange losses/(gains) FERERFER
(W) 1,358 (6,169)
Changes in working capital: EELLHEE
Increase in inventories FE 2 (42,657) (147,016)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B REMEWERER 2
receivables (3g i), (63,861) 9,232
Increase in trade and other payables B REMEMRRZ
40 48,615 15,227
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities — &REA/2EMGEL) 35,906 (7,469)
Cash generated from operations REEKABHRS 303,938 323,839
Taxation: g -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBREHR (4,034) (4,377)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong 2B EBUIRIE (30,409) (88,818)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMBRSTFE
activities 269,495 230,644
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—ZE-—F X XB=1tHIEE

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BEFT BT T

Investing activities REEH
Increase in fixed deposits held at banks FEERZIAEA=EA L

with original maturity over three months L HYSR{TEEIER 2 120 (323,347) (15,875)
Payment for the purchase of leasehold BERAESLHEYE  BE

land and property, plant and REBHEUARBREEZ

equipment and intangible assets BEN (107,692) (140,136)
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEME MENRRKRE

plant and equipment Fﬁ?%?kﬁ;%‘a"%ﬁ 466 320
Payment for purchase of: BERE

— debt securities —1a7']'% 55 (24,105) (67,722)

— equity securities —Hﬁmmé‘? (18,501) (91,261)
Proceeds from: {8 2h1E

— maturity of debt securities —1;5%%%5‘]35 67,725 -

- sale of equity securities - HERERS 6,452 4,237
Interest received [ELEISE 23,620 29,781
Dividends received from investment in REREFFESWERE

equity securities 4,963 2,130
Net cash used in investing activities BRETSHFTARERE (370,419) (278,526)
Financing activities RMEEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of RO RERETEEE

the Company for share option scheme AP EBR 21(a) (18,636) (15,452)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 HERS 2 EARIH 17(b) (4,784) (4,497)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfHEHRS 2 F BB 17(b) (296) (283)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of (Y FAQATRKRZ I E

the Company (113,211) (108,954)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFMARESFE (136,927) (129,186)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREFHEFERD

equivalents (237,851) (177,068)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtA—RAZBEER

RE%H 1,277,330 1,337,336
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZ# 5> & (29,519) 117,062
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAB=1+HZELR
BEEH 17(a) 1,009,960 1,277,330

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial HIRE142B EH 2358 2 FIEM T AR IR
statements. R2—MD
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142

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

General information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and home care
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

1

—RE#

MEIE(EB)ERQBA(AQTNH—H
REBEMEUINBRAT - ARAH
AMREER ETELEMBURNE BN
RABABIENKEH =T -5 -

ARABA—BERAT  ETEZXEBAR
BER - ARAZHBARZEEXE
ERER - PEARAMB(HED R
REAREHEERH  ANERRREER
EmNEE - BZNREE -

BEESITEHE
() E<rEH

L BHRCRETBETEQ
S((ERETMIE ) EMZ
FrEERCE R B HREED)
(TERMBHREER]) - LEBE
BEREERZER(E B HR
HEA) - (BREFTEANTEE
SRR DRERE  EEBEER
RETRAREB(RERG) 2
BREREMMRRE - AP BHRKRL
HEBEBBEXZMARQAR
FEWRA(T ETRR D ZER
BERIBRE - TXIEHARTF
REMBLR (S8 [ AEE )R
Mz ERETBORME -

BEETRMASCHEME TRA
SEASTHBEERERRAH
REFMANEBMBERELEZ
1ERT - M2 RBMEBAREE
AEst Bz BRREIDRH
THERAMKBOSEBE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- club membership;

- investments in equity securities (see note
2(f)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note

2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(o)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-Z

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investment in
subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 24(f). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

(f) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(t)(iv)).

- fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") — recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") if the investment does not
meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies 2 EESTHBERw

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity (f)
securities (continued)

(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to revenue reserve. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(t)(iii).

Derivative financial instruments (9)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and items
of property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)
(ii)). The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after an
item of property, plant and equipment has been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situation where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(h)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease.

Buildings and leasehold 2-25 years
improvements
Machineries, equipment, 3-20 years

furniture and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Enterprise planning resources 5 years
system ("ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()]

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()]

2

BEESTBE @

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(t)(ii).

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets

The loss allowance of trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECLs"), which are
those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
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Significant accounting policies

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and short
term funds, investments in debt securities
and other receivables), the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including club membership, investments
in equity securities and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date with any changes recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of financial assets through a
loss allowance account.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the counterparties
does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Significant accounting policies

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

(k)

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

BEESTBE @

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (including construction in
progress and right-of-use assets);

intangible assets;
goodwill; and
investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit (“CGU")).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(k)

0

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

U

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(1)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(t)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Cash and short term funds

Cash and short term funds comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and short
term funds are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(k)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(q)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(q)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

BB ERAR =T ==

2 EESHHEX@

(r)

T _FFHR

&% (&)

FEERSHREDR AEHNERH
EERIREEMNIREE - RS
THBUEAEHERBENUE
REENBANRNELERBEE
FLUHRM - ERERTREHE RN
HMERBUERE - AIAEBINRET
LA o

REIRKRE FrELENTEINEHR
REFE BRSNS RE

N
o

ENMEHERRELREHA
BRESBHESOMIIR X H
TTHEE BRRELEFREHE
EESEARAIAEEBEEE
TERUENMEHEEREE
HREHas LAFESUTH
TIRGFHBERT » A A2 BIE
HERRIELERESHAE

- EHRSHEERSERE:
AATRRAEEEZF
HEELHE  JRKER
ZEENGEZEE X

-  EEMBSHEERSER:
ELEEHREEXARF
— BB LT Eh—
W FTEHER

- E-ERBES;
%

- TREANERKRE
o ELERTE
kEHESEETE
REELEFRERE
EFEEERKRE
EEFTSHEET
AR EIH R A
RFBEEEER
EMEHREEM
REEHFREHRE
& RNEFERZ
BENGEZAE -

163



2

164

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required
to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Sales of the Group’s products are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are passed to
the customer. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments

is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(v) Related parties

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

2

(v) BEAL

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Accounting estimates and
judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 23 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management'’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 12.

Impairment of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill

Determining whether leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. If the estimation
of value in use is different, any reversal or further
impairment will impact the profits or losses of the
Group. The details of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill are disclosed in
notes 12 and 13 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Accounting estimates and
jUdgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2022, deferred tax assets of
HK$6,307,000 (2021: HK$6,192,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
20. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$252,161,000
(2021: HK$244,738,000) and temporary differences
of HK$81,655,000 (2021: HK$93,382,000)
arising from impairment of certain leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further
recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-Z

4 Segment reporting

172

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each

segment:

Food: manufacture and distribution of a wide
range of food products including flour,
edible oils and specialty fats, and trading and
distribution of health products.

Home Care: manufacture and distribution of household
and institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
s “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include tax payables, all trade and
other payables and contract liabilities attributable
to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and lease liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 DEHRE @
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) SEHEE BEREBEE)
(continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RN ANBIRE2EZREBEF
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as BEIMVWA  URBAAEERES
well as information regarding the Group’s reportable BITHERAEZAEE T 2R
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior DEPEREFNT

executive management is set out below:

2022 2021
ZECCE - St
Segment Segment
Food Home Care Total Food  Home Care Total
fm  FEEE M4 ‘m FEEE o4

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTn  BRTx  EBRTx BB ERTn ERTx

Disaggregated by timing of ~ REBRHKERKA

revenue recognition on RRAREIE
point in time
Revenue from external customers ~ #5M&FFZIHA 5283560 823075 6,106,635 495,534 804714 5761248

Reportable segment profit from ~ A2HAH2 &L
operations & 274,857 55,092 329,949 379,159 85,740 464,899

Interest income on financial assets  REHRAFT 2SR

measured at amortised cost BEZASHA 18,376 4,409 22,785 20,417 3,88 24,299
Finance costs HERR (230) (46) (276) (205) (52) (257)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (54,498) (4,699) (59,197) (50,697) (4,110) (54,807)

Other material profit or loss items:  HtEEHRFER -

- Net exchange (losses)/gains -ERF(ER)/
i (932) 251 (681) (4,470) (1,028) (5,498)
- Loss allowance reversed/ -EAENERR
(recognised) for trade BiakfE
receivables B/ () 56 ) 54 11 (13) Q)
Taxation g (8,984) (9.916)  (18900)  (27,249) (189200  (46,169)
Reportable segment assets A2RAWER 2,781,421 324578 3105999 2,687,394 296,146 2,983,540
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI H2EE 678,713 149,206 827,919 617,525 148,784 766,309
Additions to non-current EnwaHER
seqment assets &g 82,451 6,786 89237 155774 7533 163,307
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 DEHRE @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) TUEFRSIPzBEHEK BEK
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EENHER
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Profit A
Reportable segment profit from A 2o W2 L& BT
operations 329,949 464,899
Unallocated exchange (losses)/gains KOBZER (EE),
Wz (1,852) 8,085
Unallocated net realised and unrealised AROBZiTEE@MTEZ
gains/(losses) on derivative financial SEE N REIE
instruments FiE S (B5E) 995 (6,753)
Unallocated interest income on financial X% B2 REHEKATE
assets measured at amortised cost TRIEEZFEWA 1,890 2,465
Dividend income BEWA 5,262 3,535
Unallocated head office and corporate RO BLZHEATR
expenses THEER (50,517) (51,195)
Finance costs BME R (296) (283)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRBIADRF] 285,431 420,753
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A2 B2EE 3,105,999 2,983,540
Elimination of inter-segment receivables % & FEUWFIE 2 K EH (17,209) (10,487)
3,088,790 2,973,053
Deferred tax assets ELEFIEEE 884 672
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBLZHEATKR
assets TEEE 711,287 701,817
Consolidated total assets SEREE 3,800,961 3,675,542
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AZHozas 827,919 766,309
Elimination of inter-segment payables %385 FEAS FRIE 2 3K £ (17,209) (10,487)
810,710 755,822
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIEEE 12,813 15,246
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBZERATR
liabilities rEEE 18,314 23,809
Consolidated total liabilities LmEemas 841,837 794,877
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

4 Segment reporting (ontinued) 4 DHHRE@
Geographical information (0 HEEHR
The following table sets out information about TREVHHEBNBEEREHE()
the geographical location of (i) the reportable AZ2WoMBEHIEFZBA T K
segment’s revenue from external customers and (VFEEENHELTHREYE - K
(ii) the Group's leasehold land and property, plant ENFE EFEENRBEERY
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill and ¥ BERRBEAMRE(EE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment FREBEE]) - BEFWABHE
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical TIRIERBIZEHSFEYEX 2 i
location of customers is based on the location at IMEBEE -HELTHWRYE K
which the services were provided or the goods ERRENIEHERRERE
delivered. The geographical location of the leasehold WME - ME - MERRERE
land and property, plant and equipment is based NRENFIBEIRIEEEE
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of WE . MEBREERBENE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment, the wERIDREEESERINEE
location of operations and in the case of intangible BEME ©
assets and goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.
2022 2021
—E-CF —E--
Hong Kong  Mainland Hong Kong ~ Mainland
and Macau China Total and Macau China Total
ERRAM HE AR fit BBREM  TEAE &t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EETm  BETn BEFr BT BT
Revenue from external customers E9EF ZIA 798,991 5,307,644 6,106,635 725353 5,035,895 5,761,248
Specified non-current assets  EEFREEE 82,715 772,800 855,515 80499 753,251 833,750
HIBE(EB)BRAA | 2T _FF W 175
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Revenue

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
on pages 236 to 239.

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax and other related taxes to external
customers.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

5

WA

AABE—EREEZERAR  HEXEMH
BRAAIMEEEKFINE236EES
239H o

BARKELERBBRAETHIE
B HIBRITH - BEBMEMAEHIE
BV EWRRE ©

BEXIREMIAMBLIBZRERTFEME
HBAZZWT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEIREENFE+HIEEER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 AZRBEEFERMNKA
Disaggregated by major products or REEEERTRBEE D
service lines
— Sales of goods -HEmm 6,106,635 5,761,248

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographical
markets is disclosed in notes 4(a) and 4(c) respectively.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, there was
no single external customer that contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s total revenue from external customers.

RUABEIREAREETSZE D ZREB
BEFERMNWBA D BIR M EE4(a) &40+
WEE -

BE-Z-_—_FR-Z-_—-FXA=+
BLEFE AEEEHESEEENDR
AREEBHNEFABANES ZTH
B-FFo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

6 Other income

6 HAWA

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BEFIT
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 367 702
Income from food supply reservation BEmEEAERA 292 4,378
Net gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HEW%E BERREZ
plant and equipment Tl (E518) 127 (2,608)
Interest income on financial assets BEHEATATESREEZ
measured at amortised cost FEWA 24,675 26,764
Dividend income (note (ii) B B (Bt az i) 5,262 3,535
Net exchange (losses)/gains BE 5% (B518) W (2,533) 2,587
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses)  $TEERMITEZE#BER
on derivative financial instruments KREBEFWE(FE)
(note (iii)) (Hazii) 1,228 (6,457)
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on club SEIABRE(ER) NS
membership (93) 43
Government grants (note (i)) BB (FraE) 4,921 12,447
Others Hih 5,947 4,575
40,193 45,966
Notes: BEE -

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2022, government grants
primarily represented one-off government subsidies
granted due to COVID-19 pandemic of HK$2,700,800
(2021: HK$8,958,000) under the Employment Support
Scheme of Hong Kong.

The Group recognised dividend income of HK$5,262,000
(2021: HK$3,535,000) from the equity securities
designated at FVOCI, of which HK$Nil (2021: HK$125,000)
related to investment derecognised during the year
and HK$5,262,000 (2021: HK$3,410,000) related to
investments held at 30 June 2022.

The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk exposures
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Profit before taxation

7

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRE AR A

BREALERE MR, G THEE

2022 2021
—EB-—fF B —F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Finance costs AL A A
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) HEBBFNE(HE17(0b)) 296 283
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXS(BREEEME -
emoluments - note 9) FEE9)
Salaries, wages and other benefits TE  HFeREMER 435,783 416,802
Share-based payment expenses REZANE R 2,537 -
Contribution to defined contribution TERREFERETE 2 MR
retirement plans (note (i) (Bi1EEG)) 37,458 19,316
475,778 436,118
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE S
Audit services RE AR 1,987 1,818
Tax and other services B R H RS 296 329
2,283 2,147
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH
Leasehold land and property, HEITHEYE  BERRE
plant and equipment 65,015 59,672
Intangible assets BEEE 962 3,242
65,977 62,914
Other items Hiig B
Net exchange losses/(gains) B % FEE () 2,533 (2,587)
Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised for B HEWERR 2 EEEE
trade receivables (E18), 'R (54) 2
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) TFERA(KaE150b)) 4,963,246 4,476,856
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-Z=-_

Profit before taxation (continved

Notes:

()

(i)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, social security
contributions amounted to HK$13,873,000 were exempted
in Mainland China following the government introduced
temporary waiver from the payment of social security
contributions due to COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 14% to 16%
(2021: 14% to 16%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended
30 June 2022.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2021: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately. Save for the above schemes, the Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

8 Taxation 8 MIH
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) NEEEZERZFTES
loss represents:
2022 2021
—ECCF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZREFIE-FAFNEH
Provision for the year REFERHME 3,436 4,087
Over-provision in respect of prior years {XFEE 2 BEERE (448) (266)
. S 3821
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong RERE - FHBLUI
Provision for the year REERE 28,298 63,833
(Over)/under-provision in respect of FFEEZ(BE),
prior years TREBE (473) 344
. 27,825 64,177
Deferred tax (note 20) EERE (f1aE20)
Origination and reversal of ERMEENEERER
__temporary differences (2642) (4,943)
28,171 63,055

180

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduced the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
gazetted on 29 March 2018.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation
in Hong Kong for the years of assessment
commencing on or after 1 April 2018 will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-Z

8 Taxation (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2021.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%).

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding
tax at the applicable rate of 5% on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. Deferred tax liabilities have been
provided for in this regard based on the expected
distributable dividends by its subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of profits generated
after 31 December 2007.

MR (&

T _FARA=TRLEEE

8 H®iEw

(a)

JERRE | —F - _FFH

RERSBRERZBIAR © (F)

BB UM IR IS A i B R BE AR
FIEEzETHEARMMETE
ARBBNRZBER 2R ERTE
BIBLIASTH ©

FEEPERELSEEZERIM
IZETERRPEADEMS
BT RERBHD - Bt - RE
BETE__FRZZEZ—FXA
=1 B 1L F E L& T MR AT BREY
2 ER R PR 2
FrigHt -

RABEKELE 2HEMHE L
T FRDTEE EHT%B%
(ZZBZ=Z—%F :25%)

[l $Elmﬁﬁ¢lk@ﬂ

MK ECER-_ZBELEFZ
B=+-— Héﬁéim,ﬂW&
2K 0 RIE AR RS % M MTE

BloBtAH  EREBEEPEK
BERINMPECER-ZETLF
T A=+ -HEELZENE
A2k REFRELERIER
& o
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8 Taxation (continued) 8 MIEw
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) FEZHESIHBAIREARE
profit at applicable tax rates: ZEEBRNT ¢
2022 2021
—EB-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BT
Profit before taxation BREL AT =R 285,431 420,753
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERAR B S8
calculated at the rates applicable to BETHERBADGEF
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 2 Z&Hi1E 71,743 105,646
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses B - R HIRA B
B 3,822 6,498
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEBRBNA 2T E (5,792) (4,537)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFUBRNBKER
BB E 1,540 5,282
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FERARUAIEERT LAER
not previously recognised REEBEZbEE (1,256) (2,539)
Effect of tax concessions REERzTE (50,185) (64,440)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of AEE2(GBE) /TRBE
prior years (921) 78
Withholding tax on dividend and royalty E2WREWRTEREAZ
received and receivable from PRC MBARRERSHE
subsidiaries ZTENH 8,645 16,950
Others Hith 575 117
Actual tax expenses ERFHIES 28,171 63,055
(c)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () HHEAHBRREBWEEEE
financial position represents: REK:
2022 2021
—E__F —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BEF T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REERBRNEGHEE
for the year 3,436 4,087
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax FEEZ2EBREH
payable relating to prior years (S = 48R 770 1,165
4,206 5,252
Provision for profits tax outside BB IERE
Hong Kong 5,085 7,520
Tax payables P TR 9,291 12,772
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Directors’ and senior executives’ 9 EERSHTHA SN
emoluments €
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=MS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEBCA THEMYEI8IMNER
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (RBEI(FEESFRER RHD
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information 2B CEENENT ¢
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme Share-based
fees inkind ~ Bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments 2022
(Note (v)) (Note (vii))
g
2R i)
Ezhe  EWAE L HEER Mt REXR  ZBoCE
(i) (ki)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT B¥fn BT B¥Fr B BEFn B¥a
Executive director 788
WONG Cho Fai (otes () & i) ERE(H (1R - 431 1320 18 5715 803 6,518
Non-executive directors FHTES
KWEK Leng Hal (Note (}) BE ) - - - - - - -
CHEW Seong Aun (Note (i) Bz W) - - - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze BIE 240 - - - 0 - 0
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony B 380 - - - 380 - 380
HUANG Lester Garson, 585, Jp Bgi
FEHEE fTHL 350 - - - 350 - 350
HO Yuk Wai, Joan iz 340 - - - 340 - 340
Year ended 30 June 2022 P o
LEE 1310 437 1320 18 7,005 803 7828
HIE(EB)BERAA | ZE - —FF®, 183
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-ZT=-=

Directors’ and senior executives’ 9
emoluments (continued)

FRAZTHLFE

EERERITHAEM

€@

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=EMe#E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses  contributions 2021
(Note (v))
ZHR IR
B2He ENFlE SEftR —B--F%
(Htty)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive director HiTES
WONG Cho Fai (Notes (i) & (i) Z1RB (A% (i) - 4211 330 18 4,559
Non-executive directors FHTES
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (i) BB - - - - -
TANG Hong Cheong (Notes (i) & (i) BFEE (Hz2() K i) - - - - -
CHEW Seong Aun (Notes (i) & (iii) B3R (#1aF0)K i) - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze BEE 230 - - - 230
TAN Lim Heng (Note (iv)) TR (A () 84 - - - 84
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
directors
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony EE 360 - - _ 360
HUANG Lester Garson, S8, )P~ Z=Efl  HEHEE
AF4L 330 - - - 330
HO Yuk Wai, Joan RS 320 - - - 320
Year ended 30 June 2021 BZ-B--%58=1H
ItEE 1,324 4211 330 18 5,883
Notes: HtaF -
(i) No directors’ fees have been paid to any salaried (i) BREFEHNEEXNTFAAA

(ii)

(iii)

directors employed by the Company or its related
corporations.

Mr. WONG Cho Fai was appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 July
2020.

Mr. TANG Hong Cheong (“Mr. Tang”) has retired
as a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2021. Following the
retirement of Mr. Tang, Mr. CHEW Seong Aun
was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2021.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022

(ii)

(iii)

HEAREEEANEAZH
Bx-

BEHELER-_ZE-TFLA
—BEZERFLFAANTE
%0
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——F-A-HRELQFHk
HITES—H - RETAERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

9 Directors’ and senior executives’
emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Mr. TAN Lim Heng (“Mr. Tan"”) has retired as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 11 November 2020 after the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
11 November 2020. Mr. Tan is entitled to directors’
fee on a pro-rata basis from 1 July 2020 to 11
November 2020.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance-related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated money value of
share options granted to the director under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, include adjustments
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of the principal terms and number of
share options granted are disclosed under note 23.

9 EENSRITHAEM
€@

EsME @)

(a)

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,

Hiat ()

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BRMELETREEDR=F
—EE+-At+t-REFTZ
AABRREFESHERRE
BERAEFHTES B -
BREESWEURLE At E R =
ZEEFLA-HEZBRCE
F+—At+—-BHEzESHE
%o

REEZONEATEATIE
REEE -

W] L EEHRARZHRR
W EREL BN £ Y 22 8

ERERREARDRARODE
BT ERTES ZROPDEE
AT ERER - ZLERDR
BREEADRELASERR
X5 (EIRKHE2()
(A Fr B E S 5T BRI 5t
5 BEEREACEENR
ETA  RIEZBEEmEE N
A ETRNEEE -

BROPDEEERRRRREE
Bz # RN 23 R

5o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Directors’ and senior executives’ 9
emoluments (continued)

(b)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2021: one) is a director whose emolument is
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2021: four)

EERERITHAEM

€@

(b) ESRANES

ESBsFMAEALH B
B(ZBZ-F —R)HERLQT
ZES > HMESER LM a)
KR o HttmE(ZF - —F :

individuals are as follows: WE) AT Z2BESEZEMT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Salaries and other benefits HFe R EMER 9,078 9,950
Discretionary bonuses BB TE AL 2,330 1,956
Retirement scheme contributions RINGTENHRR 115 131
11,523 12,037
Share-based payments RRREX A 899 -
12,422 12,037

The numbers of individuals whose emoluments fall
within the following bands are:

MEBTHISERZABAT :

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKS #E#¥ T AE AE
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 2
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 -
4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

10 BRE

10 Dividends

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a)
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable to

FABRAFARDFARRERE (MR
ENFARERTRAERIDR
BESERRBTEEZRONE

the year: ZE) :
2022 2021
—E—— —EBE-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEF T
Interim dividend declared and paid of ~ FHIRE SRR T
HK$0.15 (2021: HK$0.15) per FREBREY0.157T
ordinary share (ZZB=——%F:
B¥0.157T) 35,316 35,493
Final dividend proposed after the end of HAR#&#HREE 2 REAMR S
the reporting period of HK$0.33 FRETIEIRBR0.33T
(2021: HK$0.33) per ordinary share (ZB=——%
7B#0.337T) 77,568 77,994
112,884 113,487

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b)
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year:

R|BEML B REIRE 2 RAR
ERBEMREEAERLER
h—REE-

FREARC AR — B8 BF
ERNAARRRERE (NBREM
FAREERTBRAERGZEE
FREBTHEEZRONER) :

2022 2021
—EB-—F B —F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous &A1 —{EE BEEEH#E
financial year, approved and paid REHRERE
during the year, of HK$0.33 FREIERRAR0.33T
(2021: HK$0.31) per ordinary share (ZB=—%:
BH20.317T) 77,895 73,461
(c) During the year ended 30 June 2022, dividends (0 BE-—E-—S~A=t+HILEHE

declared by the Company which were unclaimed
over a period of six years amounting to
HK$1,050,000 (2021: HK$Nil) were forfeited and
transferred to revenue reserve in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,

EAQATCERNBREME
NEBMAEER  AHBYE
1,050,000 C (ZFE = —F : B
Z5) BEREALTASEREM
AR W R B B U A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

11 Earnings per share 11 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based ERERERTIREARQABRE
on the profit for the year of HK$257,260,000 & & ) 78 %5 257,260,000 7t ( =
(2021: HK$357,698,000) and the weighted average T — % : B#¥357,698,0007T)
number of 235,726,000 (2021: 236,875,000) ERAFEFERNCRITEZER ZM
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as EF198235,726,000( =8 = —
follows: F :236,875,000) REBRTE ¢
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
‘000 ‘000
F F
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning &2 &TEER
of year 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased EFEERECEBR
in prior years o (12,184) (11,039)
Effect of shares repurchased AEELEEBR
in current year %= (619) (615)
(12,803) (11,654)
Effect of share options exercised FEETEZ2ROAERE
in prior years 2 5175 ¢ 5175
Weighted average number of ordinary  FREERINEF I
shares at the end of year 235,726 236,875
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHERF
The diluted earnings per share equalled the basic FRUEB|ERBT2EETEHEE
earnings per share as there were no dilutive B AHMBE-_T_—_FRk_
potential ordinary shares outstanding during the E-_—FXRA=ZTHLEEZSE
years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021. REERAEENERELRET
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELTHRYE  BE

- e
plant and equipment REEE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHER
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings
buildings and Machineries,
and leasehold equipment,
leasehold improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
inHongKong ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EBEE EENMER
1#HREF  LHRETF HE RE
it R&# BRI HHRAE At
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR BT ¥ BETT BRI
Cost: B
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-2%tA-H 121,180 1,021,133 23,151 901,024 2,066,488
Additions £ 457 10,692 136,869 24,160 172,178
Transfer between categories DRmER 4,274 13,328 (33,966) 16,364 -
Disposals HE - (3,224) - (9,846) (13,070)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - 82,430 4516 70,794 157,740
At 30 June 2021 RZBE--FXA=tH 125,91 1,124,359 130,570 1,002,49% 2,383,336
At 1 July 2021 RZBE--%+f-H 125,911 1,124,359 130,570 1,002,496 2,383,336
Additions by 1,410 19,694 59,509 21,753 102,366
Transfer between categories HEEER 10,589 71,485 (184,727) 102,653 -
Disposals e - (2,654) - (2,952) (5,606)
Exchange adjustments ERER - (28,135) 575 (24,279) (51,839)
At 30 June 2022 RIEZZEXA=1H 137,910 1,184,749 5,927 1,099,671 2,428,257
MIE(EE)ERAR | S —FFK 189



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELHEYE - BE
plant and equipment (continueq) KRB
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHIRE)
(continued)
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings
buildings and Machineries,
and leasehold equipment,
leasehold  improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
inHong Kong ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EEHE EENMEE
1HREF  IHEET HE RE
k&8 k&8 ERIR  HHRAE At

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
ERTR ERTR ERTR BRTT BRTT

Accumulated depreciation, ZiiTE - BER
amortisation and HESE:
impairment loss:

At 1July 2020 R-BE-ZE+A-A 78,248 705,353 - 614,857 1,398,458
Charge for the year REERERTE 2,620 19,052 - 38,000 59,672

Written back on disposals HEAEMD - (1,349) - (8,793) (10,142)
Exchange adjustments EnRE - 66,131 - 44916 111,047
At 30 June 2021 R-B--ExA=1H 80,868 789,187 - 688,980 1,559,035
At 1 July 2021 R-E--FEtA-A 80,868 789,187 - 688,980 1,559,035
Charge for the year AEEBERITE 2,974 18,781 - 43,260 65,015
Written back on disposals HEZED - (2,372) - (2,895) (5,267)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - (21,540) - (14,989) (36,529)
At 30 June 2022 R-B--ExA=1A 83,842 784,056 - 714,356 1,582,254
Net book value: RAFE:

At 30 June 2022 R-BE-ZExA=1A 54,068 400,693 5,927 385,315 846,003

At 30 June 2021 R-B--EXA=1H 45,043 335,172 130,570 313,516 824,301
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELTHRYE  BE
plant and equipment (continued) K& )
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use RHBEESE2FRAEEEZ
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BREEESAOT
2022 2021
—EB-CF B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Leasehold land and buildings in EERET HRIET
Hong Kong 11,944 12,421

Leasehold land and buildings outside EBLIMEE LR IETF
Hong Kong 65,697 68,509

Machineries, equipment, furniture and  #88 - 4% « FMRIAE
motor vehicles 857 1,162

78,498 82,092
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

12 Leasehold land and property,
plant and eqUipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

12

HELTHERYE  BE
K& )

(b) FEREEEG)

BERERRER ZHEHEEZM

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: XEEZHWT !
2022 2021
—EB-CF B —F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BHEF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REREEY B2 FEARE
assets by class of underlying assets: EEZINEER
Leasehold land and buildings in HFEAPEIHRETF
Hong Kong 477 477
Leasehold land and buildings outside BEBUNNEE L K
Hong Kong BF 7,552 6,040
Machineries, equipment, furniture and ~ #28 + 3%4& « FME
motor vehicles AE 337 292
8,366 6,809
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEBBEZFE(ME7) 296 283
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ AREIEHHEEZBEx 9,239 9,700

During the year ended 30 June 2022, additions
to right-of-use assets were HK$6,548,000 (2021:
HK$4,969,000). This amount included the purchase
of leasehold land of HK$2,471,000 (2021: HK$Nil)
and machineries and equipment of HK$48,000
(2021: HK$539,000), and the remainder primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable
under new tenancy agreements and adjustment due
to lease modification.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 17(c) and 24(b) respectively.

192

REBE-_Z-_-_F~A=+HL
FE RBEEFRAEEEAB
#6,548,000L(ZE=—F : /&
#54,969,0007T) ° ZAKIBEEE
2,471,000t BB EHE + it
(ZE-—F BETIT)RE
BEAS000 T (ZEZ —F | B
539,000t ) BB B REE -
BRTHETEZERHEFEEHRET
ERBEENRREREBEIE
HEERER -

FEAEZRERHAEREE
BEZRH D2 B
17(c)%24(b) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

13 Intangible assets and goodwill 13 BEFEEREBE
Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
tEER
kS [ TERS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BT T
Cost: B
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-ZE+A—H 14,714 39,970 24,900 79,584
Additions =0 - - 1,545 1,545
Exchange adjustments BB W - - 37 37
At 30 June 2021 RZEZ—-FXHB=1H 14,714 39,970 26,482 81,166
At 1 July 2021 W-ZE-—-FtA-H 14,714 39,970 26,482 81,166
Additions 210 - - 1,461 1,461
Exchange adjustments R A% - = (40) (40)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZ=FxXHB=1H 14,714 39,970 27,903 82,587
Accumulated amortisation: E5tiEey
At 1 July 2020 RZE-_ZF+H—H - 39,970 20,213 60,183
Charge for the year NEZ - - 3,242 3,242
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3R - - 3 3
At 30 June 2021 R-ZE--FAB=1H - 39,970 23,458 63,428
1 July 2021 N-E-—-§+A—H - 39,970 23,458 63,428
Charge for the year TEEEHE - - 962 962
Exchange adjustments [ - = (13) (13)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFXHB=1H - 39,970 24,407 64,377
Impairment loss: REES
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021, E’\\—g—q F+tA-A-
1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 —E-f£XA=1+AH"
“E-F1XA-BK
“EZ-HEXA=1H 12,539 - - 12,539
Net book value: BRERE
At 30 June 2022 RZZBZZ5XA=1H 2,175 - 3,496 5,671
At 30 June 2021 RZE=Z—-FxXHB=1H 2,175 - 3,024 5,199
The amortisation charge for the year is included in TEEZH#HEBRCT ARGREEER
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of [TTHERIA -
profit or loss.
HIBE(EB)BRAA | 2T _FF W 193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

FRAZTHLFE

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-ZT=-=

Intangible assets and goodwill

(continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. The key assumptions of the cash flow projections
are the estimated weighted average growth rate and
the discount rate used. Cash flows beyond the three-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2021: 3%) which does not
significantly exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.5% (2021:
13.2%) which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2022
and 30 June 2021 indicated no further recognition of
impairment loss was necessary.

13

/\\\ﬁ/ﬁF &%g(ﬁt)
EEEZRSELEBENZRENR

HMEZRESHEBRERA MO - HE
REELEBENVNARKREELRIEER
BENE ZEEFAZHEESRETFEN
EERREEEAE =FHUBBEES
Eo-REeREEAMANEEREATE
quiJME$i’JimE$&EEIR$ o ZHFHILL
BN EREFEANTE INE T8
REI%(ZEZ—F ! 3%)THBRS
EEEVREXBNRPFHERE -
REeEREFEARBABREI45%(ZF
TF D 132%)BH - IRMREFERE
EEBEUNSERRE -

E/\\—?——fﬁ/\ﬁ +E|&—7—_£'E
NB=ZTHETZARERBRBEE
HE—SRERE 2 ER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Other financial assets

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

14 Hihe@mEE

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Biat BT T BT T
Debt securities measured at BBERTTEZ
amortised cost BRES (i) 24,023 67,669
Equity securities designated at FVOCl  1EER AV EETAHM
(non-recycling): ZHWER (THEE)K
REES
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —R&EBLEHZREES (i) 94,033 81,945
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BAFEEFT B2
ZEREE
— Club membership —SE 722 815
118,778 150,429
Representing: HER:
— Non-current assets - FRBEE 118,778 82,760
— Current assets -RBEE - 67,669
118,778 150,429

Notes:

(in)

At 30 June 2022, the debt securities are unsecured, bearing
fixed interest rates at 2.8% (2021: 2.2% to 3.2%) per
annum and will mature in 2024 (2021: mature in 2022).

The equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
include the listed equity securities of companies engaged
in banking and finance industry of HK$70,758,000 (2021
HK$62,525,000) and telecommunications industry of
HK$23,275,000 (2021: HK$19,420,000). The Group
designated these investments as equity securities at FVOCI
(non-recycling), as the investments are held for investment
yield enhancement purpose.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group disposed
part of the equity securities for capital preservation
purpose. The fair value on the date of disposal was
HK$6,452,000 (2021: HK$4,237,000), resulting in a
transfer of accumulated gain on the equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) of HK$595,000 (2021:
accumulated loss of HK$9,000) within equity.

Hiat -

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,

M-ZB-—FXA=1H B%KE*%
AEEE REEBENER28%(=
B —F 1 22%%E3.2%) » WER=
Z_MERNH(ZE=—F : R=F
ZZFRH)

EERAFEEF ALMEEKES (T
AEE)WREFFEERITRERE
AFlz EHRER FEH70,758,000
T(ZZE = —F : #¥62525000
T)REAEQARZ LTRERSE
#£23,275000t (Z B —F : BE
19,420,0007T) » RNEBEEZEREE
ERAFEESAEMMEEWE (T
HE)WREES > kBN EEIA
DEHERABRERRZ AR -

BE-ZE-—HFXA=1+HLFE-
AEBERRAENEETBIR
B cHERNNATEESS
6,452,000 L (Z B —F : B
4,237,0007t) * BHIEER A FEE
SPAEMEREWE (FTER) WRE
EH MR BB 595,000t (=
T —F  BEHEIEEY9,000T) 1
FERS P E o
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. €
Inventories 15 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (@) REESUBERRRZEEGS:
financial position comprise:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials B 588,115 538,153
Work in progress B 45,916 44,925
Finished goods B 192,508 224,529
Inventories in transit ERER 16,160 16,728
Packing materials R 26,296 25,489
868,995 849,824
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) NELEBRERIEATHIES
recognised as an expense and included in the SEEDHWT :
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 4,962,885 4,473,040
Write-down of inventories FERE 361 3,816
4,963,246 4,476,856

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

16 Trade and other receivables 16 EFZKHAMEUERR
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHEFIT
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance MR EEREZE S EWREER 316,363 290,984
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EfifEER - RE R FETHRIE 98,972 64,406
415,335 355,390
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FEEZREMEWRFOERE—F
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. AREISERAESE -
Ageing Analysis AR 2 AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RFEARB > RERZERHRINKRE
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other BREECESERREZRRI T (E
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss STAEBES R EMEWRTONT :

allowance, is as follows:

2022 2021
—EB-—F B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months =@EBR 310,011 289,991
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 6,164 979
Over 6 months NMEAU L 188 14
316,363 290,984

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk AEEZEEBRRREGEWRMES

arising from trade receivables are set out in note 24(a). KIS E R EESIAMEE24(@a) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

17 Cash and short term funds and 17 ReREHES R HM

other cash flow information ReREE R
(a) Cash and short term funds comprise: (a) HREeREHESEE:
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEFT
Deposits with banks RITERRIFR 1,184,564 1,141,936
Cash at bank and on hand RITEAZRERS 356,890 343,541
Cash and short term funds in the GEPBMRAREKRZES
consolidated statement of financial REHES
position 1,541,454 1,485,477
Fixed deposits held at banks with FEERISAA=EA
original maturity over three months B ERIERIT EERTF R (531,494) (208,147)
Cash and cash equivalents in the GERESRERZES
consolidated statement of cash flows RIESEEE 1,009,960 1,277,330
Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based RITERERESHETERZ
on daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks BRI EMBEAE - 81T
include time deposits which are matured within EHERERESERIIR =@
three months and earn interest at the respective BREIE URIESEZEHE
short term deposit rates, and fixed deposits with RANER=@MBAU LN EBER
original maturity over three months. BREVFI S o
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17 Cash and short term funds and
other cash flow information

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

17 BEREHPESRHEM
HEREER 2

BMEEBELE 2RBEYR

TRHFVNAEBRMETHREE
ZEEEY  ETFEERERE
Regy mETDREEZE
BREAREREGNARRRE
REERARERERERER
A*E%F‘iﬂﬁ/%ijlziﬁéumg °

Lease liabilities (note 79)

HESBE(HE19)
2022 2021
—E-_F B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 July RtA—A 5,212 4,351
Changes from financing cash flows: RBEREFRESE :
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 ER e 2 EAREH (4,784) (4,497)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EffHREHRES 2 FEIH (296) (283)
Total changes from financing cash flows FERESRELELLE (5,080) (4,780)
Exchange adjustments BE R (89) 389
Other changes: Hib# s
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRARETZHFHEER
into new leases and renewal of HEERHEAE
leases during the year 0 4,077 4,969
Interest expenses (note 7) MEER(ME7) 296 283
Total other changes Hith B B4 58 4,373 5,252
At 30 June RA<A=+H 4,416 5,212

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

17 BEREHPESRHEM
HEREER 2

17 Cash and short term funds and
other cash flow information

(continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c)

HERESRHATE

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of

BEEFAGERERERZNK

cash flows for leases comprise the following: BEELUTER

2022 2021
B _—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Within operating cash flows KRERERER 9,239 9,700
Within investing cash flows REBEESRENRN 2,471 -
Within financing cash flows AMEREREA 5,080 4,780
16,790 14,480

These amounts relate to the following: ZE I B T 48RS
2022 2021
—EB-CF =B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BHEF T
Lease rentals paid 2 HEERES 14,319 14,480
Purchase of leasehold land BEHELTH 2,471 -
16,790 14,480
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

BEZREMENKRARR

18 Trade and other payables and
contract liabilities

(a)

Trade and other payables

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables (which are included in
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date,

18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEAE
CE)ET T

(a)

RB|BEMER  REBXZAH2
EZRARMZRE DT (EFTA
B REMBEMRIOMT

is as follows:
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHEFIT
Within 3 months =@EAR 460,823 404,349
More than 3 months =@EBULE 3,174 3,657
Trade payables B SRR 463,997 408,006
Deposits received BWize 14,984 14,977
Other payables and accruals Hitt B IR R EETE R 261,926 297,583
Deferred income IEFEUEA 4,918 5,505
Derivative financial instruments: fTESmIT A :
— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —JMERHAEE - 40
745,825 726,111
Notes: /}/?H -
(i) All of the trade and other payables are expected to (i) BB 5 REMEMNRRIIE
be settled or recognised as income within one year SHE—FREAREZABBA
or are repayable on demand. A EREFEE o

As at 30 June 2021, trade payables included
an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$8,423,000 in relation to purchase of goods
from the fellow subsidiary, which is unsecured,
interest-free and to be settled according to the
contract terms.

As at 30 June 2022, other payables and accruals
included an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$8,563,000 (2021: HK$12,623,000) in relation
to management fee expenses payable to the fellow
subsidiary, which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

MIE(EB)ERLQR | T -

FFHR

(ii)

R=T-——&5XA=+H &
ZRENAREEEENR KB
AT)E#ES 423,000 * ER
FHERZMBARKEE
B ERBAERR REK
RIBSEIRRIELRE -

R=ZZT-—=—F~A=+A>
HihENFRARESERAE
EENRBZKEB AR B
8,563,000t (= E=—4F : &
#512,623,0007T) * EREHE
ENFERMBATNESEE
MY ZREAEEE &2
RIZEREE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

18 Trade and other payables and 18
contract liabilities (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

ESREMEMERERR
EREBE @

(b) ARAE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BEFT

Advances received for goods to be sold FHEERBEWER 69,492 35,536

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of goods, giving rise to contract liabilities until
revenue is recognised.

Included in the contract liabilities as at 30 June
2021, a balance of HK$35,051,000 (2020:

HK$38,635,000) was recognised as revenue in the
current year.

19 Lease liabilities 19

At the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities

FREEREHEERARER
ERARAZAMELEZERA

R-BE-_—-FXA=+AMNAEHE
EEEY  CRAEERIABUW

AEBH35,051,000 (ZEE=F
£ : /B#538,635,0007T) ©

HERE

RBEHER  HERERK

represented:
2022 2021
—EB-F =B —F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Within 1 year —FR 3,177 3,365
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHEWFR 1,041 1,307
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBEREFR 198 540
1,239 1,847
4,416 5,212
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20 Deferred taxation

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) CORIREEREEERESE:
recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) BEHEEEREEEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities #E
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ REEHBRRREER
(assets) recognised in the consolidated ZELZEHREBEE (EE)
statement of financial position and the HERFERAZESFHMNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Expected
the related distributable
Deferred tax arising from: EEZHEELR depreciation ~ Provisions  Tax losses profits Total
REEHE ik
BEEENE B HEER  ASKEN fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 July 2020 RZE-ZE+H-H 9,069 (101) (5,199) 15,748 19,517
Charged/(credited) to REAERERIR/GIA)
consolidated statement of ~ (f28(3))
profit or loss (note 8(a)) 45 44 (993) (4,039) (4,943)
At 30 June 2021 RZB--EXA=1H 9,114 (57) (6,192) 11,709 14,574
At 1T July 2021 R=Z=-#tA-A 9,114 67 (6192 11709 14,574
Credited to consolidated ~ RGABRRA
statement of profit or loss ~ (#7283)
(note 8(a)) (384) (116) (115) (2,027) (2,642)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (3) = = = (3)
At 30 June 2022 RZBZZEXB=1H 8,721 (173) (6,307) 9,682 11,929
HIBE(EB)BRAA | 2T _FF W 203
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

20 Deferred taxation (continued

204

(a)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position:

20 ELEHIE#)

(a)

CRIDEEHAEERER

(#)

(i) FEHBMREEZHEK

2022 2021

—E__F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEF T BEFIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised ~ RGESHBRARARCHE
in the consolidated statement of RZIELEHIEFEE

financial position (884) (672)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4R& BT R K-
in the consolidated statement of RZIELEHEFEE

financial position 12,813 15,246

11,929 14,574

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) ARERELEBIRAE

At 30 June 2022, temporary differences relating to
the expected distributable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$818,115,000 (2021: HK$808,375,000).
A deferred tax liability has been recognised
in respect of expected distributable profits of
HK$193,640,000 (2021: HK$234,180,000) where
there are planned distributions from subsidiaries in
the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$624,475,000 (2021: HK$574,195,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed by these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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BARAMNERERT 2 ERNB
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

20 Deferred taxation (continueq)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 30 June 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$290,386,000 (2021: HK$280,893,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$38,225,000 (2021: HK$36,155,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$252,161,000 (2021:
HK$244,738,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$25,100,000
(2021: HK$22,157,000) that will expire within
five years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 30 June 2022, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$81,655,000 (2021:
HK$93,382,000) arising from impairment losses
of certain leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment provided in prior years. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of these
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of
taxable profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

20 ELEHIE#)

(9]

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,

AERELEHRIREE

RZZEZZFXA=1+H  &&
A B 1 290,386,000 T (=&
——% : 8%280,893,0007t) 1]
AR 0 R 3R FE R B % R M B 7%
B8 - ERRZBSEEERT
7B#538,225,000c (=B = — 4 :
7B#536,155,0007) WIELEF 1B E
E o Fl&R B ¥ 252,161,000 7T
(ZZEZ——4F : #B¥244,738,000
o) AEMAER BAKRR
EANNATEEME > TR
REBRABELHBEE - 3
S RERNBREBTERYE
25,100,000c (== —F . B
22,157,00070) WEIEBHERAER
BHR o EMhEE A UUEIR Bt &
BEEBHR o

AEBRUBFEASETHESL
WRME BRERREERE
BiE ZERBER-_ZT-_Z
NRAE=ZTHBAREEELERY
81,655,000t (=& = —4F . B
93,382,000 T) BV EBFMEE R -
BRREFHFTERM  WHE
T T8 R B R R A E R & R =
B OUNTEBRZEERAEL
BEEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

21 Share capital 21 B
(a) Issued share capital (a) ERITERAK
2022 2021
—Bo—f —B-—f
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE RHp#EE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$°000
F BEFTT F BEFT
Ordinary shares, issued BR{TREHE
and fully paid: ZER
At 1 July and 30 June RtA—HBEK
NB=1H 243,354 672,777 243,354 672,777

206

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

During the year, the Group purchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the
exercise of share options granted under the Group's
share option scheme as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2022:

RIBEEB(DBRBIN 135K - &
AEEERTBEAAEE

AEEAREERETRODE
AT ENGRY  AEERR
DRBEGTEBEAEEE BB S
R 5 B A BR A B B R E i AR a0
T

BE-ZE--—FXNA=1+HLE
E

Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
purchased per share pershare price paid
=5 E0 e84
- PN BRE&ES BR&E 2

Month/year /A% BE
‘000

' ' mER
HK$ HK$  HK$'000

F o EMT  BMT  BMTR

August 2021 —EBE-—-FNA 117 15.00 14.60 1,737
September 2021 —E-—-FhA 85 15.20 14.90 1,278
October 2021 —E-—F+A 43 15.60 15.10 662
November 2021 —E-—-F+—A~ 101 15.70 15.40 1,570
December 2021 —E-—-F+=HA 489 15.60 15.00 7,489
January 2022 —E-—_F—A 34 15.20 15.10 514
February 2022 =S = -y =| 28 15.00 14.00 407
March 2022 —E-"F=H 102 14.50 13.20 1,415
April 2022 B _FMA 95 14.00 11.50 1,248
May 2022 —E-"FHAH 84 12.80 11.80 1,015
June 2022 —E-"FXA 114 11.90 11.20 1,301

1,292 18,636
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE=-Z

21 Share capital (continued)

(a)

T _FARA=TRLEEE

21 & (@)

Issued share capital (continued) (@) CBRITHREE)
For the year ended 30 June 2021: BEr-—E-—SA=+HLE
E:

Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

[=F:Ch) [=F:Ch)
AR BRES BREE 28
Month/year £/ A% HE TS B HER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
F BT BT BEFT
August 2020 —E-EFEN\A 128 12.26 11.98 1,549
September 2020 —E-TFENA 261 12.26 12.04 3,183
October 2020 —E-FF+HA 111 12.30 12.00 1,342
November 2020 —E-EH+-A 62 13.40 12.20 806
December 2020 —E-ZF+A 194 14.30 13.44 2,649
January 2021 —E-—-F—HA 61 15.20 14.50 893
February 2021 —E-—%—"H4 38 15.50 14.90 577
March 2021 —EB-—-F=H 44 16.00 15.20 688
April 2021 —E-—-FMmA 28 16.00 15.66 441
May 2021 —E-—-FHA 102 15.80 15.20 1,575
June 2021 —E- XA 116 15.32 15.00 1,749
1,145 15,452

The considerations of the purchased shares for the BE-_ZE-_—_FA=tHL

year ended 30 June 2022 of HK$18,636,000 (2021:
HK$15,452,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2022, there were 8,301,000 (2021:
7,009,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options granted to
eligible employees.

MR (&

JVERAA | ZZE_—_FFH

FEBAROCHNEBR B
18,636,000 T (= ZE = —F : B
15,452,00070) W EFETHA B IR
D RIEFET REZMEINBR o

EBRZEHEEATRERTREIK
ZRE - WARARARZRE L
AERROEE-—FREE - H
RRB2RGEENS  IEE
BRERRSFER -

R=-B-ZExA=+H: 5"
ERFEEREIRMREED
WITERRG » NEBRITERA
ERORBEIRBEIEES
PR 8,301,000 (== —F :
7,009,0008%) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

21 Share capital (continued)

208

(b)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements,
taking into account of its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of total equity
to net debt. Net debt represents lease liabilities less
cash and short term funds.

21 & (@)

(b)

EXrEE

FEEEREANTIERRRE
RESEEHTFEREE  BBB
7= i & AR 7% 5 i B2 L ok P 4B A
MEE  UARBBRSENLE
SRE  EMERSRREMHE
BN AEMFI AR E H R

FEEEBRENHEARBR
AR kEE  LEERsREH
BRERTURFBEzRSHEEX
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RREZEREGFE  LEEE
BRENSCHERRBELR
o

AEEUESEELERRRESR
EREBBRNMBEERASE
HEREREFARBE - BERR
bt AEEEERERLRATE
RBEREFEBHOLLER - FE
BEfRHEatRRERERE
%o

2022 2021

—EB-—fF B —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Lease liabilities HEERE 4,416 5,212
Less: Cash and short term funds B REREHRES (1,541,454) (1,485,477)
(1,537,038) (1,480,265)

Total equity AR 2,959,124 2,880,665
Equity-debt ratio FEREKILE 100:0 100:0
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

Reserves 22 A&
The Company ¥ N
Fair value
Share reserve
Share option (non- Revenue
capital reserve  recycling) reserve Total
BHREE ATEERE
[ g (FAEmE) W fEE &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BETFT BEFT BT BEFT
At 1 July 2020 RZE-ZF+A—H 672,777 - - 1,361,853 2,034,630
Profit for the year REERH - - - 255,219 255,219
Equity investments at BRAVEES AHM
FVOCI - net movement in EENEHRERE
fair value reserve - AV EEREED
(non-recycling) FE(RIEmE) - - (5,079) - (5,079)
Transfer of loss on disposal B HERNTEE
of equity investments at FAZEREHRE
FVOCI to revenue reserve REvEB - - 9 9) -
Final dividend paid in respect FAFECANREIRE
of prior year - - - (75,440) (75,440)
Interim dividend paid in BRAEECAPHRE
respect of current year - - - (36,503) (36,503)
At 30 June 2021 N-EBE-—-FxA=+H 672,777 - (5,070) 1,505,120 2,172,827
At 1 July 2021 R=Z=—FtB-8 672,777 - (5070) 1505120 2,172,827
Profit for the year REEEF ~ s S 148,238 148,238
Equity investments at BOFEES AR
FVOCI - net movementin 2 EWEKRERE
fair value reserve - AVLEEREEZD
(non-recycling) SRR (R AER) - - 39 = 39
Transfer of gain on disposal B HERATEE
of equity investments at FAZEREHIRE
FVOCI to revenue reserve RE&Ez & - - (595) 595 =
Equity settled share-based — REHEEZURNAE
transactions HEER 5 - 2,537 - - 2,537
Forfeiture of unclaimed RRKREERZRE
dividends - - - 1,050 1,050
Final dividend paid in respect ~ BAEEESAREIRE
of prior year - - = (80,307) (80,307)
Interim dividend paid in BAFEEENPHRE
respect of current year - - - (36,503) (36,503)
At 30 June 2022 NZE-—EXA=1H 672,777 2,537 (5,626) 1,538,193 2,207,881
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

22 Reserves (continued)

210

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise of
share options granted to eligible employees under
the Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options at respective grant date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are different
from the functional currency of the Company; and
(b) the exchange differences on monetary items
which form part of the Group’s net investment in the
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(u).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

Reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group: (continued)
(v)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at
the end of the reporting period (see note 2(f)).

(vi) Revenue reserve

The distributable reserves of the Company at 30
June 2022 amounted to HK$1,538,193,000 (2021:
HK$1,505,120,000).

Equity settled share-based
transactions

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the "Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there were share
options for 8,700,000 (2021: Nil) ordinary shares granted
under the ESOS 2013, and no share options were vested
to the grantees under the ESOS 2013. 800,000 (2021:
Nil) share options granted to a director of the Company's
subsidiary were lapsed and no (2021: Nil) share options
were exercised by the grantees during the year ended 30
June 2022.

EIE(E#)ARAR [ ZF==
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

23 Equity settled share-based 23 BEREEZURG A
transactions (continued) HBRXZ
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BHZERMEENT :
as follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 1D EREBRESTE ¢
Number of
Instruments at Contractual life
grant date Exercisable period of options
RUPHABEEE TIEHAE RBESHH

Options granted to a director:

ARERT-2EE:

24 August 2021 2,500,000  From the date of notification of entitlement 3.4 years
“E--FAAZtWMA ("Vesting Date”) up to 2 months from
the Vesting Date
REENEREIBEAN(BEARER 34F
RERSGMEARTE
From the 13th month up to the 14th month from 4.4 years

the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZE T REAHRETHE 445

From the 25th month up to the 26th month from 5.4 years
the Vesting Date
REBREEE_tREAZE-TAEABBAR 545

Options granted to eligible executives:

ABERTEERTHAR
24 August 2021 6,200,000 From the Vesting Date up to 2 months from 3.4 years
“E--ENAZ+WA the Vesting Date
REEABEREARTHRE 34%
From the 13th month up to the 14th month from 4.4 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=HEAZETOEASBRTE 445
From the 25th month up to the 26th month from 5.4 years
the Vesting Date
REBEREE_tREAZE-TAEABRAIR 545
Total share options granted 8,700,000
RORBREET S5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

23 Equity settled share-based 23 BREREEZURG A
transactions (continved) HEBEXZ @)
(b) The number and weighted average (b) ROZEBENEE RMNEFIS
exercise prices of share options are as TEEWMT :
follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 MR ABRERTE
2022 2021
—E_CF —E--F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
EF IEF T
fTEE REEEA T E REEHA
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT F BT F
Outstanding at the RED KRBT
beginning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year RENER 15.11 8,700 - -
Lapsed during the year RERXHN 15.11 (800) - -
Outstanding at the end REREREITHE
of the year 15.11 7,900 - -
Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year - - - -
The options outstanding at 30 June 2022 had an REZBZZFEXNA=1THWE X
exercise price of HK$15.11 and a weighted average WITERBRETEERBE15.1
remaining contractual life of 3.4 years. TRMEFHRGBENH R34
F o
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23 Equity settled share-based
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

23 BRESGEHEZURMGDA

transactions (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS
2013:

HEBEXZ @)

(0 KROIBEENLIFEENRR

EBRTROZABEBRMRE
NAFEBEESEMETAEE
MAFEETE ERHBROR
BREAFEERRE [HIR—EF
ET RAEE - RODBENS
WERZEE NI AE -

RORBBELFEER2013KRD
R

24 August 2021

Grant date ®EBH —E--FNA=+WMA
Fair value at measurement date  A3tE2H 2 AFEBE HK$1.415-HK$1.798
1,415 T B%1.798 T

Share price RE HK$15.00
B¥£15.007T

Exercise price TEE HK$15.11
BH#E15.117T

Expected volatility AR IR 19.89%-21.43%
Option life REBRETH 3.4 years-5.4 years
3.4F-5.4%F

Expected dividend yield FEEIRE = 32%
Risk-free rate R P R =R 0.33%-0.68%

(based on Exchange Fund Notes) (RIE/IEESE

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

TEHRK 0 T3 AR 15 4B 1E R 1R i
(FHETIRIER D R BRI F
YRERH) - BREBEARREHRNE
HEARFRIENABEEFLRA
E o RHRENBRBBEREM
BE EX@WABERRITHA
FEEMFERNEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 IREREERAFRE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and short term funds and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with a good credit rating,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. The Group invests in debt securities issued by
government with credit ratings A or above as rated
by international credit rating agencies, and has
limits for exposures to individual investment in debt
securities to manage concentration risk. The Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 16% (2021: 24%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair Values (continued)

216

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Credits are offered
to customers following financial assessments and
established payment records where applicable.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these are
exceeded only with the approval of senior company
officers. Customers considered to be with credit risk
are traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment within 30 to 60 days following the sales
took place. Regular review and follow up actions
are carried out on overdue amounts to minimise
the Group’s exposure to credit risk. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
An ageing analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(a)

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKRE)
Trade receivables (continued) EZEWR (E)
The following table provides information about the TREHBEBEASERE S EK
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade R EAGEzcEERRRTERE
receivables: BEE2ER
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount  allowance amount allowance
IREAE EiERE IREAE EiaEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT BT T BT T
Current (not past due) BNER (RiEER) 281,999 = 273,278 -
Less than 3 months BEDON=18A
past due 33,676 - 17,256 (12)
More than 3 months BEEB={EA
past due 832 (144) 810 (348)
316,507 (144) 291,344 (360)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome of expected credit losses and is adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and also forward-
looking information including the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

MIE(ERB)BRAR | — B - —F R,

ZAERREREEB R ZHE
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

218

(a)

(b)

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

Credit risk (continued) () RFEERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) B S ENARR (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect AEEESZRWRFR ZEERE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: AEREMD BT ¢
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
At beginning of year F4) 360 410
Amounts written off during the year REEMESE (164) (90)
Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised REEEERE
during the year (E14) TR (54) 2
(218) (88)
_fbxchange adjustments  Ex®=® 2 .
At end of year FR 144 360
Liquidity risk (b) REBELEME

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating
activities together with un-drawn banking facilities
are sufficient to meet the requirements for loan
repayments, daily operational needs, capital
expenditure, as well as potential business expansion
and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and
not yet drawn as at 30 June 2022 amounted to
HK$659 million (2021: HK$610 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 MBERBEERNTVE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

B
(b) FHESRKGE)

TREI A EEEHREENRS
MR B ZBRTENEHA T
BHIABANRENRFTRRAS
RE(BERNAAERN R (i F
B)EHREML AEANFRTE
Z A BAFRR) AR AR E AT 2R
Rz &RE AHE

2022
—ECCE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

SHRMRALR

Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

Carrying Tyearor  1yearbut 2 years but
amount  ondemand within 2 years within 5 years Total

—FR —EHE MERL
HREE Pl ERENR BEENR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr
Trade payables EARAER 463,997 463,997 - - 463,997
Other payables and accruals HitEAERRETER 261,926 261,926 - - 261,926
Lease liabilities HERE 4,416 3,95 1,068 203 4,566
730,339 729,218 1,068 203 730,489

2021
—E--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARRRERL

Within More than More than

Carrying 1 year or Tyearbut 2 years but
amount  ondemand within 2 years  within 5 years Total

—R —ENE RERL
FEE g EWEAR BEENR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
Trade payables BAEMERR 408,006 408,006 - - 408,006
Other payables and accruals HitEABRRRETER 297,583 297,583 - - 297,583
Lease liabilities HERE 5212 3,571 1352 562 5,485
710,801 709,160 1,352 562 711,074
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZE=-Z=

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

220

(¢) Interest rate risk

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group's interest earning
financial assets and interest bearing financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

ZEXRB=ZtHLEEE

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

(0 F=Ek
()  FEHER
TRAJNRERLR

AEECHESREER
HESMEBEIAEEN

2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-—fF
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BREFI= REE BRFEAN=R IREE
% HK$’000 % HK$°000
BEF T BT T
Fixed rate financial assets/ TE&REE
(liabilities): (8fE):
Deposits with banks RITEBER 1.89 1,184,564 1.65 1,141,936
Debt securities EHES 2.77 24,023 2.64 67,669
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.57 (4,416) 4.98 (5,212)
1,204,171 1,204,393
Variable rate financial FEERMEE .
assets:
Cash at bank RITIER 1.38 281,425 1.30 221,071
Total &5t 1,485,596 1,425,464
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZE-_—HAXB=1HILEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair Values (continued)

(¢) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2022, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 200 basis points
(2021: 0 to 14 basis points) in interest rates
for the Group's interest earning financial
assets denominated in various currencies,
mainly Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the year
and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$3,551,000 (2021: HK$541,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) is estimated as an annualised

24 BiEAREERAFE
B

(0 F=RERGE)
(i) SBESH

R-ZBE-ZZFXA=+
B iEAEEFES
MEERTESRAEGES
BN (EEABE - A
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A/ THOE2008F (=
TEZ—F I 0E148F) -
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impact on interest income of such a change G EHEET o
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2021.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

222

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), Macau Patacas ("MOP"), New
Zealand dollars (“NZD") and Euro (“EUR").

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong into the
Group's presentation currency and exposure
arising from inter-company balances which
are considered to be in the nature of interest
in subsidiaries are excluded.

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

(d) E¥EE

AEEEHNERRR  EBR
BEREEMEE ZRBWRMN - B
NRARREEEG  ZERET)
BN IRBSREB 2D
BEEB LN ERTTE - SMER
BMEBRAET  ARY B
B ORFI - BT RET

() AZZIERE

TRAEAEERBEHL
B NHEEQANEE

UHNERHENCHERE
EREEREZ ZIER
BAEH MDA - IR
BB 2 B TR
EREEZ2FEBUR
BANBLARAEBREMEEZ
EELABzES®RZE
B XTEREER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

(d) E¥EREE
(i) AZZIEmPEE)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in original currency)
AR ZHERBR(URESHE)
2022
—E-CE
HK$'000 RMB’000 US$'000 MOP’000
BETT ARETRT Enfrn RFIETR

Trade and other receivables B2 REMEWRERR - - 177 -
Cash and short term funds ~ BREREHES 443 15,658 343 =
Trade and other payables Lok EMENIER - (262) (2,967) -
Amounts due from group  EWEBAATE

companies 11,448 1,670 - 7,284
Net exposure arising from  £REEREBELZ

recognised assets and BT

liabilities 11,891 17,066 (2,447) 7,284
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and 24 HKEBEERANFE

fair values (continued) B
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEbsE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) TRF ZIMNE R (4E)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in original currency)
AENERR(AREHEHE)
2021
“B--

HK$'000  RMB'O00  USS'000  MOP'000  NZ$'000  EUR'000
ERTn ARETR  Entn BFRTn ABERTr  EBrTn

Trade and other receivables B2 REftEKER 324 - 79 - - -
Cash and short term funds B4 REHES 406 15,465 6,298 - 3 -
Trade and other payables ~ ESREMEREH - - (2,917) - (1,555) -
Amounts due from group  EWEBARHE

companies 15,867 1,670 - 6,099 - -

Gross exposure arising from CHEIEEREEEL

recognised assets and HEBRREES

liabilities 16,597 17,135 3,460 6,099 (1,552) -
Notional amounts of foreign #ATBEABRZ

exchange forward contracts JMNEREBA LM

at fair value through profit  £z&

or loss - - - - 1,387 395

Net exposure arising from ~ £HEEREEEEZ
recognised assets and RBFE
liabilities 16,597 17,135 3,460 6,099 (165) 395
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZE=-Z=

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

ZEXRB=ZtHLEEE

24 MBERBEERNTVE

B

(d) E¥ERE#E)

(ii)
2022
—E_CE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax
exchange and revenue
rates reserve
BB &RRRR

HEER e
ER/(F®) &/ (HD)

TREH HEREERR

EHMKBTESERRR
ZINEER - RZBHHN
BRESHASEBRBR
3 (0 U 38 e ) oz BB
25 WERRABEMLE

BREBRETE o
2021
—EC--E
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax
exchange  and revenue
rates reserve
BB ERFIR

MEER Wit fhbe
LR/ (F%) &0/ (D)

% HK$'000 % HK$'000
RETT BETT
HKS B 0.13 " (2.11) (263)
RMB AR (0.13) (21) 2.11 363
Us$ ESH (0.19) 31 0.05 21
MOP BFE 0.13 7 2.11) (94)
NZ$ AT - = 413 (51)
EUR BT - = 2.23 82
BIR(EB)ERAR |~ 2= 5% 225



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—ZE-—F X XB=1tHIEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair Values (continued)

226

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue
reserve measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2021.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity securities designated at FVOCI (see note
14).

All of the Group's equity securities are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are held
for investment yield enhancement purpose. Equity
securities have been chosen based on their dividend
yield track records. Equity securities are subject
to asset allocation limits to control appropriate
risks and the limits are reviewed from time to time
based on the latest market situation as well as the
Group's liquidity needs. The portfolio size is regularly
reviewed and the price movements are closely
monitored with appropriate actions taken when
required. Internal reporting mechanism is strictly
implemented for treasury management.

At 30 June 2022, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 2% (2021: 18%) in the market value of
the Group’s equity securities designated at FVOCI,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's total equity by
HK$1,881,000 (2021: HK$14,750,000). The analysis
is performed on the same basis as for 2021.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022
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(d)

(e)

B E)
(i) BBESH(E)

LRz DA REER
FEBZEBUASTEMEE
ERSTEZBRRRENS
BEREERE  BERS
HRABTZERBER
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HRESMIBRERE
BERAREHNTERAEH
RB|BEMELBFERER
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ERITAE - 2MEUEZ

— AR 2 BT o

REEEER

FEBFTEAERBEERAF
BEFAEGEZERZHRER
F(RME14) TEENREER
SEEE -

FEAEECZREESAENES
BEXZHMERAT LT S
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BEERBERERELLHEME
HigE REFHFEAETEENR
BIRZE > UEHEERR » &R
FERBEEFTEBERRERR
HESTEELREHER A4
FRESEHER  URER
HEXE2D REFTEHEIE
E78 c BEEERBAITRIN
RS o

R-ZBE--_FXA=1+H K&
ENZEAFEEFTAEMZEK
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24 Financial risk management and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 MBERBEERNTVE

fa ir va | ues (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

MIE(EB)ERLQR | T -

B

()

FFHR

APEEE
() HURAFEETAEZZHE

EREE

TREIREBEEBIMBER
HEUFE T =R AFEE
2| ERRREHLE
SEEEERMIACAY
BEIERA=EAFEE
RA - BERMMET LR
BWABBNITEEMRE
EMEUTRBIEE :

- B-#&RMEE:E
B — AR BlE A
BE(FTERHE
AHEREERER
TEIRT S EHRE
AERE)FTEHD
FEE-

- BIHRBMEE:E
PS8 Z 4R Bl d A B
BEIFHEE R
AEENABEY
B)FENLFE
B BTEEAE
RAABRGAR
B THBERA
BB BARERSET
SRV A RS -

- ESRGE: &
AEATIBES
AR EH DT
i -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) f) DEEEFERE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) LN FEEFEZEHRE
at fair value (continued) EREE(E)
2022 2021
“ECCE “EC-
level1  Level2  Level3 Total  levell  level2  Level3 Total
- IV B = ait
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT  BETT BETn BEFn BEFn BEEn BETn HETx
Recurring fair value measurements B3 ATEEHE
Assets &
Other finandial assets: AfEREE:
- Fquity securities designated at AIOCI - KEBATEETALA
AENENRERE 9,033 - - 903 81945 - -8
- Club membership -ef - m - m - 815 - 815
94,033 m - 94755 81945 815 - 8760
Liability EH
Derivative financial instruments: fEemIE:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts - MBS = = = = - 4 - 40

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of club membership in Level
2 are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to quoted prices in an
active market of financial assets similar to the
instrument being valued, adjusted for factors
unigue to the instrument being valued.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts in Level 2 is determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative
participants supported by observable inputs
including spot and forward exchange rates.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

All other significant financial assets and
liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2022 and 2021. It is not meaningful
to disclose the fair value of non-trade
balances with subsidiaries because there is no
fixed term of repayment.

MIE(EB)ERLQR | T -

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

()

FFHR

RPEETEE)

(i) HAREZ-REAFEE
TG ER MR A
5B

(iii)

IR (o gt 93] P = Prd/N
FEERZENIAMERL
ZEMEERTBLBUL
EERTE 2T S RE
BUEBRIAZBERE
FLAGEE -

BUMESE R RBz SNEEEH
BREZAFEERUER
FHMTIESEEUAE
E A BB TS RE
REE  HhEENHR
EHER o

FURFEEIRGZE
BERAMREZAFERE

MREAMB AR ZFE R
BN RZBEZZFRZ
E-Z—-FXA=1TH
BEHMEARERHEERE
BENERAEEEATEER
WHERER - AREMK
BRABZHEZERILE
EEERE  BHEED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

25 Commitments 25 ZKiE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

(@) AEERBEHMRKBABUTER
AEAREMBRERPELERE

2022 2021
—EB-CF B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYFT BT T
Capital expenditure authorised and CEEICTHNZ
contracted for BRI 21,343 46,988
Capital expenditure authorised but not B EREBARTHZ
contracted for =N 48,903 61,208

In addition, the Group did not commit to enter into
new leases that are not yet commenced at 30 June
2022. The Group was committed at 30 June 2021
to enter into new leases of 2 to 3 years that are not
yet commenced, the lease payments under which
amounted to HK$327,000 per annum.

(b) At 30 June 2022, the Group had several non-
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with
its suppliers with an amount of HK$738,520,000
(2021: HK$899,400,000).

o REBR-_ZZ_FxA
=+ RREAETLERBEAN
HHEE - XEBR B
B=1+BARIT M AREAHN=
E-EYHFEE AEBEENRK
EHEEBYE327,0007T ©

(b) R-ZZE--HFXA=+H &K
B LR E R T v R T~ W BUH
HIEARHRIBETE - ©E BB
738,520,000 T (=B =—4% : &
#899,400,0007T) °

230 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2022



R RS

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZEZ=

26 Related party transactions

(a)

(b)

at

EIERAZTHULERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 FEAEALTZRS

Key management personnel remuneration () FEEEASHFM
Remuneration for key management personnel, FTEEBASZHH  GFXS
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors FERABRESRETHERESW
and certain of the highest paid employees is BEERGETHHRERMTOMESR
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial 5l o HFENMAZEC A B TR
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff A (RMIEE7) ©
costs” (note 7).
Material transactions with related parties (b) BEEATERRS
Nature of transactions XEHE 2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BHEF T
Management fee expenses to fellow ERBEYHTRA
subsidiaries (note (i) Pt o X B (MfaE (1)) 9,763 13,823
Purchase of goods from a fellow BIEEX NG
subsidiary (note (ii)) BREBE R (I (i) 8,824 34,745
Notes: BfaE -

)

On 3 July 2020, a master services agreement
(the “Master Services Agreement”) was entered
into by the Company and its subsidiaries with
Guoline Group Management Company Pte.
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the
ultimate holding company of the Company at the
time (see note 28), for the provision by the latter
of management services including, among other
things, overview and/or oversight of businesses
and operations, investment management and
financial management disciplines, treasury and
risk management, key managerial recruitment and
retention as well as other operating practices and
procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of

three financial years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June
2023.

MR (&

JERRE | —F - _FFH

R-ZZE-ZEFtLtA=H" &
AT R E M E A 7B Guoline
Group Management Company
Pte td (ERABARA 2

# ¥ I A 8 Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad
(THLCM ) Z Mt 18 & =) ( R
7£28)) 5T M E RIS ([ MR
BineE ) - EUKHEERME
EREEE (FRE{EIR)EE
ERREEXFBREE - RE
BEERMBERLE MER
AREE TEEBASBIY
BERREUARHBEEES
MR 5t DR E
& ARWEREMRT o

ERBHREANHE—Z_F

FtA—-HE-ZE-=%5A
=180 ABH=EMEREFE -
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26 Related party transactions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

26 BEREEATZRZ @)

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Material transactions with related parties (b)
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) On 27 March 2020, a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company with Manuka
Health New Zealand Limited ("MHNZ", together
with its subsidiaries, the “MH Group”) pursuant to
which MH Group companies may during the term
of the Master Distribution Agreement agree to
specific appointments of LSHK Group companies to
be the distributor(s) of the full range of products
of the MH Group in the People’s Republic of China
and such other jurisdictions as the parties may
agree to be included from time to time.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c)
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
management fee expenses and purchase of goods
above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

27 Company - level statement of 27 ARIEENERRR
financial position

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMENFZE 1,046 187
Interest in subsidiaries M~ Bl iR 1,064,751 1,063,755
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHT B R FRIE 646,328 638,277
Other financial assets HihemEE 94,033 81,945
1,806,158 1,784,164
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hih W R 2,532 1,871
Cash and short term funds ReREHES 518,269 519,490
520,801 521,361
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables and accruals Hit SRR R ETTEA 14,252 18,098
Tax payables FEABEFR 170 140
Lease liabilities HEaRs 413 -
14,835 18,238
Net current assets EREBEE 505,966 503,123
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 2,312,124 2,287,287
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHT B A Rl FE 103,718 114,460
Lease liabilities HEas 525 -
104,243 114,460
NET ASSETS BEE 2,207,881 2,172,827
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 RFEE
Share capital (note 21) BRAS(BitaF21) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 22) & (fat22) 1,535,104 1,500,050
TOTAL EQUITY arEzs 2,207,881 2,172,827
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors RHESER-_FT--FNA=+TH
on 24 August 2022. HOERIZRETIE -
WONG Cho Fai = CHEW Seong Aun AR
DIRECTOR ) DIRECTOR EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

28 Immediate and ultimate holding

234

company

At 30 June 2022, the Company’'s immediate holding
company is Guoline International Limited, which is
incorporated in Bermuda. With the completion of an
internal restructuring exercise on 16 April 2021, the
directors consider that the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Guoline Capital Assets Limited, a company
incorporated in Jersey, replacing Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia, as
its ultimate holding company. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

28

EERERERERAR

RZBZZFXA=+H  A2AH
H ¥ R 2 3 5B Guoline International
Limited » —ERBRETMALH D
AoBEE_E-_—FHA+THRABEA
THEZERE  ZERAERDTNWREER
‘A 8] A Guoline Capital Assets Limited -
—EEEATMA LA AT - Bl Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad » — &
AERADFMALA AT » RBEREK
ZERAT - EEERSEMBRERAMA
T o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE—Z-_—H X A=1+HLEE

29 Possible impact of amendments, 29 BEZ_-_=Z_=-_-F X H

new standards and
interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended
30 June 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2022 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

=t+HILEFEEHEME
o RER 2 EIEFT - F
ANEAIRZREUREE
EHNE

BENHEUBHRERTIZEH  FB2:
MASCEMZEREBE-ZE X
A=1tRHLEFERKRENB LETER
RERRAZETR—EHTER &
BUEREENET LR RESH ]
B AR EAEEREBRRNT o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT BEAg A&
Bz E BBEXN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework

BRBMBIREEREIRER] [ S EHMER ]

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

BRETERE6R 2GR [ W% - MERRKE - (EREEHZFZ

1 January 2022
—®2-—%#—-f—H

1 January 2022

/2300A | —E-—fF-F-H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022

BRETEREITR G [ EESH —EBITEHZHA ]

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle

—2-=%-f—AH

1 January 2022

ERINREEN -2 \FE S SEEN I FENE —E==f-A-H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BRI EANSE VRG] [ MBI mEEETE ] —E-=%—F—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

1 January 2023

BRETERE 1R REBYBRE ERERER B 250 AER] [ Eat BEHE —E-=%—-H—H

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

BRBETERER 2 ER] [ Eaf a1 E%

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

BREENE1 2R B [E—XREGELZEER BEFELYE |

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

MIE(EB)ERLQR | T -

1 January 2023
—E-=%-A—H

1 January 2023

—®2-=%-A—H
REB T EZSERTRA%GERBHE
ZHEBEE -BHEBARL  KAZE

BIRBTEHAKEGSMBERRE
EERTE -

F F 3R 235



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT
At30June 2022 RZZEZZ—FXA=+1H

R-BZZFEXA=Z+THETEMBELATFEEN

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

June 2022: T :
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
RAEH BRTCRAHE EREE RERERIL TERHR it
Group  Company
2E5H  FAH
Changzhou Lam Soon Edible Oils  RMB40,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited ARK#40,000,0007 China specialty fats products
EMEIEREERAR PEARLAE BEREEREERES
Lam Soon Edible Qils 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited UREBR BB REER
B EERERAT
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of NT
Products Limited iB%21,000,0007% China home care products
BNREIEE2RRERAR hE \RLAE FEEEERLERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of trucks rental service
ERENRERAT 10,000 deferred shares &S and investment holding
100REER RUSERERRELER
10,000 RELR
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000%7T China flour products
THEIEENERAR hEARLAE BRERLERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,000,000% 7T China flour products
T EERRARAR hEARLANE BRERLERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited Er Hong Kong REER
AREERHE /BB
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2022 R-ZE--FXAB=1+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NEER ERTZRARE EMREEHH RERREIML TERHR i
Group  Company
%58  Z4d

Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of home care products

Laboratories (Hong Kong) UREBR B SEEBERES

Company Limited
HIEE 2R (BB BRAR
Lam Soon Food Industries HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Investment holding

(BVI) Limited 7%11,858,4157C ARERREE REER
Lam Soon Food Supply 1,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding

Company Limited 500,000 deferred shares ~ &i# REER
HIERMEEERAT 1,000RE &R

500,000 BB

Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) MOP25,000 Macau 100 4 Trading of flour, edible oils and

Company Limited TEFIH25,0007T il home care products
MR R ME(RN) BRAR Y RARRZEREERES
Lam Soon Home Care Products 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding

Holdings Limited UREBR Bk REER
HEREEEERERERAR
Lam Soon Products Supply 1,000,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 100 - Manufacturing of edible oils and

(Hong Kong) Company Limited 1,000,000/ & &M% £ trading of flour, edible oils and
HIEERHE(EB)BRAT agency products

RAMEERER AR
REERES
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2022 R-ZE--FXAB=1+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NEER ERTZRARE EMREEHH RERREIML TERHR Wit
Group  Company
%58  Z4d
Lam Soon Realty Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 100 Property holding, the provision of
HIEERRAR WREER Bh warehousing and logistic services
and licenses of factory canteen
NERE - RERRANDREER
IRREHREE

Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1

Company Limited 10,113,100% 7t China flour products
HB(LR)RABRAR HEARLNE BREREERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1

Company Limited 7,000,000% T China flour products
HIE(R)IDERERAR EARLAE BRERLERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited ~ 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
HEFEREERAR UREBR £ REER
Lam Soon Systems Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of information
HIERABERAR UREBR Eh technology services

REERANREE
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/ Hong 100 - Trademark holding
2ET Kong BERE
NREE/BA

LS Synalife Trading 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading and distribution of

Company Limited UREER BB products and investment holding
HEREZERLT BARDHERRREER
LS SynaLife Trading (Shanghai) RMB7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Trading and distribution of N1

Company Limited AE¥7,000,0007 China products
BEESE (L5 ERAR EARLAE ESRAHEER
Richly Choice Development Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services

(PTC) Limited ES ABERARES RAERER
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2022 R-ZE--FXAB=1+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NEER BRITZRAHE EMREEHH RERREIML TERHR Wit
Group  Company
%58  Z4d
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 27,500,000% 7T China flour products
LOBEENERAR HEARLNE BREREERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Provision of silo facilities N1
Company Limited 9,500,000% 7T China RUEFERE
BOBEEEERAR EARLAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company, Limited 12,000,000 7T China edible oils products
R mEARAR PEARLANE RRAREREERES
Note: Hiat -
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign-owned N1 ZENWBARIRPEERZUIIEBELEES
enterprises under PRC Laws. G o
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBERE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBEREGHREENEE BEEREER
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for ARRRREEAERBENT -
the last five financial years are as follows:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
E-CfF -E--% CZECEE ZE-NE ZE-\E
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M

EEEET BEEET EWEErT EFEErT EFEET

Results £

Revenue LN 6,107 5,761 5119 5,316 5,374

Operating profit before interest,  RIIBRFIE - B1E -

taxation, depreciation and TERBHENEEET

amortisation 327 457 436 433 428
Profit for the year REERF 257 358 317 340 326
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 975 917 692 725 684
Net current assets FRBERE 1,998 1,981 1,806 1,622 1,491
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (14) (17) 21) (12) (5)
Non-controlling interests FEIEEIRER - - - (1 (11)
Equity attributable to AARRREL AR

shareholders of the Company 2,959 2,881 2,477 2,324 2,159
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Paper from © Copyright Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited. All Rights Reserved.
FSC responsible sources The FSC™ | . » hich . i f ‘ ol
wmen FSC™ C120915 e FSC™ logo identifies products which contain wood and virgin fibre from responsible sources

certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council™
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